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To the Board of County Commissioners and the
citizens of Clackamas County, Oregon:
April 15, 2009

The financial reporting entity (the government) includes all the funds and account
groups of the primary government (i.e., Clackamas County as legally defined, its
blended component units and the Workforce Investment Council of Clackamas County,
Inc., a discretely presented component unit), as well as all of its business type activities.
The blended component units are legally separate entities whose governing boards are
comprised of the members of the Clackamas County Board of Commissioners (the
Board) and for which the primary government is financially accountable. The Board
appoints one member of the governing board of the discretely presented component
unit, which is a separate legal entity engaged in significant financial transactions with the
County.

Additional information about the County's operations and the County's financial
condition at June 30, 2008 is contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) section of the CAFR. The reader's atiention is directed to the MD&A, an
important source of information which complements that contained in this lefter of
transmittal.

Profile of the Government

Clackamas County is one of the three counties comprising the Portland metropolitan
area in northwest Oregon. Although the County originally contained the territorial capital
for the Oregon Territory and had boundaries extending east to what is now Montana and
ldaho and north into today's British Columbia, Canada, the County is now 1,879 square
miles extending east to include Mount Hood, Oregon's tallest peak, south to the
Willamette Valley, west to the Willamette River and north to include some parts of south
Portland. With a population estimated at July 1, 2008 by the Portland State University
Population Research Center at 376,662 (a 1.2% increase since measured in 2007) and
growing, the County is one of the more developable and rapidly developing parts of the
state and of the Pacific Northwest. This is promoted by affordable house prices in
certain areas, and the availability of desirable building lots in others which are being
acquired and built upon in some relatively undeveloped cities such as Happy Valley and
Damascus.

Clackamas County government provides a full range of services including but not limited
to human services to the elderly and economically disadvantaged, public health and
mental health services, planning and economic development, the construction and
maintenance of highways and streets, public safety, and park services.

November of 2007 saw the passage, with strong voter approval, of a ballot measure
creating the new format for the Clackamas County Board of Commissioners. The
measure followed the recommendations contained in a formal report from a citizen
panel that reviewed the governance structure of the County.

The County currently has five elected commissioners, each serving four-year terms and
elected at large. This structure changed effective in January 2009, when two additional
commissioner positions were added to the Board.

Under the successful ballot measure, the Board's membership expanded to five
members with an elected Chair and four Commissioners. The citizen panel that
developed the recommended structure, and the Board of Commissioners in referring the



To the Board of County Commissioners and the
citizens of Clackamas County, Oregon:
April 15, 2009

ordinance, envisioned the Chair and Commissioners serving on a full-time basis and
being compensated equally.

The Chair, unlike in some other jurisdictions, does not have authority above or beyond
that of the other Commissioners. The function of the Board Chair is to conduct
Commission meetings and events, to represent the Board's position on issues, and to
coordinate the agenda for the weekly business meetings.

Today, with the rapid development of Clackamas County, the Board is expected to have
a full-time workload and employment status. However, the ordinance passed by the
voters directs the Board to re-examine board governance issues, including the full-time
or part-time nature of the positions, in the spring of 2011.

Daily administrative functions are overseen by an appointed County Administrator, while
the Board of Commissioners sets policy, adopts the annual budget and passes
ordinances in accordance with state law. The County's chief administrative officer at
June 30, 2008, Jonathan A. Mantay, joined Clackamas County on December 17, 2001.
In March of 2009 Mr. Mantay announced his resignation and the Board appointed
Deputy County Administrator Steven Wheeler to act as Interim County Administrator
until a decision is made for Mr. Mantay's replacement.

Also included in this report are the activities of the five other elected officials, who serve
as department heads overseeing their respective functions. The Sheriff provides patrol,
investigation, civil process, and corrections services; the District Attorney prosecutes
criminal charges and maintains family support enforcement; the Treasurer is investor
and custodian of County funds; the County Clerk conducts elections and maintains
official records and the Assessor is responsible for the valuation of property for taxation
and the subsequent application of all levies in the County to those properties.

In accordance with Oregon Local Budget Law, the County utilizes a budget committee
consisting of the Commissioners and an equal number of citizens to review the
departmental budgets for each fiscal year. The Board appoints many other volunteers
to citizen advisory and review committees to assist the County in providing needed and
desired services.

Compensation for elected officials is recommended by the Compensation Board for
Elected Officials as part of the annual budget process. The Budget Committee takes
into consideration the recommendation of the Compensation Board and approves a
level of compensation to be included in the budget and documented in the County's
personnel management system. The Commissioners act on those recommendations to
set elected officials’ salary compensation as they adopt the County budget.

The Board of County Commissioners also serves as the governing body of
« the service districts providing surface water management, sewage treatment and
lighting services;
* Clackamas County Development Agency, an Urban Renewal Agency;
e Clackamas County Enhanced Law Enforcement Service District;
* North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District;
* The Estacada Area Service District for Library Services, and
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e the Housing Authority of Clackamas County, providing housing services to
individuals meeting federal criteria as low income residents;

therefore these activities have been included in the reporting entity. Business type
activities are reported in a separate column in the basic financial statements to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and to
differentiate their financial positions and results of operations from those of the primary
government.

In November 2008's general election, Clackamas County voters approved the creation
of two additional service Districts, the Clackamas County Extension and 4-H Service
District and the Library Services District of Clackamas County, which will begin
operating in the 2009-2010 fiscal year. Each of these County service districts was
formed with a tax levy approved by voters. Property tax inflows to support district
operations will commence in November 2009, and the activities of the service districts
will be reported in the County's CAFR at the end of the 2008-10 fiscal year.

The County is not financially accountable for and does not exercise significant influence
over the Hospital Facility Authority of Clackamas County, a related organization. Thus
the results of its activities have not been included in this report.

Budgeting Controls

The County maintains extensive budgetary controls. The objective of these controls is
to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget
adopted by the County’s Board of Commissioners. Activities of the General Fund, debt
service funds, enterprise funds, internal service funds, capital projects funds, and trust
and agency funds are included in the annual appropriated budget of the County.

The County's budget process begins in late fall of each calendar year with the
generation of cost allocation numbers for internal services to be distributed to operating
departments.

The Budget Committee, comprised of the Commissioners and an equal number of
citizen members appointed by the Commissioners, establishes expectations and policy
targets for the upcoming budget season prior to January of each year. For the
upcoming 2008-10 budget process, the Budget Commititee has expanded to ten
members, with five Commissioners and five citizen members, as a result of the increase
in membership of the County Commission.

The County issues its prospective budget calendar, holds a workshop to apprise
departments of the requirements for the budget process, and allows time for
departments to generate budget requests. Budgets are turned in to the Budget Office in
March, reviewed and analyzed, and are referred back to departments for updates,
corrections and subsequent meetings with the Budget Officer.

The Budget Officer presents the recommended budget to the Budget Committee at the
first public Commitiee meeting and the Commitiee examines and hears deparimental
presentations and testimony on the budgets over the ensuing weeks. The County
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budget, once approved and forwarded from the Commititee to the Board of
Commissioners for adoption, undergoes a public hearing and adoption process prior to
June 30, 2009 so that the next fiscal year will have its budget in place.

The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally
exceed the appropriated amount) is established by expenditure category or program
organizational unit within an individual fund. The County also maintains an
encumbrance accounting system as one method of maintaining budgetary control.
Encumbered amounts lapse at year's end. However, outstanding encumbrances are re-
appropriated as necessary as part of the following year's budget.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of
this report, the County continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial
management.

Local Economic Condition and Outlook

The State of Oregon, trailing the developments affecting the national economy, is now in
a similarly weak economic position with rising unemployment, business failures, bank
takeovers and other negative economic indicators. Emerging from the nationwide 2003-
04 recession in fiscal year 2004-05, the state of Oregon re-established unemployment at
more normal levels and resumed forward economic progress through the end of
calendar year 2007. An indicator of that fiscal health was the return in 2007 of $1.071
billion of income tax proceeds to Oregon taxpayers under the State's income tax kicker
law, which requires tax rebates for any taxes received beyond 102% of projected
receipts. According to the State economist's measures, the unemployment rate
declined from a peak of 8.5% in mid-2003 to 5.2% by November 2007. This however
lagged behind the employment recovery in most of the rest of the United States.

Just as the State began its climb from that recessionary period, the underpinnings of the
national and world economy began to weaken and crumble. Driven by poor lending
decisions on the part of the nation's mortgage lenders, and exacerbated by the
securitization of those mortgages into investment packages, which lost value at alarming
rates, the economy saw extraordinary losses in the equity markets and a collapse in
investor confidence. Because the losses occurred in such a fundamental segment of
the international economy, the banking systems, a rapid recessionary wave surged
around the world. At this writing, economic experts predict a long and painful period
prior to emergence from the current crisis. Attempts by the federal government to
stimulate the economy into productivity and expansion are presently being injected into
the capital system.

As measured by the State Economist's Office as of the end of calendar 2008,
Clackamas County's unemployment level maintained below Oregon's statewide
averages, at slightly above 9% versus the statewide average of 11%. This is the 7"
lowest County unemployment percentage rate in the state of Oregon, showing the depth
of the unemployment problem statewide. State Economist Tom Potiowsky wrote in his
March 2009 report that “the recession in the US and Oregon economies will come to an
end. The question is how much deeper and how much longer. "
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With these conditions, Clackamas County is drawing in its fiscal belt as it prepares the
budget for the next fiscal period and the ones beyond. With a still healthy general Fund
as of the end of the 2007-08 fiscal year, and revenues still acceptably robust in the
current 2008-08 year, the County projects that the end of the current fiscal year will by
and large meet estimates of revenues; however, curtailing of discretionary expenditures
is in progress.

The County's business base has changed over time to favor retail, warehousing, and
tourism, with metals manufacturing, machinery and Christmas tree and berry agriculture
continuing to hold an important place in the economic mix. The County's economic
development efforts are yielding fruit, as new employers are being attracted to the
County's industrial area and expanding urbanized areas.

Clackamas County has passed through the end of a decade of steady growth in
population and development. Leading into the fiscal year beginning July 2008, taxable
real estate assessed values (as calculated by County Assessor Bob Vroman) grew to
nearly $32.94 billion; this represents a strong holding pattern in local property valuation
in spite of the nationwide reductions in property values from effects of the national
economy. The Portland metro area and Clackamas County both experienced in 2008
the unusual phenomenon of slowing real estate sales concurrent with muted downward
impact on home prices.

Long Term Planning Efforts and Major Initiatives

The County has undertaken over 50 large scale projects, from business retention and
recruitment to expansion of the educational opportunities available through programs
linking community colleges and universities in the Portland area, from transportation
system improvements though our fastest growing communities to employee succession
planning for the baby-boom retirement wave, as budgetary priorities beginning in the
2007-08 fiscal year and extending forward.

The County’s Facilities Master Plan was developed by a joint committee of private
citizens and County department heads. The plan detailed the research and public
comment on consolidation and placement of much of the County’'s administrative, justice
and public service offices. The campus will set the tone for the future development of
the area, and will enhance economic development in that portion of Oregon City.
Approval of the Master Plan by the City of Oregon City was obtained in Spring 2006.

The County has now completed the first and second buildings in the envisioned
complex. The Public Services Building (PSB), completed and opened in July 2004,
brought together 17 departments to make services more conveniently accessible to
citizens. The centrally located building was primarily financed by converting the lease
rentals paid for those departments' previous space to future debt service payments on
the bonds issued for construction. The second new office building at the campus, the
Development Services Building (DSB) opened in November 2008 to house development
related services such as Planning, Building Permits, County Surveyor, Water
Environment Services and Assessment and Taxation. The PSB and the DSB were
designed and built as energy-efficient and environmentally low-impact facilities, to create
a model for the rest of the buildings to be constructed under the Facilities Master Plan.

vi
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Each has been certified under the US Green Building Council's Leadership in Energy
and Environmental Design program (LEED).

Associated with those building projects are a Central Utility Plant and an underground
utility corridor or “Utilidor” which will serve the entire campus as new buildings come on
line, creating a central source for heating and cooling and providing a highway for data
and telephone communication connections linking all campus buildings. The Central
Utility Plant and the Utilidor have been completed and now serve the DSB and the PSB.
The Central Plaza of the Campus has also been completed and is the linking green
space between the new facilities.

In December 2006 the Board of Commissioners commissioned a study group to
examine what amount of capital investment would be needed to replace the aging Jail
operated by County Sheriff Craig Roberts and his staff. The County committed two
years and extensive resources toward planning for a modernized 800 bed Adult
Detention Facility. When the economic conditions began to disintegrate, the decision to
suspend movement toward construction of a new facility was made in the interest of
fiscal stability.

In March 2009, the Commissioners authorized improvements fo the existing jail to
correct facility problems, add 50 new beds, and at the same time create a centralized
Sheriff's Office in the Clackamas area using the County's Sunnybrook Service Center.
Design concepts for the existing Jail at the Red Soils campus property are underway,
aimed at opening a new facility by end of summer 2010. These projects benefiting the
Sheriff's operations are estimated to cost approximately $25 million, and will provide for
interim solutions to the detention capacity issues at the County jail.

Relevant Financial Policies

The County has established targets for ending fund balances, which, coupled with
austerity measures applied throughout the County government, have yielded annual
increases in fund balance in the County's General Fund, even as increasing provisions
for capital reserves have been budgeted and transferred. In the last seven years,
General Fund ending balances have grown from $7.1 million to nearly $18 million.

The County's policymakers have also declined to “back-fill" state funded services, in
times when the state legislature cuts funding, as the County's ability to fund such
services as mental and public health clinics with significant reductions in state funding is
not feasible.

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in various instruments including
general obligations of the United States Government and its agencies, certain bonded
obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank repurchase agreements, corporate debt
instruments and bankers' acceptances, and the State Treasurer's investment pool.
Investments of the County and other entrusted funds are made under the restrictions of
Oregon law, and in accordance with the County's Investment Policy.

The County budgets for its Risk Management activities in an Internal Service fund. Risk

Management is predicated on an actuarial study, which has assigned a probability of
loss to unemployment, casualty, worker's compensation and liability claims. Resources

wii
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are being accumulated in the Risk Management Fund to meet potential loss obligations.
Third party coverage is maintained for certain casualty and liability losses.

Awards and Acknowledgements

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
awarded a Ceriificaite of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
Clackamas County for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007. This was the 16" consecutive year that the government has
achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2008

This discussion and analysis of the Clackamas County Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) offers readers a narrative overview of financial activities for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008. Please read it in conjunction with the accompanying
transmittal letter, the basic financial statements, and the notes to the basic financial
statements. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of
dollars. Presentation in thousands has resulted in insignificant rounding differences
between Management's Discussion and Analysis and audited statements found
throughout the CAFR.

The County has ten component units included in this presentation. They include nine
blended components, the Clackamas County Development Agency (CCDA), Clackamas
County Enhanced Law Enforcement District (CCELED) MNorth Clackamas Park and
Recreation District (NCPRD), Clackamas County Service District No. 1 (CCSD-1), a
sanitary sewer district, Clackamas County Service District No. 5 (CCSD-5), a street and
highway lighting district, Tri-City Service District (TCSD), a sanitary sewer district,
Surface Water Management Agency of Clackamas County (SWMACC), the Housing
Authority of Clackamas County, Oregon (HACC), and the Estacada Area County Service
District for Library Services (EACSDLS). In addition, the Workforce Investment Council
of Clackamas County, Inc. is displayed as a discrete component unit.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of Clackamas County exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2008 by
$1,008,478 (reported as net assets). Of this amount, $5,149 is restricted for
future years’ debt payments and $24,194 is restricted for property acquisition and
development projects.

e Total net assets increased by $48,335 or 5.0% in fiscal year 2008. Various
reasons account for the fiscal year 2008 increase in net assets which are
discussed by management below.

= |n governmental activities, revenue from fees, fines, and charges for services
decreased by $7,564 or 16.8% over the prior year. The economy slowed,
especially during the last quarter of the fiscal year, and business activity
decreased significantly. Operating Grants and Contributions increased by
$3,857 or 3.6% over the previous year as the County continues to actively
pursue various state and federal grants to help fund an increasing array of
services. Capital grants and contributions decreased by $17,377 or 35.2% as
the county devoted more time and effort to developing the Red Soils
governmental campus complex.

« Property tax revenues increased by $12,940 or 13.5% over the prior year. A new
Public Safety Local Option Levy and continued tax base expansion, due to new
construction and the annual 3% increase in taxable value for individual
properties, allowed under Measure 50, was responsible for the significant
increase in property tax revenue.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

« Interest and investment earnings for governmental activities decreased by $560
or 5.3% over the prior year due to a lower rate of return on investments.

o General government expenses for governmental activities increased by $1,469
or 3.8% from the prior year.

s Net assets for business-type activities increased by $8,933 or 4.3% in fiscal year
2008, predominantly caused by a significant increase in revenue from fees and
charges for services.

e Total assets for business-type activities increased by %8,624 or 3.6% over the
prior year and total liabilities decreased by $309 or 1.0% in fiscal year 2008.

= As of the close of the current fiscal year, the County's governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $166,392, a decrease of $29,651 or
15.1%.

o At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General
Fund was $17,982, or approximately 40.3% of total General Fund expenditures.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County's
basic financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements are comprised of
three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements
are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County's finances, in a
manner similar to private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the County's assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time,
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the County's net assets
changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items
that will only result in cash flows in future periods, such as uncollected taxes and earned
but unused vacation leave.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (the
governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (the business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government, public
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Government-wide financial statements (continued)

safety and justice, health and social services, roads and bridges, recreation, and
libraries. The business-type activities include housing and development, sanitation,
surface water management, and street lighting.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15 and 16 of this
report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the
funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. The County adopts an annual appropriated
budget for all funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for each
fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the County's near-term
financing requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that
of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information
presented for the governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so,
readers may better understand the long-term impact of the County's near-term financing
decisions. Both the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

The County maintains sixty-one individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental funds Balance Sheet and in the governmental funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance for the General
Fund, Community Health Fund, Sheriff Operations Fund, Community Development
Fund, DTD Capital Projects Fund, and the Capital Projects Reserve Fund, all of which
are considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining governmental funds are
combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these
non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements and respective reconciliations can be
found on pages 17 through 20 of this report.
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Fund financial statements (continued)

Proprietary Funds. The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise
funds to account for its low income housing, sanitary and sewer operations, and the
County's golf course. Internal service funds are an accounting device used fo
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County's various functions. The
County uses internal service funds to account for its risk management and self-
insurance activities, employee assistance programs, printing, communications and data
processing, equipment, fleet, and facilities management programs. Because these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they
have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. Internal service funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund
data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 21 through 24 of
this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the County. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support
County programs. The accounting for fiduciary funds is similar to that used for
proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 25 and 26 of this
report.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that
is essential to a full understanding of the financial data provided in the government-wide
and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found
beginning on page 27 of this report.

Required supplementary information (RSI). In addition to the basic financial
statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information, specifically budgetary comparison schedules for the General
and major special revenue funds. Required supplementary information can be found on
pages 64 through 68 of this report.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve as a useful indicator of the County's financial
position. The County's net assets increased moderately over the restated balance at the
beginning of the current fiscal year. This increase arises primarily in the excess of
program and general revenues over expense in the Statement of Activities and flows to
the Statement of Net Assets, as shown below.

A condensed Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2008 and 2007 follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
(as restated) (as restated) (as restated)
Current and olher assels S 257869 S 325728 S5 53980 S5 54314 5 311,B29 S5 380,042
Capital assels, non-depreciable 447,333 304,652 36,296 28,915 483,629 423,567
Capital assels, depreciable 258,580 276,203 159,388 157,791 457,068 433,994
Tolal assels 1,003,782 996,583 249 624 241,020 1,253,426 1,237,603
Current liabilities B4,228 121,128 7,364 5,762 91,592 126,890
Liahilities due after one year 129,816 125,119 23,540 25451 153,356 130,570
Total lizbilities 214,044 246 247 30,804 31,213 244 548 277,460
Mel assels:
Invested in capilal assels,
net of relaled debt G08,482 611,805 170,268 159,130 778,750 770,935
Reslricled:
Debl service 276 427 4,873 5,753 5,149 6,180
Acguisition and developmenl 24,184 24 646 - - 24,184 24 646
Unrestricted 156,786 113,458 43,599 44,824 200,385 158,382

Tolal net assels § 7BOT3IB 5 750,336 § 218740 S 209807 5 1,008478 § 960,143

For governmental activities, total assets increased $7,199 or 0.7 % during fiscal 2008,
owing primarily to an increase in construction in progress, due to the Red Soils campus
expansion and a decrease in cash and investments.

Total net assets for governmental activities increased $39,402 or 5.3% over the previous
year. Current year growth of net assets is discussed below in the Statement of Activities

section.

Business-type activities report an increase in total assets of $8,624 or 3.6% during fiscal
2008, resulting primarily from increases in intangible assels and capital assets.
Intangible assets increased by $787 or 300.4%. In addition, land, easement and
construction in progress increased $7,380 or 25.5%, while capital assets net of
depreciation increased $1,597 or 1.0%. Overall, liabilities decreased $309 or 1.0%
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from the prior year, with an increase in current liabilities, and a decrease in long-term
liabilities that reflects payments made on long-term debt offset by an increase in notes

payable.

Total net assets for business-type activities increased $8,933 or 4.3% over the previous
year. Net asset increases are discussed in the following Statement of Activities section.

A condensed Statement of Activities for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

follows:

Revanuas:
Program revenues:
Fees, fines, charges for services
Oparating grants ard contributions
Capilal granls and conlribulions
General revenues:
Propery taxes
Olher laxes
Gain on disposal of assels
Invesimenl earnings
Miscellaneous
Tolal revenues
Expensas:
General government
Public protection
Public ways and lacilties
Health and sanilation
Cullure and recrealion
Education
Economic development
Interest and fiscal charges
Sanilary sewer and surface waler
Housing assislance
Goll
Lighting
Tolal expenses

Increase in nel assets before Iransfers

Transfers
Increase in nel assels

Mel assels, beginning of year,
as previously reporied
Restalement

MNel assels, end of year

Governmental Business-Type
Activitins Aclivities Tatal

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
§ 37350 5 44914 5 D2O500 5 28266 5 TG859 § 7380
12,134 108,282 3,006 12,781 115,145 121.063
31,966 49,343 9,828 13291 41,754 62,634
103,030 96,080 - 109,030 96,040
4,851 4,687 - 4,851 4,687
1,688 1,255 - - 1,688 1.255
10,044 10,604 2,525 2,538 12,568 13,142
3,776 5,806 1.548 436 5,324 6,334
311,144 321,071 56,416 57,314 367,560 378,385
40,152 38,683 - 40,152 38,683
88,172 BO,570 - 88,172 80,570
40,229 73,100 - 40,229 73,100
G2,922 78,053 . 62,922 78,053
11,175 11,835 - 11,175 11,935
7,606 9,363 - 7,606 8,363
15,494 13,900 : = 15,494 13,800
6,159 1,340 . . 6,199 1,340
- 24774 2.3 24,774 22,381
. = 18,504 17,560 18,504 17,569
- - 2322 2,354 232 2,354
- = 1,676 1,551 1,676 1,551
271,949 307,944 47.276 43,855 319,225 351,799
39,185 13127 9,140 13.459 48,335 26,586
207 331 (207) (331) i 7
39,402 13,458 8,833 13,128 48,335 26,586
750,336 735,794 209,807 196,679 960,143 832,473
1,084 - - - 1,084
$ 780738 5 T50236 S5 218,740 S 203807 5 1008478 3 060,143
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For governmental activities, percentage decrease in expenses was greater than
percentage decrease in revenues. Total revenue decreased $9,927 or 3.1% over the
prior year. A decrease of $7,564 or 16.8%, owing to a decrease in the demand for
services as the economy began to deteriorate, was reported in fees, fines and charges
for services. Growth of $3,857 or 3.6% was reported in operating grants and
contributions due, in part, to increased funding in State mental health and public health
programs. Capital grants and contributions decreased by $17,377 or 35.2% due to the
completion of phases of large infrastructure projects. Growth in property taxes receipts
of $12,940 or 13.5% were related to an increase in the tax base due to the 3% annual
growth permitted by statute and the institution of a new local option tax. A decrease in
investment earnings in the amount of $560 or 5.3% was caused by a general decline in
interest rates during fiscal year 2008. In addition, miscellaneous revenue decreased by
$2,120 or 36.0% during the current year.

For governmental activities, total 2008 expenses decreased $35,995 or 11.7%.
Increases were reported in General Government of $1,469 or 3.8%, in Public Protection
of $7,602 or 9.4%, Economic Development of $1,594 or 11.5%, and in Interest and
Fiscal Charges of $4,859 or 362.6%. Decreases were reported in Public Ways and
Facilities of $32,871 or 45.0%, in Health and Sanitation of $16,131 or 20.4%, in Culture
and Recreation of $760 or 6.4%, and in Education of $1,757 or 18.8%. General
Government expense increased because of the accrual of OPEB cost, without this
accrual, the expense would have decreased by approximately 5.0%. Public Protection
expense increased primarily at the Sheriff's Office, with the growth in spending funded
by the new public safety local option tax revenue. Public Ways and Facilities expense
decreased as the majority of work this year was for construction in progress on the next
phase of the Red Soils campus complex, and was capitalized. In Health and Sanitation
the decrease reflected the reduction in mental and public health funding and the
beginning of economies to be realized by closing County clinics and outsourcing
services. Culture and Recreation expense decreased as NCFRD purchased land for a
new park. Economic Development expense increased due to continued redevelopment
projects in the Clackamas Town Center area. In Interest and Fiscal Charges, the costs
associated with new issues led to a significant increase in expense.

For business-type activities, the excess of program revenues over program expenses
was $5,104 in Sanitary Sewer and Surface Water, which was a decrease of $4,554 or
47.1% over the prior year. The excess of program revenues over program expenses
was 5480 in Golf, which was a decrease of $248 or 34.1% over the prior year. The
excess of program revenues over program expenses was $46 in Lighting, which was a
decrease of $416 or 90.0% over the prior year. Earnings on investments amounted to
$2,525, which was a decrease of $13 or 0.5% over the prior year. Offsetting these
increases to net assets was a deficit in the Housing Assistance program of $(563). This
deficit was an increase of $(198) or 54.2% from the prior year. Transfers out to
governmental activities were $207, which was a decrease of $124 or 37.5% from the
prior year. Please see the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund
Net Assets, Proprietary Funds, for more detail relating to business-type activities.
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The primary fund of the County, the General Fund, ended a year of operations with an
increase in fund balance of $2,414 or 15.5%. Total revenues in the General Fund
increased $1,286 or 1.1% over the prior year, due primarily to increases in property
taxes of $3,846 or 5.0% and miscellaneous of $1,416 or 11.0%, offset by decreases in
other taxes of $30 or 1.6%, in licenses and permits of $136 or 10.0%, in fines,
forfeitures, and penalties of $74 or 9.8%, in interest of $76 or 6.8%, in intergovernmental
revenue of $3,616 or 26.0%, and in charges for services of $44 or 0.3%. Charges for
services to other County funds revenue increased $474 or 5.2% over the prior year;
however this was partially offset by a decrease in charges for services to others in the
amount of $518 or 12.5%. Expenditure decreases of $2,223 or 4.7% during the year
were primarily in County administration and departments and the operations under the
various elected officials.

The Community Health Fund reported an ending fund balance of 3,787, which was an
increase of $2,287 or 152.5% from the prior year ending fund balance. Revenues
decreased $25,134 or 41.6% over prior year revenues, with a decline in State funding for
mental health services and for low-income patients of the County's clinics. A decline in
expenditures of $25,853 or 40.4% of prior year expenditures kept pace with the decline
in revenue. The decrease was 8.8% in personal services with the elimination of several
full-time staff positions, 58.9% in materials and services related to programs for children,
the developmentally disabled, and services to low-income patients and the decrease
was 100.0% in capital outlay for the current fiscal year.

The Sheriff Operations Fund experienced an increase in fund balance of $358 or 13.1%
of prior year ending fund balance as restated. Revenues increased by $984 or 8.4%,
with an increase in the recovery of costs on local intergovernmental contracts of $571 or
11.6% and various reimbursements for services up $683 or 18.4%. Expenditures,
decreased at a rate of 1.3% or $709, with decreases in Investigation expense, the Jalil,
the Marine Board and Operations offset by a small increase in all other departments.
The Jail saw the largest decrease of $1,020 or 6.3%, as personnel costs were reduced
by $923 or 2.2%. Also noteworthy is the increase for the third year in a row of transfers
from the General Fund of $1,695 or 4.3% to keep jail beds open.

The Community Development Fund reports an ending fund balance of zero, which is
unchanged from 2007, as designated revenues are matched to expenditures. The
expenditures in the fund decreased by $1,579 or 27.3% from the prior year's level due to
the timing of several major community projects.

The fund balance of the DTD Capital Projects Fund decreased $671 or 69.5% over
2007. Revenues, chiefly development charges and State transportation monies,
increased by $818 or 3.8%. Expenditures, chiefly road construction in the Sunset
Corridor, increased by $8,113 or 39.6% as phases of various projects were completed.
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The Capital Projects Reserve Fund experienced a decrease in fund balance of $35,271
or 94.8% over the prior year. Expenditures increased by $15,978 or 69.1% over the
prior year, with the majority going to fund construction of the Development Services
Building. Expenditures for capital outlay exceeded the amount budgeted by $2,967
because amounts in excess of 4,100 that were budgeted to Materials and Services
were tracked as projects and inadvertently posted to capital outlay.

Of the nonmajor funds, significant increases in fund balance occurred in the Road Fund
of $3,499 or 33.6%, the North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District Capital Projects
Fund of $4,305 or 540.7%, and the Clackamas Industrial Development Area Fund of
$7,492 or 184.5%.

Among the nonmajor special revenue funds, only the Transportation System
Development Charge Fund and the Employer Contribution Reserve Fund experienced
significant decreases, with the former declining $1,406 or 9.0% because of road
maintenance and debt payments and the latter declining $1,297 or 100.0% because of
transfers out to close the fund. Among the nonmajor debt service funds, only the
Clackamas Industrial Area Tax Increment Fund experienced a significant decrease of
$13,577 or 47.1% because of transfers out to other funds. Among the nonmajor projects
funds, only the Clackamas Town Center Development Area Fund experienced a
significant decrease of $1,887 or 9.4% because of various projects under way and
completed at the Town Center Mall.

There were expenditures in excess of budget in the amount of $179 for materials and
services in both the Parks Fund, caused by excess expenditures for consulting, internal
County contracted services, and maintenance and the County Payments Account
Project Fund, caused by excess program expenditures. The Clackamas Town Center
Tax Increment Fund had expenditures in excess of budget for debt service caused by
the budget not being updated after the debt service schedule for the 2007 urban renewal
bonds became available. The NCPRD Fund had expenditures in excess of budget in
the amount of $188 for operations at the Aquatic Park, primarily caused by charges
related to the lease of the Tsunami Café by an outside management firm. The
Clackamas County Enhanced Law Enforcement District (ELED) had expenditures in
excess of budget in the amount of $110 for debt service because part of the debt service
was budgeted to be paid out of the Sheriff's Fund, but had to be paid out of ELED
because that is the fund in which the debt is recorded.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The General Fund budget was amended only minimally during the year. The emergency
management program materials and supplies budget was increased by $113 or 940.0%.

The non-departmental contingency budget was increased by $540 or 97.1%. Other
budget amendments were small and limited in number.
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Total revenues in the General Fund were under budget by $1,119 or 0.9%. Property
taxes and charges for services to other County funds exceeded budget by $2,462 or
3.1% and $856 or 9.8%, respectively. Intergovernmental federal revenues were under
budget due to the timing of public protection projects. Miscellaneous revenues were
under budget $1,464 or 19.1% due to lower than expected payroll reimbursements from
component units also reporting below budget personnel expense. Paositive expenditure
variances were in all general government categories except the Board of County
Commissioners, which exceeded budget by an immaterial amount. Total expenditures
in the General Fund were $17,783 or 28.5% under budget. Overall the General Fund
experienced an increase in fund balance on the budgetary basis of $2,464 or 16.7%.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental activities as of June 30, 2008 had invested $745,912 in capital assets net
of depreciation. This was an increase of $75,058 or 11.2% over the prior year. Roads
infrastructure net of depreciation decreased $3,557 or 1.9% during the year, $13,807 in
depreciation was recorded for the roads network. Land right-of-ways increased $13,577
during the year. Construction in progress increased $30,270, with the majority of this for
Sunnyside Road improvements and the Development Services Building. Many smaller
projects throughout the County account for the balance of additions to construction in
progress.

For business type activities, capital assets net of depreciation increased $8,977 or 4.8%
over the prior year. Construction in progress increased $7,406 from water system and
low income housing projects. Plants and line system net of depreciation increased
$3,018. Accumulated depreciation increased $8,096. Please see Note 1 for capital
asset policy and Note 4 for capital asset activity.

A condensed schedule of capital assets, net of depreciation, for June 30, 2008 and 2007
follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Tatal
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Land and right of way § 354049 5 3638 5 16095 S5 16121 § 370144 § 347,759
Construction in progress 93,283 63,013 20,201 12,7485 113,484 75,808
Buildings and improvemenls TB.488 51,720 15,510 17,509 93,978 60,229
Equipment and vehicies 18,916 19,470 1,591 920 20,507 20,390
Plants and line systems - - 141,046 136,028 141,046 138,028
Bridges 13,209 13,379 - - 13.200 13,379
Roads 186,674 180,231 - - 186,674 190,231
Streel lighting poles - - 1.240 1,333 1,240 1,333
Drainage syslams 1,313 1,404 - 1,313 1,404
Tolal § 745512 5 670855 S5 185683 S5 186,706 S§ 941595 & BS57.561
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION

During fiscal year 2008 the North Clackamas Park and Recreation District issued full
faith and credil bonds in the amount of $8,000 to finance the creation of a new park.
Under state law, the County has a debt limitation of 2% of the real market value of
taxable property in Clackamas County. At June 30, 2008, the County was well below
the legal limitation imposed under state law. Please see Note 7 for additional detail
relating to long-term debt. Following is a condensed schedule of long-term debt as of
June 30, 2008 and 2007:

Governmental Acliviies  Business-Type Aclivilies Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Bonds payable:

Revenue bonds $ 36417 § 42,058 § 17985 § 19215 5 54402 5 61273

General obligation bonds 1,790 1,835 - - 1,780 1,835

Full faith and credit obligations TB.415 73,575 5,400 5,645 83,815 789,220

Bancroft (ax assessment bonds 1.400 1.400 - 320 1,400 1,720

Premiums 238 23 - - 238 ik

Discount - - {183) (193) {183) {193)

Deferred amount on refunding . - {444} (545) (444) {545)
Total bonds payable 118,260 118,099 22,758 24,442 141,018 143,541
Other long-lerm debl:

Cantracts, notes and loans payable 12,933 13,785 3,062 2,805 15,995 16,590

Capital leases 40 78 - - 40 79
Total long-term dabi $ 131,233 5 132963 5§ 25820 § 27.247 § 157053 § 160,210

ECONOMIC FACTORS

Property taxes represent a significant revenue source for governmental activities.
Approximately 83.9 percent of general revenues reported for the County as a whole in the
Statement of Activities are property taxes. Approximately 35.0 percent of total revenues
reported for governmental activities are property tax revenues. Because the County is
dependent upon taxes, it is appropriate to discuss the continued effect of Measure 50. The
1997 property tax limitation rolled back assessed values to 90 percent of 1995-96 levels,
established permanent tax rates and limited assessed value growth for individual properties
to 3 percent per year. Certain taxes, such as those levied to pay bonded debt, were
exempted from Measure 50 reductions.

Property tax growth for the County and component units was 13.4 percent for the year;
however, if property tax revenue from the new Public Safety Local Option Levy is removed
from the results, then property tax growth for the County and component units was 5.6
percent, with results varying depending upon the district. The Enhanced Law Enforcement
District reported tax growth of $188 or 4.2 percent, due to growth in assessed value
resulting from the revitalization of the Clackamas Town Center area. The Clackamas
County Development Agency reported an increase in overall tax revenue of $161 or 1.7
percent, as property tax revenue decreased by $900 in the Government Camp
Redevelopment Area.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS (Continued)

Many County programs, particularly Human Services and Community Corrections, are
supported largely by Oregon State revenues, which in turn are income tax based and
dependent on a healthy employment picture. Indicators at the State level are helpful in
predicting future County revenues. Year over year employment growth which had been
above 2.0 percent since the second quarter of 2004 has turned around sharply since the
end of the 2008 fiscal year. This has led to State income tax collections falling markedly for
the two year State budgetary period, ending June 30, 2009. Oregon is now expecting a
significant shortfall in revenue for the 2007-2009 biennium, although this will be relieved
somewhat by the new federal stimulus package. It appears extremely likely that state
funding available to the County going forward will be significantly less than the funding level
for the 2008 fiscal year.

Citizens passed the Public Safety Local Option Levy in November 2008, referred to
above. This measure allows taxes in excess of the tax base for a five year fiscal period
from 2008 through 2012. Money raised by the measure will open existing jail beds,
increase the number of patrol deputies, and fund greater enforcement for
methamphetamine related crimes.

The County continues to evaluate and balance available revenue against expenditures and
service levels, and to seek operating efficiencies. Management emphasizes sound
financial and operational decision-making with a focus on strategic thinking and planning.
Key objectives at present include focusing programs and services to promote the County's
core mission and development of a financial plan that fosters sustainability for the next
three to five years,

14






CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2008

The noles (o the basic financial slatements are an integral parl of this stalement,

13

Workforce
Investment
Total Council of
Governmental Business-Type Primary Clackamas
Aclivities Aclivities Governmeni Counly, Inc.
ASSETS
Cash and investmenis § 210905417 § 49921244 § 260826861 5 20,925
Taxes receivable 5,395,304 2,291 5,397,585 -
Accounis receivable, nel 3,589,373 882910 4472283 -
Assessmenls receivable including inlerest, nel 935,307 1,418,885 2,354,202 -
Grants receivable 13,221,434 ' 13,221,434 814,496
Moles and confracls receivable 7,359,511 40,350 7,390,861 -
Internal balances 1,672,948 (1,672,948} - -
Other assels 1,141,788 2,010,074 3,151,862 11,291
Land held for resale 12,976,941 - 12,976,941 -
Unamorized bond discount and issuance cosl 671,473 308,227 979,700 -
Intangible assels, nel - 1,049,358 1,049,358 -
Capital assets:
Land, easement and conslruclion in progress 447 332 B60 36,205,726 483,628,586 -
Other, nel of accumulated depreciation 298,570,637 158,387,757 457 O67,304 12,079
TOTAL ASSETS 1,003,781,993 249,643,884 1,253,425,877 958,792
LIABILITIES
Accounts and claims payable 22,942,606 3,183,119 26,125,725 925,105
Accrued payroll 8,223,455 367,202 8,500,657 14,041
Deposits 987,659 158,938 1,146,587 .
Uneamed ravenue 34,978,741 300,058 35,278,799 -
Accrued interest payable 540,071 127 648 B67,720 -
Other current liabilities 180,620 770,622 851,242 -
Long-term liabilities:
Partion due or payable within one year;
Compensaled absences 7,232,000 132,167 7,364,167 -
Bonds payable 8,263,768 1,434,553 8,688,321 -
Conlracts and loans payable 838,709 241,671 1,080,380 B
Noles payable - 648,047 648,047 B
Capital leases payable 40,059 - 40,059 -
Portion due or payable after one year:
Compensaled absences 1,037,210 44 056 1,081,266 -
Bonds payable 109,996,780 21,323,706 131,320,486 -
Coniracls and loans payable 12,084 107 2,171,992 14,266,009 -
OPEB liability 6,687 646 - 6,687 646 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 214,043,431 30,903,780 244,947,211 939,146
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, nel of ralated debi 608,482, 281 170,266,221 778,750,502 -
Restricted:
Debt service 276177 4872482 5,148,659 -
Acquisition and development 24,194,094 - 24,194,094 -
Unrestricled 156,786,010 43,599,401 200,385,411 19,646
TOTAL NET ASSETS 7BD.738562 5 218,740,104 $ 1,00B.478666 S 19,646
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
R TH! H L]
Mol Revonue (Expenas] and
Frogram Revenues Changs in Mol Azspts
Component
Primary Govemmeni Lhni
Fowes, Fines, and Cperafing Capital
Charpes ot Gramnis gnd Granis and Govermmental Business-Type
ACTIVITIES Expenses Senvices Canlribusions Contiibidions Achwlies Ackvilies Todads WICCD
Primary governmom:
Goveinmenlsl activities
Genoral government $ 4Ds2MS 5 11945557 % 1.4900437 £ 5  (16.BOED41} % - % (16, B06,041] &
Public pralectian BB, 172,022 4,171 464 16,152,222 . (BT, H48.336) . [E7.B48,336)
Public ways and lacilives 40,228 623 6,694,044 18327312 31,966,004 16,958,737 B 16,958,737
Healih and saniiation 62,921,860 BET 104 51,269,189 - {3,485 55T - {3,485 557)
Culbure and recngation 11,974,851 5,202,642 235490 B {3,617, 348] = {3.617,348)
Educalion 7,606,660 350,353 1,578,978 - (5,677,337 - {5.877,337)
Economs developmenl 15,494,522 618,525 11,055,647 . 13,620,350) . {3.820,250)
Indorest and Fscal chasges 6.168.736 . - . {6,158 736) - {6,198, 735}
Total governmental activiias 271,948,338 A7.340.688 112,138,677 31,966,004 150,454, 968} - 19@.194.%5!
Business-lype BCliviies
Samilory sewer and surlace walar 24,773,913 20,455 448 = © 352060 - 5,103,604 5,103,604
Housing asskslance 18,504,232 14,460,360 3.006,230 A48 825 . |562.808) (562,808}
Gatl 2,321,301 2,501,556 . - - #80,255 40,255
Lighting 1,676,201 1,722,537 . . - 45,256 46,256
Tetad busingss lype activities AT.275.727 49,508 910 3,006,230 9.6827.894 - 5.067.307 5,067.307
Total primory government 11 gggpﬁg i ‘.fg-.aﬁa 568§ 115 144 m? - 41.1‘% (4,454 9E0) 06T 307 [B5.427.661] -
Componom wndl:
Waorklorce Invesiment Councd
of Clackamas Counly, Inc. 5 Jae6822 8 - 3 J468917 % - . - - 2,065
GENERAL REVENUES
Property taxes |evied far;
General puposes B1.960.906 . 81,960,808 -
Public profecticn 12,507,284 - 12,507,284 -
Culire and recrealion 4,545,560 o 4 Ba% 560 -
Redevelopmen| districts 9,801,576 . 6,801,576 -
Lisrany dobl senice 114,841 - 114,541 -
Cahar lases nal restricied o specific programs 4,951,117 - 4,951,117 -
Gain on deposal ol assels 1,887,760 . 1,887,760 -
Earrings an invesimanis 10,043,884 25245398 12,568,880 -
Miscellaneous 3,776,380 1,548,185 5,324,569 .
TRANSFERS 207,317 1207317} -
Total general rovenuos and ransfors 129,896,725 3 BES AER 133,762,593
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 5,401,757 6.833.175 48332032 2085
HET ASSETS, June 30. 2007, as praviowsty regored 749,252,527 205,806,879 955,054,456 17,551
RESTATEMENT 1064278 - 1,084,278 -
HET ASSETS. June 30, 2007, as restated T50. 235,805 209,806,929 960.143,734 17.551
NET ASSETS. Juno 30, 2008 S _TEOTIBSSD 5 METAOA0A & 1 O064TEEGE & 19,546

The notes 1o Ihe basic finencial stalemonts are an integral pan of this statoment
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The noles lo the basic financial slalemenis are an inlegral part of this slatemeni.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2008

TOTAL FUND BALANCE § 166,292,417

Tatal nel assels shown in the Statement of Net Assels and the Slatement of Activilies are
differen| because;

Capilal assels are not financial resources for budgetary purposes and therefore are not
reported in the governmental funds, 740,373,031

A portion of the County's receivables are collected after year-end; but they are not collected
soon enough to be available as financial resources for the current year. The revenues
related to these recelvables are deferred and nol reporied in the governmenial funds. 13.784,478

Compensaled absences are not recorded as governmental fund liabilities (7,640,543)

Long-term assels, such as bond discount and issuance costs, are not reported as govermmental
fund assets and liabilities not payable in the current year are nol reporied as governmental
fund liabiliies. Interest on long-lerm debl is not accrued in the governmental funds, but
ralher is recognized as an expenditure when it is due. These long-lerm assels and liabilities

consist of;
Bond discount and issuance costs 671,473
Accrued interes! payable (540,071)
Bonds payable, net of bond premium (118,260, 548)
Conlracis, notes, and loans payable (12,932 816)
Capital leases payable (40,058)
Total effect of long-term assels and liabilities (131,102,021)
OPERB liability is not recognized as a governemntal fund liability (6,687, 646)

Internal service funds are used by management lo charge the cosls of insurance, faciliies
management, risk management, and other services to individual funds. Their assels and

liabilities are included in the Statement of Nel Assets, 14,608,846
TOTAL NET ASSETS 5 ?EQ,TEB‘EEZ

The noles lo the basic financizl slalements are an inlegral par of this stalement.
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The noles to the basic inancial stataments are an indegral par of (his stalement.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $(29,651.120)
The change in net assels reported in the Statement of Activities is different because:
Government funds report capilal outlay as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Aclivilies

the cost of those assets is capitalized. Their value is allocated over thelr estimated useful
lives and reporied as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay $ 96,196,925
Depreciation (21,51 4.512! 74,682,413
Disposals of capital assels (300,893)

Long-term debl principal payments are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds
and issuance of long-term debt is recorded as an other financing source. In the Statement
of Activities issuance of long-term debl reduces net assels and the payment of long-term
debt principal increases net assels.

Issuance of long-lerm debt (8,000,000)
Payment of long-term debt principal 8,845,526
Bond premium (6,788)

Cosl of issuing new debt is recorded as an expenditure in the governmental funds bul is
capitalized and amorized over the life of the bonds in the Statement of Activilies. (17,973)

Capital lease and contract principal payments are recorded as expenditures in the governmental
funds and issuance of capital leases and contracts are recorded as an other financing source.
In the Statement of Activilies issuance of capilal leases and contracts reduces nel assels and
the payment of capital lease and contract principal increases nel assels.
Payment of capilal lease and contract principal 890,756

In the Statement of Aclivities interest is accrued on long-term debl and capital leases and the
expense reduces nel assets. In the governmental funds interest expense is only recognized
when il s due, 6,717

Receivables thal do not meet the measurable and available crileria are nol recognized as
revenue in the current year in the governmental funds. In the Stalement of Aclivities they
are recognized as revenue when levied or earned. 2,051,809

Compensated absences are recognized as expenditures in the governmental funds when they
are paid. In the Statement of Aclivilies compensated absences are recognizes as expenses

when they are earned. (12,282)
Accrued inleres| receivable on noles and conlracls receivable is recognized as revenue when

collected in the governmental funds and as eamed in the Statement of Nel Assets. (473,796)
OPEB expense nol recognized on the governmental fund statemenis (6.687,646)

Internal service funds are used by management lo charge the costs of insurance, facilities
managemenl, risk managemenl, and other services to individual funds, The net income of

internal service funds is reporied as a governmenial activity. {1,925,066)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 39.401.757

The notes to the basic financial statemenis are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS
Cumant assals:

Cash and cash aquivalenls
Cash wilh fiscal agent
Investmanis

Accounls recelvable, net
Taxss recelvable
Assossmonls recoivalio
D from othver funds
Other assels

Currenl azsels - unresinclad

Rastrictod cumont assols;

Cash and cash equivalents
Caaly with fezcal agen

Curront assets - resirictad

Tolal cumant assots

Moncument pasels:

Connection changos rocoivablo

Assesemants recelvable

Caontracts raceivalie

Capital agsols, nat

Inlangitle assots, net

Unamorized bond discount and issuance cos!

Noncusrent assals - unrestricted
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Currenl liabilities:

Accounts and clalms payabla
Accrued payrol
Due o other lunds
Compensaled absences
DCeposita
Acensed iniorest payable
Dalemad ravenus
Currenl partion:
Bonds payobie
Contracts and loans payabia
Nole payable
Other currend liabllilles

Tolal camvenl Eabilibes

Honowmant Eobililies:

Compensalad absancas

Bonds payable
Conlracts, nates and lopns payable
Imerfund loan payakie

Tolal noncwrent Kabilies
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Investad in copital assols, ol of relaled detb
Resiricied for detit service
Unmasarad

TOTAL NET ASSETS

EROPRIETARY FLINOS
STATEMENT OF FUND KET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 3008
Gavermnmental
Business Type Ackvilies « Enterprine Funds Y Activilies
Sarinco Walar
Clackamas Cleckamas Managemani Housing
County County Tri-City Agancy of Authority of  Stonae Crogk
Sarvice Service Senice Clickamas Clackamas  Goll Course Imemal
Déslrict No. 1 Cisirict No, 5 Désirict Caunly Couwnly Fund Tolals Sandes Funds
L 3,538,112 § 1204873 § 10971058 £ 200867 % 1323733 5 98807 5 1733TASD 5§ 14878678
= - = 462,841 462,641 -
22,222,009 - - 4,102,161 26,326,080 -
- - 635, 168 11.002 174,230 - 824,358 257,143
. s 2,291 = - H 2,201 -
52,007 a5,161 - - * - 147,168 -
5 ¥ & - . - - 754,920
1.681.309 - 2122 2624 110080 243,930 2010074 198,404
27505317 1,200,034 11,614,635 214 493 6172845 312,748 47,110,070 15,887,154
1,785,864 - &7.791 - 2,431,938 4,275,501 -
- = - = 1,618,512 1,519,512 =
1,785 BE4 - 57.791 - 3,551,448 - 5,765,103 -
25,281,181 1,200,034 11.672.426 214,483 Il'.'.'IE-iEB 312,746 52 805,173 15 867,154
£b.514 = = = = E8.514 -
1,217 - - = 12T T2 .
40,350 - - - - 40,350 -
122,745,201 1,238,724 43,486,562 85,566 n,728.a08 1306121 185,663,483 5,510,465
BO1.716 - 24T 642 = - 1,048,358 -
56,194 : .. 732003 20,030 308,227 -
124,973,702 1,239,724 43,734,804 85,988 20,960,912 TA18.751 158.411.8589 5.539.466
154,284,083 2,526,750 55,407 0030 300458 31,085,205 1.729.487 251,316,832 21,436 820
1,986,599 81,887 208,391 27417 Bre.815 = 3,183,118 4,941,355
AT, 202 . - - = - 367,202 B18,616
720,558 .20 - - - 207,917 1,008,267 628,136
- . - - 132,167 - 132,167 501,625
- - - = 158,938 = 158,808 -
i BET - 7.578 = = 15404 127 649 -
200,621 - - - 9437 - 300,058 -
814,553 - - = 270,000 250,000 1,434,553 -
165,507 - 41,304 - 34,860 - 241,671 -
BAR,D4AT - - - - - GaB 04T -
6,038 - - 10 164.576 - TT0.6aa -
5152891 lﬂ.lgﬁ 257,273 27 427 2.248,793 B3x T2 5.‘3'.'2.39! ﬁ,m
. - - 44,086 = 44,056 127,042
7,456,051 = ™~ = A.717,803 5,149,012 21,323,708 -
1,147,772 . 326,549 - 684,671 - 2,171,902 -
- F . 654,601 - 664,681 -
8,504,583 = 330,549 = 10,117,211 5,149,012 24 I 435 127,042
13.75?'&4 153,188 G068 Bx2 27427 12 350,004 5.6401.733 J2.576.728 6,817,774
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25,507,318 1,126 B46 11,796,658 187 DER 5,339.480 0025 43,588 401 0,069,380
LERL220 S 2376370 5 54810208 5 273073 5 IA7S01 S 2nd477es S RIRZ40i0s 5 14608845,

The nolas to e basic Enancial slatamants ane an inlegral part of this statomant,
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

Pension
Trust Fund Agency Fund

ASSETS
Cash and investments ] 692,545 £ 10,425,750
Property laxes receivable - 20,097,065
Total assets 692,545 30,522,815
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 50,524 -
Amounis held in trust - 30,522 815
Total liabilities 50,524 30,522,815
MNET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS 5 642,021 5 -

The notes lo basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
PENSION TRUST FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

ADDITIONS:
Contributions 5 652,276
Interest income 21,469
TOTAL ADDITIONS 673,745
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefit payments and withdrawals 487 437
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 186,308
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS - June 30, 2007 455,713
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS - June 30, 2008 g 642,021

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT SEPTEMBER 15, 2000 ISSUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
QOriginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Assessment principal and interest $ 135,000 5 135,000 §$ 150,910 % 15,910
Miscellaneous:
Interest 2,000 2,000 5,669 3,669
TOTAL REVENUES 137,000 137,000 156,579 19,579
EXPENDITURES:
Debt service;
Interest and fiscal charges 226,063 226,063 91,000 135,063
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (89,0863) (89,063) 65,579 154,642
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 89,063 89,063 101,958 12,895
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 b - 5 - % 167,537 % 167,537
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

800 MHz RADIO SYSTEM DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Charges to other governments
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
$ 1,573635 § 1,573,635 § 1,381,626 § (192,009)
225 225 - (225)
1,673,860 1,573,860 1,381,626 (192,234)
1,600,000 1,600,000 1,600,000 -
40,000 40,000 40,000 -
1,640,000 1,640,000 1,640,000 -
(66,140) (66,140) (258,374) (192,234)
66,140 66,140 258,375 192,235
$ - b -5 1 8 1
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
PUBLIC SERVICE EUILDING DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Criginal Final Actual Budget
REVEMUES:
Rents and royalties $ B45740 § B45740 § B4A5T41 § 1
Interest 6,084 6,084 5,728 {356)
TOTAL REVENUES 851,824 851,824 851,469 (355)
EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:
Principal 160,000 160,000 160,000 -
Interest 706,015 706,015 706,015 “
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 866,015 866,015 866,015 -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (14,191) (14,191} (14,546) (355)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (4,191) (4,191) (4,546) (355)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 4,191 4,191 10,111 5,920
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 ] - & - & 5565 § 5,565
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY., OREGON
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES BUILDING DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Interest

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget

- & - & 26276 & 26,276
1,215,000 1,215,000 1,215,000 -
2,555,814 2,555,814 2,555,614 -
3,770,814 3,770,814 3,770,814 -
(3,770,814) (3,770,814) {3,744,538) 26,276
3,770,814 3,770,814 3,770,814 -
- - 26,276 26,276
5 - 5 25,2& b 26,276
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

PUBLIC SAFETY TRAINING CENTER DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Interest

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in

MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), June 30, 2007
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
- % - % (B,483) § (B,463)
185,000 185,000 185,000 -
189,115 189,115 189,115 -
- 374,515 - 374,515
374,115 748,630 374,115 374,515
(374,115) {748,630) (382,578) 366,052
374,115 748,630 757,093 8,463
- - 374,515 374,515
- N (374,515) (374,515}
- 8 - 8 - 8 -
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

CLACKAMAS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY -
CLACKAMAS TOWN CENTER TAX INCREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
QOriginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Property laxes $ 7,390,100 & 7,390,100 & 8,108,105 § 718,005
Interest 325,947 325,947 1,411,856 1,085,909
Miscellaneous 10,000 10,000 18,814 8,814
TOTAL REVENUES 7,726,047 7,726,047 0,538,775 1,812,728
EXPENDITURES:
Highways and streets
Debt service:
Principal payments 6,261,000 6,261,000 5,275,526 885,474
Interest and fiscal charges 200,000 200,000 1,580,857 (1,380,857)
Reserve for fulure expenditures 12,039,931 12,039,931 - 12,038,931
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,500,931 18,500,931 6,856,383 11,644,548
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (10,774,884) (10,774,884) 2,682,392 13,457,276
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out (38,333,000)  (38,333,000) (2,000,000) 36,333,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (49,107,884) (49,107,884) 682,392 49,790,276
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 49,107,884 49 107,884 55,581,095 6,473,211
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 g - & - 56,263,487 $ 56,263,487
ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA (US GAAP BASIS):
Bond proceeds fransfered to
another governmental entity {35,333,000)
Property taxes susceplible to accrual
recognized as revenue on the US GAAF
basis 58,182
FUND BALANCE - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008 5 20,088,669
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

CLACKAMAS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY -
CLACKAMAS INDUSTRIAL AREA TAX INCREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Qriginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Property taxes i3 - 5 - B 58 % 58
Interest - = 1,047,196 1,047,196
TOTAL REVENUES - - 1,047 254 1,047,254
EXPENDITURES:
Highways and streets
Reserve for future expenditures 7,804,435 7,804,435 - 7.804,435
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (7.804,435) (7,804,435) 1,047,254 8,851,689
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out (20,000,000)  (20,000,000)  (14,623,983) 5,376,017
MNET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (27,804 435) (27,804 ,435) (13,576,729) 14,227 706
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 27,804 435 27,804,435 28,362,908 558,473
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 b - & - 14,786,172 § 14,786,179

ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA (US GAAP BASIS):
Interfund loan recognized as a receivable on
the US GAAP basis 450,000

FUND BALANCE - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008 $ 15,236,179
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

CLACKAMAS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY -
GOVERNMENT CAMP TAX INCREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Criginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Properly taxes $ 904000 F 904000 % 1,203426 F 299,426
Interest 40,000 40,000 75,365 35,365
Miscellaneous - - 2,143 2,143
TOTAL REVENUES 944,000 944 000 1,280,934 336,934
EXPENDITURES:

MMaterials and services -
Reserve for future expenditures 239,577 239,577 - 239,577
EXCESS OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES 704,423 704,423 1,280,934 576,511
OTHER FINANCING USES:

Transfers out (1,500,000) (1,500,000) (1,500,000) -

MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (795,577) (795,577) (219,066) 576,511
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 785,577 795,577 1,127,341 331,764
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 3 - 5 g 908,275 5 908,275

ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA (US GAAP BASIS):
Property taxes susceplible to accrual
recognized as revenue on the US GAAP
basis 8,479

FUND BALANCE - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008 & 916,754
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

CLACKAMAS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY -
NORTH CLACKAMAS REVITALIZATION AREA TAX INCREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BEUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Qriginal Final Actual Budget
REVEMUES:
Properly taxes § 383000 % 383,000 § 393035 § 10,035
Interest - - 294 294
Miscellaneous - - 734 734
TOTAL REVENUES 383,000 383,000 394,063 11,063
EXPENDITURES:
FPublic ways and facilities:
Reserve for future expenditures 3,000 3,000 - 3,000
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 380,000 380,000 394,063 14,063
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out {380,000) (380,000) (345,709) 34,291
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - 48,354 48,354
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 - - - -
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 3 - 5 - 48354 & 48,354
ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GEMNERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA (US GAAP BASIS):
Property taxes susceptible to accrual,
recognized as revenue on the US GAAP basis 2,903
FUND BALANCE - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008 5 51,257
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NORTH CLACKAMAS PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT -
SERIES 2000 DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVEMNUES:
Interest

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service
Principal
Interast

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
Transfers in

MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008
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Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
- 3,790 3 3,790
365,000 365,000 365,000 -
460,901 460,901 388,558 72,343
825,901 825,901 753,558 72,343
(825,801) (825,901) (749,768) 76,133
775,000 775,000 775,000 -
{50,901) (50,901) 25,232 76,133
50,901 50,901 45382 {5,509)
- - 70624 & 70,624




CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
ESTACADA AREA COUNTY SERVICE DISTRICT FOR LIBRARY SERVICES DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Property taxes $ 112457 5 112457 § 114812 § 2,355
Interest 1,000 1,000 1,747 747
Miscellaneous - - 218 218
TOTAL REVENUES 113,457 113,457 116,777 3,320
EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:
Principal 45,000 45,000 45,000 -
Interest 77,900 77,900 77,900 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 122,900 122,800 122,900 -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (9,443) (9,443) (6,123) 3,320
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 9,443 9,443 11,513 2,070
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 5 - & - 5390 & 5,390
ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA (GAAP BASIS):
Property taxes susceptible to accrual, recognized
as revenue on the GAAP basis 784
FUND BALANCE, as of June, 30, 2008 (GAAP basis) 3 6,174
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NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds account for revenue derived primarily from grants and
transfers from other funds. Funds included in this fund category are:

= Local Improvement District Capital Projects Fund

« Clackamas County Development Agency:

Clackamas Town Center Development Area Fund
Clackamas Industrial Development Area Fund
Government Camp Development Area Fund

MNorth Clackamas Revitalization Area Fund
« North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District:
Capital Projects Fund

Capital Asset Reserve Fund
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVEMNUES:
Assessments:
Assessment principal 3 25000 & 25000 % 3521 % (21.479)
Assessment interest 3,000 3,000 808 (2,192)
Total assessments 28,000 28,000 4329 (23,671)
Miscellaneous:
Interest 17,700 17,700 17,680 (10)
TOTAL REVENUES 45,700 45,700 22,019 (23,681}
EXPENDITURES:
Public ways and facilities:
Materials and services 226,000 226,000 594 225,306
Contingency 291,878 291,878 - 291,878
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 517,878 517,878 694 517,184
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (472,178) (472,178) 21,325 493,503
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 472178 472,178 466,413 (5,765)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 3 - & - % 487738 % 487,738

134



CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

CLACKAMAS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY -
CLACKAMAS TOWN CENTER DEVELOPMENT AREA FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - EUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVEMNUES:
Intergovernmental $§ 410000 §$ 410000 $ 626390 § 216,390
Interest 350,000 350,000 483,750 133,750
Charges for services 20,000 20,000 31,884 11,884
Miscellaneous 70,000 70,000 63,896 {6,104)
TOTAL REVENUES 850,000 850,000 1,205,920 355,920
EXPENDITURES:
Fublic ways and facilities:
Materials and services 1,748,049 1,748,049 1,020,557 727,492
Capital outlay 50,411,000 50,411,000 4,295,555 46,115,445
Contingency 8,073,000 8,073,000 - 8,073,000
Reserve for fulure expenditures 551,455 551,455 - 551,455
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 60,783,504 60,783,504 5,316,112 55,467,392
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (59,933,504) (59,933,504) (4,110,192) 55,823,312
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers In* 42,333,000 42,333,000 6,000,000 (36,333,000)
Land sale proceeds - - 1,209,439 1,209,438
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 42,333,000 42,333,000 7,209,439 (35,123,561)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (17,600,504) {17,600,504) 3,098 247 20,699,751
FUND BALAMCE, June 30, 2007 17,600,504 17,600,504 8,619.015 (8,981,489)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 S - % - 11,718,262 § 11,718,262

ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA (US GAAP BASIS):
Land held for resale 6,552,820
FUND BALANCE - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008 $ 18,271,082

*Includes repayment of interfund loan in amount of 54,000,000,

135



CLACKAMAS COUNTY. OREGON

CLACKAMAS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY -
CLACKAMAS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AREA FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUMNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Aclual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental -] - 5 - % 180,202 § 180,202
Interest 150,000 150,000 107,934 (42,066)
Miscellaneous - - 107,943 107,943
TOTAL REVENUES 150,000 150,000 396,079 246,079
EXPENDITURES:
Public ways and facilities:
Materials and services 504,092 504,002 450,096 53,998
Capital outlay 3,160,000 3,160,000 724,985 2,435,015
Contingency 6,240,700 6,240,700 - 5,240,700
Reserve for fulure expendilures 1,362,511 1,362,511 - 1,362,511
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,267,303 11,267,303 1,175,081 10,092,222
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES {11,117,303) {11,117,303) {779,002) 10,338,301
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 20,022,950 20,022,950 14,646,933 (5,376,017)
Transfers out* {10,376,017) (10,376.017) _ (10,376,017) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 9,646,933 0,646,933 4,270,916 (5,376,017)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,470,370) (1,470,370) 3491914 4,962,284
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007* 1,470,370 1,470,370 1,899,437 429 067
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 b - 3 - 5391,351 § 5,391,351
ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA (US GAAP BASIS):
Land held for resale 6,161,024
FUND BALANCE - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008 % 11,552,375

*Includes repayment of interfund loan in amount of $4,000,000.

**Reclassified for land held for resale.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

CLACKAMAS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY -
GOVERNMENT CAMP DEVELOPMENT AREA FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Qriginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Interest 3 15000 % 15,000 5 118927 § 103,927
Miscellaneous - - 12 12
TOTAL REVENUES 15,000 15,000 118,939 103,939
EXPENDITURES:
Fublic ways and facilities:
Materials and services 311,082 311,082 252,075 59,007
Capital outiay 3,800,000 3,800,000 2,263,067 1,536,933
Debt service 45,000 45,000 41,208 3,792
Contingency 491,341 491,341 - 491,341
Reserve for future expenditures 125,000 125,000 - 125,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,772,423 4,772,423 2,556,350 2,216,073
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (4,757.,423) (4,757 ,423) (2,437.411) 2,320,012
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (3,257 ,423) (3,257,423) (937,411) 2,320,012
FUND BALAMNCE, June 30, 2007 3,257,423 3,257,423 4,090,483 833,060
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 5 - 5 - § 3153072 § 3,153,072
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

CLACKAMAS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY -
NORTH CLACKAMAS REVITALIZATION AREA FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Qriginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Interest 5 - & 25957 & 25,957
EXPENDITURES:
Public ways and facilities:
Materials and services 166,400 166,400 222544 % (56,144 )
Capital outlay 345,000 345,000 - 345,000
Contingency 125,150 125,150 - 125,150
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 636,550 636,550 222 544 414,006
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (636,550) (636,550) (196,587) 439,963
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 380,000 380,000 345,709 (34,291)
Transfers out (22,950) (22,950) (22,950) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 357,050 357,050 322,759 (34,291)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (279,500) (279,500) 126,172 405,672
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 279,500 279,500 210,865 (68,635)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 5 - - 337,037 & 337,037
ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA (US GAAP BASIS):
Interfund loan recognized as a payable on
the US GAAF basis (450,000)
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008 3 (1 12,9-53!
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NORTH CLACKAMAS PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT -

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - EUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Interest
Grants

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Public ways and facilities:
Materials and services
Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Full faith and credit bonds issued
Bond premium
Transfers in
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

138

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
§ 7000000 S 7000000 % 4093728 § (2,906,272)
35,000 35,000 123,133 88,133
2,366,000 2,366,000 68,373 (2,297,627)
9,401,000 9,401,000 4,285,234 (5,115,766)
- - 107,911 (107,911)
15,968 478 15,968,478 9,208,769 6,758,709
15,968,478 15,968,478 9,316,680 6,651,798
(6,567,478) (6,567,478) (5,031,446) 1,536,032
- - 8,000,000 8,000,000
- 17,998 17,988
5,520,787 5,520,787 1,318,382 (4,202,405)
5,520,787 5,520,787 9,336,380 3,815,593
(1,045,691) {1,046,691) 4,304,934 5,351,625
1,046,691 1,046,691 796,230 (250,461)
§ - 5 § 5101164 § 5,101,164




CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NORTH CLACKAMAS PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT -
CAPITAL ASSET RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Interest

EXPENDITURES:
Public ways and facilities:

Materials and services
Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
$ B,000 § 8,000 % 9332 § 1,332
55,000 55,000 4,332 50,668
466,711 466,711 262 557 204,154
521,711 521,711 266,889 254,822
(513,711) (513,711) (257,557) 256,154
200,000 200,000 200,000 .
(313,711) {313,711) (57,557) 256,154
313,711 313,711 250,270 (63,441)

$ - % - & 192713 3§ 192,713
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ENTERPRISE FUND

Stone Creek Golf Course Fund — The Stone Creek Golf Course Fund accounts for the
operation of the County owned golf course.



CLACHKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
STOME CREEK GOLF COURSE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budgel with Final
Qriginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Charges for services: 2,724,485 2749485 § 2,801,556 52,071
Interest 10,000 10,000 6,442 (3,558)
TOTAL REVENUES 2,734 485 2,759,485 2,807,998 48,513
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and services 2,037,168 2,062,168 2,021,283 40,885
Debt service:
Principal 240,000 240,000 245,000 {5,000)
Interest 250,000 250,000 228,445 21,555
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,527,168 2,552,168 2,494 728 57,440
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 207,317 207 317 313,270 105,953
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out (207,317) {207,317) (207,317} -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - 105,953 105,953
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 - - - -
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 - - % 105,953 105,953
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds account for services and activities provided by the County for
other units within and outside the County. Funds included in this category are:

» Self-Insurance Funds:

Self-Insurance Fund - accounts for the dental and short-term disability self-insured
programs, employee assistance and wellness activities, and flexible spending
accounts for health care and dependent care expenses.

Risk Management Claims Fund - accounts for the general liability self-insured
program, workers' compensation self-insured program, and unemployment liability
self-insured program.

« Other Internal Service Funds — account for administration and services, such as
printing, communications, equipment, vehicle and facilities management, provided to
other County funds and other governmental agencies. These funds are as follows:

Cable Administration Fund
Records Management Fund
Facilities Management Fund
Electronic Services Fund
Central Dispatch Fund

Fleet Services Fund
Information Services Fund



OFE'E0SYE S PELEBS LS OLLOFPE S EZPGEDE VS EZO0CDZEE S EE2SOr S LOLIOES vEGLE9 S 992 UEDL § BB YOGEC S
D8E'600'6 LBZ'ERD TLVISE BZ9' LI ZEL'GYS ) GRE'GIE ZIG'ZZE GBS'GEY 99z’ JE9'L BESVOEZ
99v'6ES'S FAR A 869'881'E ELE'8EE 045084 BEG'DEL SHL'GL GEG'GZL 2 *
FLLLLE'E og0’LEe OGS EEE LI IBE 6L2'EBL CIPEZLY ELEEK 0L2'v8 g60'vEE'E LLE'EED
ZP0'LEL TOE'ES Son'L E06'6E £6L'8 BSL'0L gLE' 0SS - =
ZELDBD'D AN O6F'LEE FLE'LPE 9BG'GLL SLEZ0F LG0°LF oaL'es QG0 PEEE LLE'ZED
_mm_.“mmw = all'eg Phe'L EL) BFE'0Z #oc’| o58 [T DZF DEE
BEL'LBLE z N - = x = = OEG'EZBY'E B9Z'662
S29'L05 ZO0'0LE ¥ZL'LE B9E'ZC lG6L'ZE 6al'0r 29’6 SO¥'0Z = *
mrm“m < ZBE'LYE ggz'Ey oreE'all EYE'GE BE6'6L LG0'EE LGPl = gZz'e
LGL°09E'L OvEZ'SLE OEE'BEE ZES'LL oOLE'ZOL OVB'G5E 46" FPE'ZE aLO'PEL £00'kL
029'9ZY Ve 002'20¥'2 Lg'rLLE GLZ LGS L LB0'0LG E g60'8.8 DB0'SHE P6.L'GED TOE'LES'S GLE'LG9'E
0OF'BESS ilg'lg8 HEQ'BEL'E ELE'DEE 0508 BEE'0G CEL'6L SEG'GZ) = *
FELIBE'SL EBE'VLG'L E46'GES SOE'PIE'L LLG'BEL L 0oL a0 COg'COE HSR'ECS EBE'LZS'S GLg'Lca'e
FO¥F'BEL GES'Y 3 BLE'ED EvL'Y - F{¥A) ISB'S LOL'ELE SE0'L
GEZE'¥S.L gaF'L £58'80Y Bra'0nt FEL'SEL LBS'E - L¥E LSE'¥S EL
EbL'LCE g15'L aon'L GZE'0D Zat'az LZ2'0E L28'BE BOL'0L B59' LG -
BL9'9.9'vL 5  9¢L'905'LS OEZL'0LL 0§ GSS'LEDTLS  ESL'ELS'L 5 DEG'EGD S OPR'EEZ S EGR'EMS §  259'18E'C § LLY'0%9E 3
G pung pund pun pun4 pund pung punJy pung pund
sa01E5 SEIMES ymedsig Sadag uswabeusp uswsbeuspuoEnS LUy SLWIEID BIUBINEU|
LD BLLLIOJL) ICEE |ERUETy auonaeg saoe spioaay algen uswsbeuepy -jl@s
H5lY

BOOZ "0 NN 30N UY3IA

1355V L3N 40 LNIWLVLS ONINIENOD
GEERT T EERELE]

NODIH0 "ALNNOD SVNVHIYID

S13SS8V L3N TVLOL

pajsaun
1qap pajERl Jo jau
‘g185sE |E]|dea u) pajsanu)
SL3SSY L3N

SALLMEVIT IV.LOL

ajgefed seoussqe pajesuadwog
SSINNGE] TUBUNIUCN

sEIIE] juaung (2oL

Spun Jayio o) ang
gjqeded swien
ajqefed sasussge pajesuadwon
iouded panooy
ajgeded sjunooay

“SEIQEY JuaLnD

s3aLmav

S13SSV IVLIOL

18U juawdinbg
sj9sse Eden
S]ASSE JUALNIUCH

slassy JUaLN (2101

S]ASSE JAUD

SpUR JaYlo Way) ang

B|QEAIEIE] SIUNCaSY

SUBWNSBAL| PUE YSED
‘51855 UBLnD
S51358Y

142



ﬂ
ara'e0srL 5

FLLTIES L §

EPEESE’L

§ ZOESEET S

EEE'Asr S

—_————

—_—

DLLOYP'E & LOLSLMOE 5 PEGIED 5 DOZUERL §  BEGVORE §
ZLE'EES AL DEE'GES') EZHO L PD'E GLE 206 MELEL'E DOL'ELL BYEBEE EAT N EZL'S0L'E y0L'CEE'T
{000'5E6"L) YLy (21B8'v61) £ZF'05E BS0'56E (1E5"0DE) GEE"LL ZRL'0E (isa'2zL'L) {901 LER)
ELB'Z26 n00'se 000'000" L = = % = 509'E69 - [N
(ZeL'508) > - 2 E 5 = - - {zeL's08)
GOa'8EL’ L 000'sE 000'000°E - - SOa"EED = =
(GEG" L¥R'Z) EEn [ZLE'FELL) EZF'0GE HS0'GEL (LES°ROE) G5R'LE (eza'zeal saLg’y)  (rie'szn)
LIE'GOS LED'ES Frrd¥a ZIOVE ZE0'EE - = L6LLL CRO'ZAL Zrl'Eol
BLELES LED'LS gEa'Ll ZIO'VE LIB'6 % L6LLL CRO'ZRE FATNG:T
(iceol) = PES'E - (s6a'12) * = - = o
(o5z'i5e'e) (ELE'0S) (AN TFAY LFEZE SE0'LOL (LES'BOE) BSE'LI (oza‘ogal {EFE'GOE"L) (915" pEZ)
LLE00E VE PSE'EED'D SEbYar'E GEZE'BEG'Y EILFBEL'E GGE'RL0'D GEIF'SEL HISBEL £65'086'y E02'1EE'Z
BESEZEE') 1956'162 [Fd: 5T GEF'BEL O5E'VEL B9E'9L LEO'SE FOOrE .
PORTLEE'EL 62 65F'E HEG'5LE'E 2E0'6LL 0L FEE'L EIG'SEE'Y DiB'Z0E O¥S'vaE = -
BOEVEZ'EL BBE'SLL'S BEE'EEE CRO'0ED ¢ ECR'659 FLG'SEL') VS LGk L9€'0EE - *
ZOLELE"L = = 5 . - = =+ BEE' 056 E02'16E'E
GSG'EPE 0F W ERLE LOE'RPE'S LER'LOZ'S BYb'GOEE BLL'LLL'S FoE LA V56 HE LSE'0LEE LO9'960°E
656 LHE GLE'EL YES'E BRE'VE LObaL ol = - RN OEQ'GFE
15L'909°1 ooa'si . O0E'255'1 - - - LGE'HE - .
ShY'EREEE S OZEVEOE S LI9'SPZE S SPPRASE S EROUEEE £ BSOS S FSELDL 3 - § GIEZO0E §  4S0°MvE'L S
EEET] pund pung pung pund punj pund puny pun pung
SEHABS SEIAIBEG ymedsig BIIADE juswsbeuep  uswesbeuep UoENSLWLPY S| BOURINEL]
U ELLDU) 1884 [enuany D|UIDHE salifjoe SpUODaY 2|qed juswzbeuepy (=l
H5IY

NOS3H0 "ALNNDD SYWYADY 10

WALYLS DNINIBNDD

H00Z '0E 3Unr 'SL3SSY 13N
L00Z 'QE dunr 'S 13SSY 13N
S13SSY L3N NI 3ONYHD

#{g35n) 33034N0OS
ONIINYNI4 HIHLO TYL0L

N0 SIB}EURI]
uj SpEUR |
H535N) SI2UN0S DNITNVNIL ¥IHLO

(535n) S30UNOS DNIDNYNIL
¥3IHLO FH0438 (5507 IWOINI

AWOINI DNILYHILONON TVLOL

B3| jSaia]U)|
s[asse (epden o [esodsip uo (330)) ues
{5507 INOONI DHLLYHILONON

(5507) IWOINI DNILYHILO

SASNILNT DNILVHILO TYLOL

asusdxa uoeIIpOWe pus uoiERsdsg
sayddng
syyeusq sbuy) pue joge
SUNED
*SHSNIHXT DNILYHIL0

SINMIATH DNILYHILO TWLOL

SNOBUBEISHY

anusnal Euaswwasobiegu

saonas o) safiseyn
BINNIATYH DNILYHILO

143



Tiveen

T

3 ESELBR 5 [ir'ebr] S L9FIZy 5 HICEOF H [E4T [T 3 mﬁmn___.mm S AvBEDZ H ‘nEk H
9¥E FEDE BE9'TES [LEERN 851'001 CBEIEE VBEsE [T YELS ERSTLE'L {oFE'Bzl)
Tisivail 150L'5E) 0iS'F [T [T {iaz'eed [T} TZ50 v cig'ee lzvo'val
leat'at) - - (o@e i) € J . * . -

QEE'ZEN'L = L ] = . b i OEG'ZEF'L

SHS'VE S29'LE 0ig's 2455 e rER'R 2] L . =

[Bre"rl JELEE BIEE oan's BED'DI e FiF {zan (5217520 e L)
5T6'80% GHR'GAL COL'B0E {reo'e) {oaa'z) BOOYEZ 0851 11a-g NN GBE'GE £0o'Le
BIS'LE SLF'SE = 069204 [{8L. ¥} - [5] f@ia'2) {roZaLl 05z
[saz'ziL) BBL'SE {zsa'arz) (Fit'ari) 650901 D465 58 (11} 052 44
ELEL Z20'02 fsne's) OLERE LIg'y {oga'tz) {zoz'al {eoE) (rBs'EL) BiL
BEGZEETN LB8'I52 L rEL BRESZL 5T 2L BEE'DL 12052 VT

Eszistel 5 lCwwos  § IeEvmieil 5 biFZEc | §  SEDZEL 5 lESO0nl 5 65E 1L % Tozoogl  § lerGeoc il 5 lalGredl 5
B9l 5 ORIOO05E S OEL QAL S SSFE0L 5 RSLTIS) ﬂ HEG LSO 5 mﬂmww 5 ESOEYS S IENIBEE 5 LIFSESE m
EZ5 545 61 BLLGLE | JETATS VR o kLT ) FZZID) 811 L0 GFLELS 025 S48 Y COOELL P
(15a'asal 8§12 {eoecom LER0ST Log°102 [1: 174 1= OEL'SE B0V ZELGEE {are iso't)
BIFi5 TIE0is =g HTS TiEsr - BT So0eal TRLE
lzEggzn el Trezzrel Teav bet 1] oLl Tave 152 TZio il Toegg) TB0aEr

VBE'G - 1HEL * [-TR4 = = 2

[ea'oenl {rze'zred (eag'gee’t) (Zresh [[-EIA EXT i ] {opa's) fepa‘ci)

CL8'EZ6 COO'SE D00000L GOOERD [Pl
Tz soat - - [FFET]
SOB'EZLL 0O0'SE 000000 GIO'ERS -

[T =13] LR (I 3] 195 T IE'E0% (822°182) 08%IE [EREFE] IR TasaoEn
151'809" L 000’1 u 00Z 255 ¢ . . [T - -
foo'reees) {981 g90's) {ov1 pag) {Lz0'oz0'y) fere Lral lecrares) (E@0agw [Pl =] 1521°52) Leavyind
(b2s°296'1 1) {res'see'e) [{EN% -0} (666002 [ h ] (z61658"y) [[8:Traztd] (nsp'zeEl - -

(eea'rae's) ¥ - - . - - {hegoarel liee'cor'z)
BEHILIGE 5 E9OEINR  § PORBSE'E S CBEGSE S SZOBLYE 5 IG0ESL'S S olo'Dad % - $ ©eFBES'E S BOEE0E S
EE pung pung pung pung pung puny [TLE] LS puny
SRIUDG SIIAING g ARG unwaliouzy unwsbouey L By BT FILINEL]
U] 1884 enuag JUDNIRE LU= SRz ajnea wawabruepy g

N5

BOOZ "OC NN JI0NT HYIA

somanae Buisado wauj ywe Ry
SjlaunEnipe B0 L

BpUNY U0 o] ang

sisadan

apuind sunmy

UL pEEFURtLDg

aied paruaay

snedod sunoay

BASET A0

SPUN) JS0 W03 ang

AQEAsIIAI NIy
SRPES PUR 512550 Ul sallumyD

LOIEINOLE PUT uorRadeg
semmianan Bunerado wo yEm [au o)
[50() owa3u Bugesdo Jpuosn o sluswnEnlpy

(55l awosy Bumadp
SSFLLALDY DNLLYHILD
WOH4 HSYD 13N 01 [s507)
FWO2NI DNLLYHALD 40 NOLLYIIDNOI3Y

002 0L unl 'S1INIWLSIANI ONY HEYD
L00Z "0E 3UNT 'SINIWLSIANI ONY HEYD
ELNTWLEIAN] ONY HEYD NI SDNWHD 13N

BIUSWISAALY UD BAAEI |S3IAI)
FEIILALLDY ONLLSIAN] WML SMOTS HSYD

SFLIALLDY ONIDNYNIE Q3113
ONY LAY WOHS HEWD 13N

SHREE0 [Ende )2 FUS W) R0

FEFED e i vomnbay

SALLIALLDY DNIDNYRIE 021 T3M
ONY TYLIYD WOHA SMOTS HSYD

SALLIALIY DHIDNYHNIL
TVLISWINDN WOl HEWD L3N
EPUN) AY|0 0] SEHSUEL
SRR JEUI0 WO} SIJEURIL
SEFILIALIY DNIDNYHRIL
TULIAYINDN WO SMODTE HSYD

STLINLLTY SHLLYHIA0 WO HEYD LIN

il Bunradg
Eauas 20| SRdodus o) pied yseD
Sa3S putt 5pool o) wisEddns o) ped yeen
oy jeBe) pur suwep Jo) ped yeeD
FIIAIE 0] FRARDRI USED
SSALLIAILIY SHILLYHId0 WOHS EMOTd HEYD



CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
SELF-INSURANCE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVEMNUES:
Charges for services:
Charges to other County funds $ 2099752 § 2,099,752 § 1,847,057 5 (252,695)
Miscellaneous:
Reimbursemenis 244,312 244,312 197,497 (46,815)
Other - - 52,133 52,133
Interest 108,031 108,031 169,142 61,111
Total miscellaneous 352,343 352,343 418,772 66,429
TOTAL REVENUES 2,452,095 2,452,095 2,265,829 (186,266)
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and services 2,731,052 2,731,052 2,391,203 339,849
Reserve for fulure expendilures 298,268 298,268 - 298,268
Contingency 3,572,645 2,766,913 - 2,766,913
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,601,965 5,796,233 2,391,203 3,405,030
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (4,149,870) (3,344,138) {125,374) 3,218,764
OTHER FINANCING (USES):
Transfers out - (B05,732) {805,732) -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (4,149,870) (4,149,870) (931,1086) 3,218,764
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 4,149,870 4,149,870 4,193,972 44,102
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 5 - % - § 3262886 § 3,262866
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
RISK MANAGEMENT CLAIMS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Criginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Charges to other County funds $ 3948083 § 3948083 § 3662320 5 (285754)
Miscellaneous:
Reimbursements 26,000 26,000 8,439 {17,561)
Other - - 189 189
Interest 188,452 188,452 182,085 (6,367)
Total miscellansous 214,452 214,452 190,713 (23,738)
TOTAL REVENUES 4,162,535 4,162,535 3,853,042 (309,493)
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and services 3,703,458 3,703,458 3,497 969 205,489
Reserve for fulure expenditures 1,671,434 1,671,434 - 1,671,434
Contingency 3,613,022 3,613,022 - 3,613,022
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,987,914 8,987,914 3,497,989 5,489,945
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (4,825,379) (4,825,379) 355,073 5,180,452
OTHER FINANCING (USES):
Transfers out {200,000) {200,000) - 200,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (5,025,379) (5,025,373) 355,073 5,380,452
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 5,025,379 5,025,379 4,765,123 (260,256)
FUND BEALANCE, June 30, 2008 5 - 5 - % 5,120,196 % 5,120,196
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
CENTRAL DISPATCH FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BAL ANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal § 1,200,000 & 1,200,000 & 9,000 % (1,191,000)
Slate 953,100 953,100 1,921,357 568,257
Local 17,086 17,086 21,843 4,747
Tolal intergovernmental revenues 2,170,196 2,170,186 1,552,200 (617,996)
Charges for services:
Charges to other County funds 1,951,683 1,951,683 1,953,506 1,823
Charges to others 1,726,039 1,726,039 1,720,942 (5,087)
Total charges for services 3,677,722 3,677,722 3,674,448 (3,274)
Miscellaneous:
Interest 16,000 16,000 34,012 18,012
Other 7,000 7,000 34,890 27,980
Total miscellaneous 23,000 23,000 69,002 46,002
TOTAL REVENUES 5,870,918 5.870,918 5,295,650 (575,268)
EXPENDITURES:
Personal services 4,146,464 4,146 464 4,030,685 115,779
Materials and services 776,475 776,475 755,763 20,712
Capital outlay 30,000 30,000 28,032 068
Contingency 100,000 100,000 - 100,000
Reserve for fulure expenditures 966,934 966,934 - 966,934
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6.019,873 6,019,873 4,815,480 1,204,383
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (148,955) {148,955) 480,170 629,125
OTHER FINANCING (USES):
Transfers out (600,000} (600,000) - 600,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {748,955) (748,955) 480,170 1,229,125
FUND BALAMNCE, June 30, 2007 748,955 748,955 497,459 (251,496)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 5 - & - & 977622 % 977,629
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

ELEET SERVICES FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Charges to other County funds
Charges to others

Total charges for services
Miscellaneous:

Interest
Other

Total miscellansous
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
Personal services
Materials and services
Capital outiay
Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfiers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

152

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
& 2,330,000 F 2,550,000 % 2208945 § (341,055)
26,500 26,500 36,872 10,372
2,356,500 2,576,500 2,245,817 (330,683)
22,000 22,000 17,628 (4,372)
6,500 6,500 8,755 3,255
28,500 28,500 27,383 (1,117)
2,385,000 2,605,000 2,273,200 (331,800)
894,518 894,518 803,888 630
1,642,655 2,112,655 1,815,886 296,669
1,225,000 1,380,176 1,338,699 41,477
230,496 230,496 - 230,496
3,992,669 4,617,845 4,048,573 569,272
(1,607,669) (2.012,845) (1,775,373} 237,472
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
(20,000) (20,000) - 20,000
980,000 980,000 1,000,000 20,000
(627,669) (1,.032,845) (775,373) 257 472
627,669 1,032,845 1,032,845 -
3 - 3 5 257472 § 257472



CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
INFORMATION SERVICES FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
QOriginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
State $ 35000 % 35000 § 15,000 $  (20,000)
Local 25,000 25,000 - {25,000}
Total Intergovernmenial 60,000 60,000 15,000 (45,000)
Charges for services:
Charges fo other County funds 8,441,314 8,441,314 8,281 448 (159,866)
Charges to others - 174,244 413,378 239,134
Total charges for services 8,441,314 8,615,558 8,694,826 79,268
Miscellaneous:
Interest - - 57,037 57,037
Reimbursements 153,276 153,276 72,546 (80,730)
Other - - 69 69
Total miscellaneous 153,276 153,276 129 652 (23,624)
TOTAL REVENUES 8,654,580 8,828,834 8,839,478 10,644
EXPENDITURES:
Personal services 5,095,900 5,210,144 5,115,988 94,155
Materials and services 3,419,091 3,641,091 3,408,345 232,746
Capital outlay 273,700 463,700 393,278 70,422
Contingency 251,375 79,375 - 79,375
Reserve for fulure expenditures 50,000 150,000 - 150,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,090,066 9,544,310 8,917,612 626,698
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (435,476) (715,476) (78,134) 637,342
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 35,000 35,000 35,000 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (400,478) (680,476) (43,134) 637,342
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 400,476 680476 736,430 55,954
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 ] - % - 5 693,296 § 693,296
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Fund — This Fund represents accounts held by the Clackamas County Treasurer
as fiscal agent for cities, school districts, other governments and organizations located
within Clackamas County.

Pension Trust Fund — Sheriff's Office Retiree Medical Fund — This fund provides post-
retirement health care benefits to retiing Peace Officers Association members and
retiring Command Officers.



ASSETS:
Cash and investmenis
Property taxes receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY:
Amounts held in trust

CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITY

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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10,425,750
20,087,065

30,522 815

30,522 815




CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Balance Balance
June 30, 2007 Additions Reclassification June 30, 2008
ASSETS:
Cash and invesiments § 13326492 § {685,140) § (2,215602) % 10,425,750
Property taxes receivable 15,364,101 4,732,964 - 20,087,065
TOTAL ASSETS 5 23.6‘90,593 ’ § 4047824 § (2215602) § 30,522,815
LIABILITY:
Amounts held in trust § 28690593 § 4047824 § (2,215602) & 30,522,815

155



ASSETS:
Cash and investmenis

LIABILITY:
Accounts payable

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST

CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

PENSION TRUST FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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$ 692,545
50,524
b 642,021




CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
SHERIFF'S OFFICE RETIREE MEDICAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Criginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Conlributions b 615406 & 615406 % 52,276 § 36,870
Miscellaneous:
Interest 19,751 19,751 21,469 1,718
TOTAL REVENUES 635,157 635,157 673,745 38,588
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and services 452 8B0 452 880 487 437 (34,557)
Contingency 283,585 283,585 - 283,585
Reserve for future expenditures 425,378 425,378 - 425,378
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,161,843 1,161,843 487 437 674,406
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (526,686) (526,686) 186,308 712,994
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 526,686 526,686 455,713 (70,973)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 3 - 3 - 5 642021 _§ 642,021
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Varance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Licenses and permits b 40,000 § 40,000 § 1,048,490 § 1,008,490
Intergovernmental:
Federal 904,382 904,382 161,535 (742,847)
State 14,885,222 14,885,222 12,307,887 (2,577,235)
Local 2,084,561 2,034,850 103,814 {1,930,836)
Total intergovernmental 17,874,165 17,824,254 12,573,336 {5,250,918)
Charges for services 150,000 150,000 380,470 230,470
Miscellaneous:
Reimbursements 125,279 125,279 169,281 44,002
Interast 100,000 100,000 - (100,000)
Other - - §5,451 65,451
Total miscellaneous 225274 225279 234,732 9,453
TOTAL REVENUES: 18,289,444 18,238,533 14,237,028 (4,002,505)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital oullay 38,307,450 38,307,459 28,619,713 9,687,746
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES {20,018,015) (20,067,928) (14,382 GBS) 5.685,241
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 21167117 21,217,028 14,320,860 (6,896,168)
Transfers out (1.149,102) {1.148,102) (609,227) 539,875
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 20,018,015 20,067,926 13,711,633 (6,356,203)
MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - (671,052) (671,052)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 - - 702,667 702,667
FUND BALAMCE, June 30, 2008 5 - B - 31615 § 31,615
ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA (US GAAP BASIS):
Land held for resale 263,097
FUND BALANCE - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008 b 284 712

CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
DTD CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

** Reclassified for land held for resale.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
CAPITAL PROJECTS RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - EUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental:
Federal ] 572602 $ 1133602 % Jo4.8%2 § (738,710)
Local 408,384 409,384 63,581 {345,803)
Total Intergovernmental 981,986 1,542 986 458,473 {1,084,513)
Charges for services - 278,553 48,400 {230,153)
Miscellaneous:
Interest 300,000 300,000 1,788,754 1,488,754
Other 5,004,526 5,004,526 - (5,004,526)
Tolal miscellaneous 5,304,526 5,304,526 1,788,754 (3,515,772)
TOTAL REVENUES: 6,286,512 7,126,065 2,295,627 {4,830,438)
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and services 10,238,526 9,874,016 975,868 8,898,148
Capital outlay 28,904,371 35,148,517 38,115,327 (2,966,810)
Contingency 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Reserve for futlure expenditures 541,644 162,188 - 162,188
TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 40,684,541 46,184,721 39,091,185 7,093,526
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES {34,398,029) (39,058,6586) (36,795,568) 2,263,088
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 1,682,340 1,784,340 1,524,340 {260,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (32,715,689) (37,274,316) (35,271,228) 2,003,088
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 32,715,689 37,274,316 37,215,533 (58,783)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 $ - - § 1844305 § 1,944,305
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OTHER FINANCIAL SCHEDULES

Other financial schedules include the County's cash receipts and turnovers by the various
elected officials and property tax transactions.



CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

ASSESSOR-TAX DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF CASH ASSETS AND TURNOVERS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Cash on hand, June 30, 2007 ] 75
Receipts:"
Printouts and miscellaneous 105,472
Total receipts and cash on hand 105,547
Turnovers to County Treasurer (105,472)
Cash on hand, June 30, 2008 ] 75

*Departmental cash receipts include agency fund collections which are not recognized as revenue of
County operating funds.
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CLACHAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
COUNTY CLERK

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND TURNOVERS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Cash on hand, June 30, 2007 1 560
Receipts:*
Family violence 66,400
Assessment/Tax state 856,107
OLIS fees 95,123
Recording fees 2 696 B6T
County clerk lien 27,695
Clerk fees 111,008
oLCC 14,390
Overpayment clerk recording 5,949
Owverpayment OLCC 100
Survey collection fee 2,580
Family court services 26,560
Land corner 802,370
GIs 403,304
Total receipts and cash on hand 5,108,983
Turnovers to County Treasurer (5,108,423)
Cash on hand, June 30, 2008 & 560

*Departmental cash receipts include agency fund collections which are not recognized as revenue of
County operating funds.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

SHERIFF = CIVIL AND CRIMINAL

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND TURNOVERS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Cash on hand, June 30, 2007

Receipts:”
Sheriff's fees
Concealed weapons charges
Extradition reimbursement
Other

Total receipts and cash on hand
Turnovers to County Treasurer and other agencies

Cash on hand, June 30, 2008

20

132,678
158,870
1,622
28

283,218

(293,168)

a0

*Departmental cash receipts include agency fund collections which are not recognized as revenue of

County operating funds.
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Tourism Development Council Fund — The Tourism Development Council Fund
accounts for the revenue and expenditures associated with the development of tourism in
the County.

North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District Fund — The North Clackamas Parks
and Recreation District Fund administers the construction or acquisition of parks and
recreational facilities, provides recreational programs, and maintains new and existing
parks and open spaces.

North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District Nutrition and Transportation Fund
— The Nutrition and Transportation Fund was created to account for receipts from
donations and fundraising activities and expenditures related to the District's programs of
providing meals and transportation services to elderly citizens living in the District.

North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District SDC Charge Fund — The Systems
Development Charge Fund was created to account for the fees collected from new
developments in the District to help defray the costs associated with building new capital
facilities to meet the needs created by growth.

North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District SDC Charge Zone 1 Fund — This
Fund was created to account for System Development Charges received for the area
within the City of Milwaukie.

North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District SDC Charge Zone 2 Fund - This
Fund was created to account for System Development Charges received for the area
west of Interstate 205, not included in the City of Milwaukie.

North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District SDC Charge Zone 3 Fund — This
Fund was created to account for System Development Charges received for the area
east of Interstate 205.

Clackamas County Enhanced Law Enforcement District Fund — The Clackamas
County Enhanced Law Enforcement District administers additional law enforcement
services in the unincorporated urban area of Clackamas County.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED .IUNE 30, 2008

QOFC Family
Children Clackamas Community County Development Dog Community Court
Road And Families County Fair Caorrectians School Services Control Sohttions Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
REVENLES:
Property tazes S - 8 4 - 5 -5 -5 - 5 2 ] b
Other taxes . . . - . * ! 3 =
Licenses and permits - - - - - 4,586,184 480,983 - 20,760
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties - - - 804,803 138 4,600 8,735 - -
Spacial assessment collections . . . . . . - . .
Interest 502,001 12,947 4,580 136,953 7.505 22247 13,563 - -
Intergovernmental 21,152,525 3,403,120 40,405 7.187.334 1,578,970 - - 5,162,845 26,431
Charges for services 4,466,524 158,211 866,205 408,078 - 738 63,735 814,237 045,490
Conlributions - 102,172 - - - - 7,488 1,582 -
Miscellaneous 165,050 1,143 161,271 8,288 - 16,850 3,158 431,100 -
TOTAL REVENUES 26,286,500 3,677,509 1,081,551 8,633,454 1,586,622 4,830,822 570,642 6,021,763 608,711
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government - - - - - 5,582,066 - - 706,800
Public protection - - - 10,391,629 - - - - -
Public ways and facilities 22,040,161 - - 0 - . - - -
Heahh and sanitalion - 3,806,115 - - - - 1.207,432 - -
Economic development - - - - - - - 6,572,165 -
Culture and recreation - - 1,405,253 . . - - - -
Education - - % L 1,546,511 - = - -
Debt sarvice:
Principal - - . - - - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges . = < 2 - - _ i
Capital outlay 1,125,871 - 70,407 16,820 - 101,580 - 56.008
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 23,166,032 3,806,115 1,484,750 10,400,750 1,546,571 5,084,040 1,207,432 8,828,174 760,800
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 3,120,868 {128,518) (403,198) (1,775.304) 40,051 (853,124) (628,790) (G0B,411) {90,098}
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 57,608 - - 1,605 - 4,080 1,115 333 -
Transfers in 422,610 203,087 370,000 2,260,785 - - 785,217 428,416 125,000
Transfers oul (102,000) - - - - - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 378,218 203,087 370,000 2,271,470 - 4,060 766,332 020,749 125,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 3,480,086 74,571 (33,188) 466,160 40,051 {049,084) 157,542 23,318 28,802
FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2007 10,411,867 115,536 44,750 2,668,106 12,138 5,818 421 79,367 410,185 157,820
FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2008 $ 13,010,851 § 190.107 11,551 5 3,184,272 & 52100 § 4,960,357 § 236,800 441,52) 104,722
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ACKAMA, NTY, OR N

NONMA.IOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

OMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHAN IN FUND BALANCES {Contlnun

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Sunnyside
Human Clackamas Public Land Sunnyside Village Park
Services Law Library Mental Heatth Comer Social Community Village Park Road Frontage
Administration Library Network Parks Planning Organization Preservation Services Envimnment Acquisition Canstruction
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES:
Proparty taxes 5 - 8 - § - - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - % - § -
Other laxes - - - - - - . . - - -
Licenses and permits - - - 264,026 23,040 - 50,550 546 980 - -
Fines, lorfaitures, and penalties - - - - - - - - 15,822 - -
Special assessment collections - - - - - - - - - . -
Interest 40,847 20,245 35,297 - - 120,854 60,526 11,170 64,824 1.271 4.203
Intergovermmental 11,702 - 87,885 1,254,665 311,552 0,254,809 # 12,602,549 385,118 #* =
Charges [or services - 350,226 15,000 208,181 1,066,378 5,050 600,746 3,036,017 1,384,455 - -
Contribulions - - - 1,217 - - - 2,194 . . -
Miscellaneous - 11 25,545 13,940 8,713 - 6,362 58,143 139 - -
TOTAL REVENUES 01,549 370,482 163,727 1,832,035 1,400,683 9,301,603 1,035,184 16,611,518 1,051,328 11,271 4,282
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General govermment 480,259 - - . . - - - - - -
Public prolection . - - - - - - - - - &
Public ways and facilties - - - - - - - - - - -
Health and sanitatian - - - . - 8,260,048 . 17,485,322 1,027,348 . -
Economic development - - - - 4,645,200 - - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - 2,751,740 - - 1,178,527 - - ] E
Educatien - 352,003 5,714,406 - - - . . . . 2
Detn service:
Principal - - - - - - - - - - N
Interest and fiscal charges - - - - - - N - & = %
Capital outlay . - 38,578 1,016,208 . . 19,710 . . . .
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 480,250 352,003 5,753,984 3,770,038 4,645,200 6,260,940 1,108,237 17,485,322 1,027,340 - -
EXCESS {DEFICIENCY} OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES {410,710) 18,380 {5,580,257) {1,928,003) (3,235,517) 120,854 {183,053) (872,803) (76.010) 11,271 4,283
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from sale ol capital assels - - - - N . . 685 x & _
Transfers in 440,857 = 6,765,000 1,930,182 2,756,032 & = ©55,508 140,064 = =
Transfers out {308,000} - (1,050,658) - - - - - . = =
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES} 132,857 - 5,734,244 1,838,192 2,756,022 = - 850,263 140,864 - *
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES {285,853} 18,380 144,007 169 (479,485} 120,854 (163,053) 82,460 64,054 11,271 4,283
FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2007 406,602 562,755 124,719 - 1,014,004 - 1,852,777 158,015 1,545,880 290,770 113,542
FUND BALANCES, June 30, 20008 5 200750 § 581,144 § 268,808 § 180§ 534510 § 120,854 S5 1,686,724 § 240475 5 1610734 § 310041 & 117,825
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REVENUES:
Propenty taxes
Qiher taxes
Licenses and pennits
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties
Special assessment collections
Interest
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Contributions
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Curment:
General govermimant
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Health and sanitation
Economic development
Cutture and recrealion
Educatien
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Capital oullay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
DOVER EXPENDITURES

‘OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Translers in

Transiers oul

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES {USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2008

CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
NONMA.JOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF R NUES, EXPENDI

RES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (Continuad)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED .JUNE 10, 2008

Transportalion County
System Public Safely Emplayer Payments Jaint
Transient Develapment District Local Optian Praperty Contribution Account Teansportalion Tax Title
Juvanile Room Tax Charge Aftorney Levy Management Raservo Project 5DC Land
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
s - % - 5 - 8 + § 7506422 S - $ C - § - § 2
. 3,061,869 - - - - . - -
- - 2,031,277 - - - - 2,230,538 -
41,502 - - . - - - - . .
- 11.412 760,080 - 105,971 14,561 - 18,235 240,508 47,070
127,042 - = 1,012,809 - - - 000,800 - -
845,130 - 8,308 634 - 3e5,702 - = = -
426,432 - - 281,002 120 75,286 - - - 220,083
1,443,956 3,073,261 3,700,665 2,094,535 7.802,513 475,550 - 019,225 2,488,044 271,053
- - - - - 463,240 137 019,225 = 385,324
6,700,668 - - 0,931,589 5,135,977 o - - - -
- . 5,106,472 - & - - 1,352,213 =
- 61,412 - - - - - . -
- - - . . - - - 708,808 .
" . - . - - - 433,028 .
- - - 5 323,744 5 - . . B
6,760,666 61,412 5,106,472 8,831,569 5,450,718 483,240 137 010,225 2,402,840 JB5,334
(5,325,670) 3,011,865 (1,405,807) (7,837,054) 2,232,795 12,219 (137) - {3.805) {108,281}
- - - . - 274,161 - . = =
5,484,050 - - 7,052,684 - - - - 186,647
i {3,009,163) . . - - (1,207 188) . 5 .
5,484,050 (3.000,163) - 7,052,684 - 274,161 (1,207,180) - 186,017 =
158,386 2,700 {1,405,007) 115,630 2,232,705 286,360 (1,297,325) - 182,812 {108,281)
238,705 - 15,635,220 483,606 = 165,646 1,267,325 - 6,305,688 154,034
S 397.001 § 2706 5 141204190 § 599,326 5§ 2232795 § 452,028 S = - § 6488500 S 40,653
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REVENLES:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures, and penallies
Special assessment collections
Inierest
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Contributions.
Miscollaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Cunent:
General govemment
Public protectian
Public ways and facilities
Health and sanitation
Economic development
Culture and recrealion
Education
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from sale of capital assels
Translers in

Translers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2008

MBINING STATEMENT OF REVENU

CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

XPENDITURES, AND CHAN

IN FUND BALANI

ontinuad)

FOR THI AR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Nonh MNarth Clackamas Farks and Recreation District Clackamas Co.
Tourism Clackamas sSDC SDC SDC Enhanced Law
Parks Development Parks and Mutrition and Systems Charge Charge Chame Enforcament
Trust Council Recreation Transportation  Development Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 District
Fund Fund District Fund Fund Charpe Fund Fund Fund Furd Fund Talal
- 8 - 5 4588801 S - 5 - § - § - § - § 46308790 § 10,015,002
- - - - - . - - - 3,061,800
. . - - 426,587 3,207 202,387 034,654 . 12,170,808
- - - - - - - - - ©60,760
2,508 22,484 142,925 12,154 25,248 2,170 18,013 08,634 5504 2,BA2171
273,100 47,501 120,150 265,300 - - = = = 668,046,973
48,000 - 1,062,160 - - - - = ¥ 18,642,185
- - 10,250 172,500 = < o = # 267,382
251 5,668 186,011 50,335 - - - - 75,608 1.8532.431
384,435 75,743 7,021,008 530,379 451,835 5.466 220,400 1,031,288 4,721,151 122,738,813
- & # ] - 3 = " = 8,627,170
3 ’ 4 s . 2 2 iy 4,001,664 37.210,825
- . . - - - - - 28,408,840
- & 1,285,224 426,035 - - = = 35,409,320
] 7 2 - z & © s & 11,217,365
- 2,438,534 3,885,637 - . = = = 11,723,103
. . # . - = % - % 7.613,070
M " & - & o - - 65,000 771,600
x u . # - - 117,880 551,708
- - - - - - - - - 2,779,513
- 2,438,534 5,180,861 428,935 - - - - 5,104,544 144,402,734
384,435 (2,362,701) 1,840,145 103,444 451,835 5,466 220,400 1,021,288 (441,303) (21,666,121}
1,674,265 - - - - . * ] " 2.013,.802
- 2,630,163 26,000 80,000 & " = i [ 34,100,178
(1,348,375) - (1,455,000} (6,000) (425,197) - {267,053) 218,132) = (9.514,764)
325,880 2.639.163 (1.428,000) 74.000 (425,187) = (267,053) (218,132) 2 26,689,306
710,325 276,372 411,145 177,444 26,038 5,468 (76.653) 815,156 (443,393) 5,023,185
1,450,192 702,273 2,373,420 211,202 471,340 52,665 357,879 1,823,504 471,043 58,160,073
2,160,517 S 1008645 S 2784565 § 388,646 S 457,978 § 50131 § 201,326 § 2738740 § 20,550 § 63.102.250
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
ROAD FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal $ 4,600,000 $ 4,600,000 $ 4,576,980 § (23,020)
State 17,092,000 17,092,000 16,164,690 (927,310)
Local 375,000 375,000 410,855 35,855
Total intergovernmental revenues 22,067,000 22,067,000 21,152,525 (914,475)
Charges for services:
General government 3,510,400 3,510,400 3,803,257 202,857
Highways and streets 916,214 916,214 663,267 (252,947)
Total charges for services 4,426,614 4,426,614 4,466,524 39,910
Miscellaneous:
Reimbursements 123,600 123,600 108,008 (15,592)
Interest 253,606 253,606 502,801 249,195
Other 74,500 74,500 114,650 40,150
Total miscellaneous 451,706 451,706 725,459 273,753
TOTAL REVENUES 26,945,320 26,945,320 26,344,508 (600,812)
EXPENDITURES:
Public ways and facilities:
Transportation maintenance 28,445,037 28,445,037 15,196,751 13,248,286
Roads administration 1,325,553 1,325,553 1,152,539 173,014
Engineering 6,209,661 6,057,750 5,166,732 891,018
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 35,980,251 35,828,340 21,516,022 14,312,318
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (9,034,931) (8,883,020) 4,828,486 13,711,506
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 110,000 110,000 422 610 312,610
Transfers out (1,408,195) (1,5658,106) (1,752,010) (193,904)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (1,296,195) (1,448,106) (1,329,400) 118,706
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (10,331,126)  (10,331,126) 3,499,086 13,830,212
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 10,331,126 10,331,126 10,411,867 80,741
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 3 - 8 - § 13,910,953 § 13,910,953
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
OFC CHILDREN AND FAMILIES FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal $ 409,724 § 515,737 & 308,683 $ (207,054)
State 3,487,642 3,547,051 3,059,918 (487,133)
Local 5,657 39,658 34,525 (5,133)
Total intergovernmental revenues 3,903,023 4,102,446 3,403,126 {699,320)
Charges for services 132,250 520,900 158,211 (362,689)
Miscellaneous:
Interest 15,000 15,000 12,947 (2,053)
Contributions 76,150 104,488 102,172 (2,316)
Other 1,600 1,600 1,143 (457)
Total miscellaneous 92,750 121,088 116,262 (4,826)
TOTAL REVENUES 4,128,023 4,744,434 3,677,509 (1,066,835)
EXPENDITURES:
Health and sanitation:
Personal services 793,971 870,847 734,482 136,365
Materials and services 3,676,175 4,215,710 3,071,633 1,144,077
Contingency 19,238 19,238 - 19,238
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,489,384 5,105,795 3,806,115 1,299,680
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (361,361) (361,361) (128,516) 232,845
OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
Transfers in 203,087 203,087 203,087 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (158,274) (158,274) 74,571 232,845
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 158,274 158,274 115,636 (42,738)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 3 - 5 - % 190,107 3% 190,107
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

CLACKAMAS COUNTY FAIR FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:

Intergovernmental revenue: 5 47,000 % 47,000 §$ 49,405 % 2,405
Video lottery funds 30,000 30,000 - (30,000)
Local

77,000 77,000 49,405 (27,595)
Total intergovernmental revenues

Charges for services: 248,000 246,000 254,249 8,249
Concessions 205,000 205,000 201,904 (3,096)
Rentals 421,000 421,000 410,142 (10,858)
Admissions, parking and entry fees

872,000 872,000 866,295 (5,705)
Total charges for services:

Miscellaneous:

Sponsorships 150,000 150,000 130,538 (19,462)
Interest 3,000 3,000 4 580 1,580
Other 65,000 65,000 30,733 (34,267)
218,000 218,000 165,851 (52,149)

Total miscellaneocus
1,167,000 1,167,000 1,081,551 (85,449)

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Cuiture and recreation: 547,700 523,700 500,841 22,859
Personal services 834,700 906,950 896,505 10,445
Materials and services 65,710 65,710 - 65,710
Debt service 278,886 250,636 120,206 130,430
Capital outlay 50,000 30,000 - 30,000
Contingency

1,776,996 1,776,996 1,517,552 259,444
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (609,996) (609,996) (436,001) 173,995
EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCE: 370,000 370,000 370,000 -
Transfers in
(239,996) (239,996) (66,001) 173,985
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
239,986 239,996 224,750 (15,246)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007
3 - 5 - 158,749 § 158,749
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA (US GAAP BASIS):

Interfund loan recognized as a payable on (147,198)
the US GAAP basis
FUND BALANCE - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008 5 11,551
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal $ 639,279 $ 639,279 § 91,777 % (547,502)
State 6,571,419 6,571,419 6,874,214 302,795
Local 250,000 250,000 221,343 (28,657)
Total intergovernmental revenues 7,460,698 7,460,698 7,187,334 (273,364)
Charges for services:
Client fees 373,950 373,950 341,578 (32,372)
Other - - 64,500 64,500
Total charges for services: 373,950 373,950 406,078 32,128
Fines and forfeitures 670,000 670,000 894,803 224 803
Miscellaneous:
Interest 20,000 20,000 136,953 116,953
Reimbursements 150 150 620 470
Other 7,000 7,000 9,351 2,351
Total miscellaneous 27,150 27,150 146,924 119,774
TOTAL REVENUES 8,531,798 8,531,798 8,635,139 103,341
EXPENDITURES:
Public protection:
Personal services 8,854,835 8,854,835 7,755,405 1,099,430
Materials and services 3,319,366 3,319,366 2,638,449 680,817
Capital ocutlay 90,000 90,000 14,904 75,096
Contingency - 586,208 - 586,208
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,264,201 12,850,409 10,408,758 2,441,651
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (3,732,403) (4,318,611) (1,773,619) 2,544,992
OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
Transfers in 2,269,785 2,269,785 2,269,785 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,462,618) (2,048,826) 496,166 2,544,992
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 1,462,618 2,048,826 2,668,106 619,280
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 3 - % - § 3,164,272 $ 3,164,272
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY. OREGON
COUNTY SCHOOL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:

Federal $ 1550650 % 1,509400 § 1578979 § (20,421)
Fines and forfeitures 600 600 138 (462)
Miscellaneous:

Interest - - 7,505 7,505

TOTAL REVENUES 1,551,250 1,600,000 1,586,622 (13,378)

EXPENDITURES:
Education:

Materials and services 1,551,250 1,600,000 1,546,571 53,429
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - 40,051 40,051

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 - - 12,138 12,138
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 $ - % - § 52,189 §$ 52,189
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Licenses and permits:
Building $ 2,818,000 $ 2,818,000 $ 2493463 § (324,537)
Mobile home 53,100 53,100 36,663 (16,437)
Plumbing 783,000 793,000 592,487 (200,513)
Electrical 1,311,500 1,311,500 1,182,443 (129,057)
Other 366,000 366,000 281,108 (84,892)
Total licenses and permits 5,341,600 5,341,600 4,586,164 (755,436)
Charges for services 3,500 3,500 738 (2,762)
Fines and forefitures 12,000 12,000 4,690 (7,310)
Miscellaneous:
Interest 180,000 180,000 222,471 42,471
Other 17,000 17,000 20,919 3,919
Total miscellaneous 197,000 197,000 243,390 46,390
TOTAL REVENUES 5,554,100 5,554,100 4,834,082 (719,118)
EXPENDITURES:
General government:
Personal services 4,725,092 4,725,092 4,336,384 388,708
Materials and services 1,525,170 1,525,170 1,245,682 279,488
Capital outlay 120,000 120,000 101,980 18,020
Contingency 1,701,580 1,701,580 - 1,701,580
Reserve for future expenditures 3,000,000 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,071,842 11,071,842 5,684,046 5,387,796
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (5,517,742) (5,517,742) (849,064) 4,668,678
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 5,517,742 5,517,742 5,818,421 300,679
FUND BALANCGE, June 30, 2008 $ - % - 5 4969357 § 4,969,357
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
DOG CONTROL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Licenses and permits:
Animal licenses $ 470,000 $ 470,000 % 460,781 § (9,219)
Adoption fees 15,000 15,000 20,202 5,202
Total licenses and permits 485,000 485,000 480,983 (4,017)
Charges for services:
Shelter fees 52,000 52,000 53,505 1,505
Other 6,000 6,000 10,230 4,230
Total charges for services 58,000 58,000 63,735 5,735
Fines and forefitures 6,000 6,000 9,735 3,735
Miscellaneous:
Contributions and denations 1,200 1,200 7,468 6,268
Interest 3,200 3,200 13,563 10,363
Reimbursements 700 700 509 (191)
Other 2,500 2,500 3,764 1,264
Total miscellaneous 7,600 7,600 25,304 17,704
TOTAL REVENUES 556,600 556,600 579,757 23,157
EXPENDITURES:
Health and sanitation:
Personal services 893,589 893,589 809,247 84,342
Materials and services 441,211 441,211 398,185 43,026
Capital outlay 27,500 27,500 - 27,500
Reserve for future expenditures 9,618 9,618 - 9,618
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,371,918 1,371,918 1,207,432 164,486
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (815,318) (815,318) (627,675) 187,643
OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
Transfers in 785,217 785,217 785,217 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (30,101) (30,101) 157,542 187,643
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 30,101 30,101 79,367 49,266
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 5 - % - § 236909 % 236,909
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
COMMUNITY SOLUTIONS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal $ 793639 $ 1679639 § 1,638,005 & (41,634)
State 1,168,446 1,365,832 1,293,692 (72,140)
Local 3,956,580 4,284,556 2,230,948 {2,053,608)
Total intergovernmental revenues 5,918,665 7,330,027 5,162,645 (2,167,382)
Charges for services:
Internal county services 460,994 561,601 786,281 224,680
Education and training 50,000 50,000 28,056 (21,944)
Total charges for services 510,994 611,601 814,337 202,736
Miscellaneous:
Contributions and donations - - 1,582 1,582
Other 67,884 67,884 43,532 (24,352)
Total miscellaneous 67,884 67,884 45,114 (22,770)
TOTAL REVENUES 6,497,543 8,009,512 6,022,096 (1,987,416)
EXPENDITURES:
Economic development
Personal services 3,744,116 4,415,608 3,373,161 1,042,447
Materials and services 3,746,175 4,586,652 3,184,504 1,402,148
Capital outlay 74,559 74,559 70,509 4,050
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,564,850 9,076,819 6,628,174 2,448,645
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (1,067,307) (1,067,307) (606,078) 461,229
OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
Transfers in 629,416 629,416 629,416 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (437,891) (437,891) 23,338 461,229
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 437,891 437,891 418,185 {19,706)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 b - 9% - § 441,523 § 441,523
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

FAMILY COURT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal
State
Local

Total intergovernmental revenues

Licenses and permits:
Marriage license fees

Charges for services:
Conciliation fees
Client fees
Other

Total charges for services
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
General government:
Personal services
Materials and services
Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget

- 5 - % 8,000 § 8,000
- - 18,431 18,431

22,365 22,365 - (22,365)
22,365 22,365 26,431 4,066
25,000 25,000 26,790 1,790
480,000 480,000 487,140 7,140
85,050 85,050 88,272 3,222
66,859 66,859 70,078 3,219
631,909 631,909 645,490 13,581
679,274 679,274 698,711 19,437
621,700 621,700 547,637 74,063
254,113 254,113 249,172 4,941
28,740 28,740 - 28,740
904,553 904,553 796,809 107,744
(225,279) (225,279) (98,098) 127,181
125,000 125,000 125,000 -
(100,279) (100,279) 26,902 127,181
100,279 100,279 157,820 57,541
- 5 - 5 184,722 % 184,722
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

HUMAN SERVICES ADMINISTRATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Charges for services:
General government and others

Miscellaneous:
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
General government:
Personal services
Materials and services
Capital outlay
Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget

- 5 - % 11,702 § 11,702
25,000 25,000 49,847 24,847
25,000 25,000 61,549 36,549
378,602 422,602 395,492 27,110
158,188 134,540 84,767 49,773
90,000 - - -
87,317 87,317 - 87,317
714,107 644,459 480,259 164,200
{689,107) (619,459) (418,710) 200,749
440,857 440,857 440,857 -
- {308,000) (308,000) -
440,857 132,857 132,857 -
(248,250) {486,602) (285,853) 200,749
248,250 486,602 486,603 1
- % - § 200,750 $ 200,750
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
LAW LIBRARY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Criginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:

Charges for services:
Court fees : 3 316,604 3 316,604 % 346,025 § 29,421
Other 6,300 6,300 4,201 {2,099)
Total charges for services 322,904 322,904 350,226 27,322

Miscellaneous:
Interest 10,482 10,482 20,245 9,763
Other - - 11 11
Total miscellaneous 10,482 10,482 20,256 9,774
TOTAL REVENUES 333,386 333,386 370,482 37,096

EXPENDITURES:

Education:
Personal services 118,109 118,109 128,769 (10,660)
Materials and services 247,299 247,299 223,324 23,975
Contingency 376,905 376,905 - 376,905
Reserve for future expenditures 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 752,313 752,313 352,093 400,220

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET (418,927) (418,927) 18,389 437,316
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 418,927 418,927 562,755 143,828

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 $ - b - % 581144 § 581,144
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

LIBRARY NETWORK FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Local

Charges for services

Miscellaneous:
Interest
Reimbursements
Other

Total miscellaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Education:
Personal services
Materials and services
Capital outlay
Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget

$ 64,300 5 109,300 §$ 87885 % (21,415)
- - 15,000 15,000

22,000 22,000 35,297 13,297
10,320 10,320 23,740 13,420

- - 1,805 1,805

32,320 32,320 60,842 28,522
96,620 141,620 163,727 22,107
652,600 652,600 590,654 61,946
5,129,867 5,139,867 5,123,752 16,115
57,000 102,000 39,578 62,422
62,086 106,215 - 106,215
5,901,553 6,000,682 5,753,984 246,698
(5,804,933) (5,859,062) (5,590,257) 268,805
6,785,000 6,785,000 6,785,000 -
{1,050,656) (1,050,656) (1,050,656) -
5,734,344 5,734,344 5,734,344 -
(70,589) (124,718) 144,087 268,805
70,589 124,718 124,719 1

$ -9 - 5 268806 § 268,806
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
PARKS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal $ 180,000 $ 180,000 5 204,812 § 24,812
State 573,450 573,450 428,420 (145,030)
Local 162,000 912,000 621,433 {290,567)
Total intergovernmental revenues 915,450 1,665,450 1,254,665 (410,785)
Licenses and permits 214,600 214,600 264,026 49,426
Charges for services 162,278 162,278 298,181 135,903
Miscellaneous:
Contributions and donations - - 1,217 1,217
Other 2,300 2,300 13,946 11,646
Total miscellaneous 2,300 2,300 15,163 12,863
TOTAL REVENUES 1,294,628 2,044,628 1,832,035 (212,593)
EXPENDITURES:
Culture and recreation:
Personal services 1,301,248 1,329,719 1,265,334 64,385
Materials and services 1,215,915 1,187,444 1,366,046 (178,602)
Capital outlay 793,500 1,543,500 1,138,658 404,842
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,310,663 4,060,663 3,770,038 290,625
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (2,016,035) (2,016,035) (1,938,003) 78,032
OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
Transfers in 2,016,035 2,016,035 1,938,192 (77,843)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - 189 189
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 - - - -
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 3 - % - % 189 & 189
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
PLANNING FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal $ 337,537 § 337,537 § 92,335 § (245,202)
State - - 16,650 16,650
Local 195,009 252,009 202,567 (49,442)
Total intergovernmental revenues 532,546 589,546 311,552 (277,994)
Licenses and permits 25,000 25,000 23,040 (1,960)
Charges for services 1,028,554 1,054,329 1,066,378 12,049
Miscellaneous:
Other 15,400 15,400 8,713 (6,687)
TOTAL REVENUES 1,601,500 1,684,275 1,409,683 (274,592)
EXPENDITURES:
Economic development:
Land use and environmental planning 4,324,156 4,324,156 3,820,516 503,640
Business development 965,376 1,242,527 824,684 417,843
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,288,532 5,566,683 4,645,200 921,483
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (3,688,032) (3,882,408) (3,235,617) 646,891
OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
Transfers in 2,561,656 2,756,032 2,756,032 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,126,376) (1,128,376) (479,485) 646,891
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 1,126,376 1,126,376 1,014,004 {112,372)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 b - 8 - 5 534519 § 534519
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

CLACKAMAS MENTAL HEALTH ORGANIZATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
State

Charges for services

Miscellaneous:
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Health and sanitation:
Materials and services
Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance

Budget with Final

Original Final Actual Budget
$ 14,315,211 § 12,338,885 § 9,254,999 § (3,083,886)
- - 5,950 5,950
- - 120,854 120,854
14,315,211 12,338,885 9,381,803 (2,957,082)
11,497,712 11,497,712 9,260,949 2,236,763
2,817,499 2,817,499 - 2,817,499
14,315,211 14,315,211 9,260,949 5,054,262
- (1,976,326) 120,854 2,097,180
- 1,976,326 - {1,976,326)
- - 120,854 120,854
$ - b - $ 120854 $§ 120,854
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

PUBLIC LAND CORNER PRESERVATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Charges for services

Miscellaneous:
Other
Interest

Total miscellaneous
Licenses and permits
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Culture and recreation:
Personal services
Materials and services

Capital outlay
Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
3 975,000 $ 975,000 % 909,746 $ (65,254)
2,500 2,500 6,362 3,862
60,000 60,000 68,526 8,526
62,500 62,500 74,888 12,388
50,000 50,000 50,550 550
1,087,500 1,087,500 1,035,184 (52,316)
1,142,741 1,142,741 1,024,084 118,657
159,900 159,900 144,201 15,699
58,000 58,000 29,952 28,048
1,530,912 1,530,912 - 1,530,812
2,891,553 2,891,553 1,198,237 1,693,316
{(1,804,053) (1,804,053) (163,053) 1,641,000
1,804,053 1,804,053 1,852,777 48,724
$ - % - § 1,689,724 $ 1,689,724
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

SOCIAL SERVICES FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal
State
Local

Total intergovernmental revenues
Licenses and permits
Charges for services

Miscellaneous:
Contributions and donations
Interest
Other

Total miscellaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Health and sanitation;
Personal services
Materials and services
Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance

Budget with Final

Original Final Actual Budget
$ 3,348,537 § 3,538,882 § 3,085083 § (453,799)
10,053,259 10,607,067 9,227,759 (1,379,308)
208,401 533,483 289,707 (243,776)
13,610,197 14,679,432 12,602,549 (2,076,883)
22,990 22,990 546 (22,444)
4,591,852 4,595,755 3,936,917 (658,838)
15,500 15,500 2,194 (13,306)
1,000 1,000 11,170 10,170
281,108 279,108 58,808 (220,300)
297,608 295,608 72,172 (223,436)
18,522,647 19,593,785 16,612,184 (2,981,601)
9,130,071 9,346,395 8,326,023 1,020,372
10,619,930 11,332,759 9,159,299 2,173,460
28,244 28,244 - 28,244
19,778,245 20,707,398 17,485,322 3,222,076
(1,255,598) (1,113,613) (873,138) 240,475
955,598 955,598 955,598 -
(300,000) (158,015) 82,460 240,475
300,000 158,015 158,015 -
- - 240475 § 240,475
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Local

Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits

Miscellaneous:
Interest
Other

Total miscellaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Health and sanitation:
Personal services
Materials and services
Reserve for future expenditures
Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
$ 391846 $ 391846 $ 385119 § {6,727)
1,000 1,000 980 {(20)
1,409,174 1,380,703 1,384,455 3,752
12,000 12,000 15,822 3,822
30,000 30,000 64,824 34,824
7,500 7,500 139 (7,361)
37,500 37,500 64,963 27,463
1,851,520 1,823,049 1,851,339 28,290
1,255,105 1,280,634 1,139,780 140,854
1,304,006 1,250,006 787,569 462,437
470,000 470,000 - 470,000
448,583 448,583 - 448,583
3,477,694 3,449,223 1,927,349 1,621,874
(1,626,174) (1,626,174) (76,010) 1,550,164
140,864 140,864 140,864 -
{1,485,310) (1,485,310) 64,854 1,550,164
1,485,310 1,485,310 1,545,880 60,570
$ - 5 - % 1610734 § 1,610,734
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
SUNNYSIDE VILLAGE PARK ACQUISITION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Licenses and permits $ 3000 § 3,000 $ - 5 (3,000)
Miscellaneous:
Interest 8,000 8,000 11,271 3,271
TOTAL REVENUES 11,000 11,000 11,271 271
EXPENDITURES:
Culture and recreation:
Materials and services 286,240 286,240 - 286,240
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (275,240) (275,240) 11,271 286,511
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 275,240 275,240 298,770 23,530
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 $ - % - 5§ 310,041 % 310,041
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

SUNNYSIDE VILLAGE PARK ROAD FRONTAGE CONSTRUCTION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

REVENUES:
Miscellaneous:
Interest

EXPENDITURES:
Culture and recreation:
Capital outlay

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance

Budget with Final

Original Final Actual Budget
5 - 3 - 3 4,283 % 4,283
110,028 110,028 - 110,028
(110,028) (110,028) 4,283 114,311
110,028 110,028 113,542 3,514
$ - b - $ 117825 § 117,825
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
JUVENILE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal $ 24822 % 32822 § 49384 5 16,562
State 318,362 362,883 13,918 (348,965)
Local - - 64,540 64,540
Total intergovernmental revenues 343,184 395,705 127,842 (267,863)
Charges for services 462,424 567,886 848,130 280,244
Fines and forfeits 28,000 28,000 41,592 13,592
Miscellaneous:
Reimbursements 430,868 430,868 424 463 (6,405)
Other 2,500 2,500 1,969 {531)
Total miscellaneous 433,368 433,368 426,432 (6,936)
TOTAL REVENUES 1,266,976 1,424,959 1,443,996 19,037
EXPENDITURES:
Public protection:
Personal services 4,272,641 4,296,427 3,998,934 297,493
Materials and services 2,735,211 2,869,408 2,770,732 98,676
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,007,852 7,165,835 6,769,666 396,169
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (5,740,876) (5,740,876) (5,325,670) 415,206
OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
Transfers in 5,484,056 5,484,056 5,484,056 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (256,820) {256,820) 158,386 415,206
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 256,820 256,820 238,705 (18,115)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 $ -5 - § 397091 § 397,091
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
TRANSIENT ROOM TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Hotel and motel occupancy tax $ 2,966,500 § 3,116,067 $ 3,061,869 § (54,188)
Miscellaneous:

Interest 8,500 10,000 11,412 1,412
TOTAL REVENUES 2,975,000 3,126,057 3,073,281 (52,776)
EXPENDITURES:

Culture and recreation:
Materials and services 59,500 62,321 61,412 909
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES 2,915,500 3,063,736 3,011,869 (51,867)
OTHER FINANCING USES:

Transfers out (2,915,500) (3,063,736) (3,009,163) 54,573

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - 2,706 2,706
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 - - - -
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 b - % - 3 2706 % 2,706

101



CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Licenses and permits

Charges for services
Miscellaneous:
Interest
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Public ways and facilities:
Materials and services
Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING (USES) SOURCES:
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Budget

Criginal

Final

Variance
with Final
Actual Budget

$ 2,500,000 _§ 2,500,000

$ 2,931,277 § 431,277

6,000 6,000 9,308 3,308
358,000 358,000 760,080 402,080
2,864,000 2,864,000 3,700,665 836,665
159,102 159,102 106,812 52,290
6,526,139 6,526,139 - 6,526,139
6,685,241 6,685,241 106,812 6,578,429
(3,821,241)  (3,821,241) 3,593,853 7,415,094
35,000 35,000 (35,000)

(8,159,857)  (8,159,857)

(4,999,660) 3,160,197

(8,124,857)  (B,124,857)

(4,999,660) 3,125,197

(11,946,098)  (11,946,098)

11,946,098 11,946,098

(1,405,807) 10,540,291

15,635,226 3,585,128

-8 :

$ 14,129,419 _$ 14,129,419
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal $ - % - 8§ 16,039 § 16,039
State 1,558,680 1,610,781 1,796,860 186,079
Total intergovernmental revenues 1,558,680 1,610,781 1,812,899 202,118
Charges for services 55,500 55,500 634 {54,866)
Other 208,710 220,452 281,002 60,550
TOTAL REVENUES 1,822,890 1,886,733 2,094 535 207,802
EXPENDITURES:
Public protection:
Personal services 8,288,097 8,212,097 7.817.677 394,420
Materials and services 2,070,000 2,209,843 2,113,912 95,931
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 10,358,097 10,421,940 9,931,589 490,351
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (8,5635,207) (8,535,207) (7,837,054) 698,153
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 7,952,684 7,952,684 7,952,684 -
Transfers out (60,000) (60,000) - 60,000
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 7,892,684 7,892,684 7,952,684 60,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (642,523) (642,523) 115,630 758,153
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 642,523 642,523 483,696 (158,827)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 $ - % - § 599326 § 599326
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Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:

Property taxes:

Current $ 7467436 § 7467436 § 7,524,651 § 57,215
Delinquent - - 17,471 17,471
Total property taxes 7,467,436 7,467,436 7,542,122 74,686

Miscellaneous:

Interest 32,000 32,000 105,971 73,971

Other - - 120 120

Total miscellaneous 32,000 32,000 106,091 74,091

TOTAL REVENUES 7,499,436 7,499,436 7,648,213 148,777
EXPENDITURES:

Public Protection:

Personal services 4,627,018 4,627,018 3,972,572 654,446
Materials and services 802,576 802,576 527,483 275,093
Capital outlay - - 323,741 (323,741)
Reserve for future expenditures 1,063,949 1,063,949 - 1,063,949
Contingency 100,000 100,000 - 100,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,593,543 6,593,543 4,823,796 1,769,747
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES 905,893 905,893 2,824,417 1,918,524

OTHER FINANCING (USES):

Transfers out (905,893) (905,893) (635,922) 269,971
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - 2,188,495 2,188,495
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 - - - -
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 b - % 5 2,188,495 § 2,188,495
ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRICIPLES

GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED

STATES OF AMERICA (US GAAP BASIS):

Property taxes susceptible to accrual,
recognized as revenue on the US GAAP basis 44,300
FUND BALANCE - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008 § 2,232,795

CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

PUBLIC SAFETY LOCAL OPTION LEVY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Charges for services

Miscellaneous:
Interest
Other

Total miscellaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
General government:
Personal services
Materials and services
Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
230,400 $ 385334 § 385702 § 368
27,181 27,181 14,561 (12,620)

12,000 12,000 75,296 63,296
39,181 39,181 89,857 50,676
269,581 424,515 475,559 51,044
160,765 160,765 154,548 6,217
407,834 485,941 308,792 177,149
25,000 25,000 - 25,000
583,599 671,706 463,340 208,366
(324,018) (247,191) 12,219 259,410
81,645 81,545 274,161 192,616
(242,473) (165,646) 286,380 452,026
242,473 165,646 165,646 -
- % - § 452026 § 452026
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Miscellaneous:
Interest $ 5,000 § 47608 % - % (47,608)
EXPENDITURES:
General government:
Materials and services 138 138 137 1
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 4,862 47,470 (137) (47,607)
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out (1,307,392) (1,350,000) {1,297,188) 52,812
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,302,530) (1,302,530) (1,297,325) 5,205
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 1,302,530 1,302,530 1,297,325 (5,205)

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 5 - 5 - § - % =
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
COUNTY PAYMENTS ACCOUNT PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal $ 1,860,570 § 1,860,570 $ 900,990 §  (959,580)
Miscellaneous:
Interest 10,000 10,000 18,235 8,235
TOTAL REVENUES 1,870,570 1,870,570 919,225 (951,345)
EXPENDITURES:
General government:
Materials and services 740,570 740,570 919,225 (178,655)
Contingency 1,130,000 1,130,000 - 1,130,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,870,570 1,870,570 919,225 951,345

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - = "

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 ~ - = =

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 3 - % -5 - b -
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
JOINT TRANSPORTATION SDC FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 200

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Licenses and permits $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000 §$ 2,239,538 § (760,462)
Miscellaneous:
Interest 150,000 150,000 249,506 99,506
TOTAL REVENUES 3,150,000 3,150,000 2,489,044 (660,956)
EXPENDITURES:
Public ways and facilities:
Materials and services 135,487 135,487 57,040 78,447
Debt Service 1,140,636 1,140,636 1,140,636 -
Contingency 691,284 691,284 - 691,284
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,967,407 1,967,407 1,197,676 769,731
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,182,593 1,182,593 1,291,368 108,775
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 2,039,102 2,039,102 186,617 (1,852,485)
Transfers out (6,225,048) (6,225,048) (1,295,173) 4,929,875
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (4,185,946) {4,185,946) (1,108,556) 3,077,390
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (3,003,353) {3,003,353) 182,812 3,186,165
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 3,003,353 3,003,353 6,305,688 3,302,335
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 5 - 9§ - _$ 6,488,500 _$ 6,488,500
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

TAX TITLE LAND FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Miscellaneous:
Interest
Other

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
General government;

Materials and services

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Sale of foreclosed property

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget

$ 35,000 % 35000 &% 47,070 % 12,070
- - 16,123 16,123
35,000 35,000 63,193 28,193
230,400 385,334 385,334 -
(195,400) (350,334) (322,141) 28,193
195,400 195,400 213,860 18,460
- (154,934) (108,281) 46,653
- 154,934 154,934 -
3 - 9 - $ 46,653 § 46,653
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

PARKS TRUST FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal forest reserve timber sales

Charges for services

Miscellaneous:
Interest
Other

Total miscellaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Culture and recreation:
Materials and services
Contingency
Reserve for future expenditures

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
$ 500,000 F 500,000 $ 273,186 § (226,814)
50,000 50,000 48,000 {2,000)
20,000 20,000 62,998 42,998
- - 251 251
20,000 20,000 63,249 43,249
570,000 570,000 384,435 (185,565)
240,000 240,000 - 240,000
800,799 800,799 - 800,799
1,000,000 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
2,040,799 2,040,799 - 2,040,799
(1,470,799) (1,470,799) 384,435 1,855,234
(1,426,218) (1,426,218) (1,348,375) 77,843
2,000,000 2,000,000 1,674,265 (325,735)
573,782 573,782 325,890 (247,892)
(897,017) (897,017) 710,325 1,607,342
897,017 897,017 1,450,192 553,175
5 - % - § 2160517 $ 2160517
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
TOURISM DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Qriginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 3 65,000 § 65,000 § 47,591 % (17,409)
Miscellaneous:
Interest 8,000 8,000 22,484 14,484
Other 360,000 360,000 5,668 (354,332)
Total miscellaneous 368,000 368,000 28,152 (339,848)
TOTAL REVENUES 433,000 433,000 75,743 (357,257)
EXPENDITURES:
Culture and recreation:
Personal services 339,043 339,043 325,067 13,976
Materials and services 2,567,062 2,842,062 2,113,467 728,595
Reserve for future expenditures 200,000 200,000 - 200,000
Contingency 327,202 537,904 - 537,904
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,433,307 3,919,009 2,438,534 1,480,475
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (3,000,307) (3,486,009) (2,362,791) 1,123,218
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 2,545,500 2,693,736 2,639,163 (54,573)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (454,807) (792,273) 276,372 1,068,645

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 454,807 792,273 792,273 -

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 $ - % - _$ 1068645 _§ 1,068,645
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NORTH CLACKAMAS PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Property taxes
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Interest
Contributions
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Culture and recreation:

Administration
Maintenance services
Program services
Milwaukie Center
Aguatic Park
Community relations
Nutrition Program
Planning and development
Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA (US GAAP BASIS):

Property taxes susceptible to accrual,

recognized as revenue on the US GAAP basis

Variance

Budget with Final

Original Final Actual Budget
$ 4,442,000 $ 4,442,000 $ 4588278 § 146,278
1,554,013 1,554,013 1,962,160 408,147
127,000 127,000 120,159 (6,841)
100,000 100,000 142,925 42,925
10,000 10,000 10,250 250
165,400 165,400 196,911 31,511
6,398,413 6,398,413 7,020,683 622,270
674,654 674,654 619,717 54,937
790,255 790,255 695,311 94,944
705,110 705,110 611,655 93,455
684,760 684,760 661,122 23,638
1,624,253 1,624,253 1,812,706 (188,453)
946,767 946,767 769,316 177,451
- - 1,500 (1,500)
- - 9,534 (9,534)
1,440,215 1,440,215 = 1,440,215
6,866,014 6,866,014 5,180,861 1,685,153
(467,601) (467,601) 1,839,822 2,307,423
86,000 86,000 26,000 (60,000)
(1,455,000) (1,455,000) (1,455,000) -
(1,369,000) (1,369,000) (1,429,000) (60,000)
(1,836,601) (1,836,601) 410,822 2,247,423
1,836,601 1,836,601 2,338,451 501,850
b - b - 2,749,273 _§ 2749273

35,292
5 2784565

FUND BALANCE - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NORTH CLACKAMAS PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT -
NUTRITION AND TRANSPORTATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 243560 $ 243,560 § 295390 § 51,830
Interest 4,200 4,200 12,154 7,954
Contributions 117,700 117,700 172,500 54,800
Miscellaneous 54,000 54,000 50,335 (3,665)
TOTAL REVENUES 419,460 419,460 530,379 110,919
EXPENDITURES:
Health and sanitation:
Nutrition division 320,440 320,440 307,050 13,390
Transportation division 132,376 132,376 119,885 12,491
Contingency 219,766 219,766 - 219,766
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 672,582 672,582 426,935 245,647
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (253,122) {253,122) 103,444 356,566
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 80,000 80,000 80,000 -
Transfers out (6,000) (6,000) (6,000) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 74,000 74,000 74,000 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (179,122) (179,122) 177,444 356,566
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 179,122 179,122 211,202 32,080

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 $ - 9 - _§ 388,646 _§ 388,646
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NORTH CLACKAMAS PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT -
SYSTEMS DEVELOPMENT CHARGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, OTHER FINANCING USE AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Qriginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Licenses and permits $ 450,000 $ 450,000 $ 426,587 §  (23.413)
Interest 10,000 10,000 25,248 15,248
TOTAL REVENUES 460,000 460,000 451,835 (8,165)
OTHER FINANCING USE:
Transfers out (749,660) (749,660) (425,197) 324,463
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (289,660) (289,660) 26,638 316,298
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 289,660 289,660 471,340 181,680
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 3 - 5 - § 497978 § 497,978
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NORTH CLACKAMAS PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT -
SYSTEMS DEVELOPMENT CHARGE ZONE 1 FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, OTHER FINANCING USE AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Licenses and permits
Interest
TOTAL REVENUES

OTHER FINANCING USE:
Transfers out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
b 10,000 $ 10,000 3 3.287 % (6,713)
800 800 2,179 1,379
10,800 10,800 5,466 (5,334)
{59,253) (59,253) - 59,253
(48,453) (48,453) 5,466 53,919
48,453 48,453 52,665 4,212
$ -3 - % 58,131 % 58,131
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NORTH CLACKAMAS PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT -
SYSTEMS DEVELOPMENT CHARGE ZONE 2 FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, OTHER FINANCING USE AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Licenses and permits $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 202,387 § 102,387
Interest 3,000 3,000 18,013 15,013
TOTAL REVENUES 103,000 103,000 220,400 117,400
OTHER FINANCING USE:
Transfers out (337,626) (337,626) {297,053) 40,573
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (234,626) (234,626) (76,653) 157,973
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 234,626 234,626 357,979 123,353

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 $ - 8 - % 281,326 § 281,326
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NORTH CLACKAMAS PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT -

SYSTEMS DEVELOPMENT CHARGE ZONE 3 FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, OTHER FINANCING USE AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Licenses and permits
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

OTHER FINANCING USE:
Transfers out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance

Budget with Final

Qriginal Final Actual Budget
$ 2,080,000 $ 2,080,000 934,654 $ (1,145,346)
50,000 50,000 96,634 46,634
2,130,000 2,130,000 1,031,288 (1,098,712)
(4,054,248) (4,054,248) {216,132) 3,838,116
(1,924,248) (1,824,248) 815,156 2,739,404
1,924,248 1,924,248 1,923,584 (664)
5 - 8 = 2,738,740 § 2,738,740
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
CLACKAMAS COUNTY ENHANCED LAW ENFORCEMENT DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 4537897 $ 4537897 $ 4,636,768 9 98,871
Miscellaneous - - 5,564 5,564
Interest 79,100 79,100 75,608 (3,492)
TOTAL REVENUES 4,616,997 4,616,997 4,717,940 100,943
EXPENDITURES:
Materials and services 4,657,054 5,017,654 4,981,664 35,990
Debt service* 36,600 36,600 182,880 (146,280)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,693,654 5,054,254 5,164,544 (110,290)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND NET
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (76,657) (437,257) (446,604) (9,347)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 76,657 437,257 437 257 -
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), June 30, 2008 5 - % - (9,347) % (9,347)

ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA:

Property taxes susceptible to accrual 37,897
FUND BALANCE - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008 $ 28,550

*Appropriated as materials and services
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NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

These funds account for the payment of principal and interest on urban renewal bonds,
general obligation, and Bancroft improvement bonds. Revenue is mainly derived from
property taxes, charges for services, and collections on special assessments levied
against property owners. Funds included in this fund category are:

e Local Improvement District September 15, 2000 |ssue Fund
o 800 MHz Radio System Debt Service Fund
« Public Service Building Debt Service Fund
o Development Services Building Debt Service Fund
e Public Safety Training Center Debt Service Fund
e (Clackamas County Development Agency:
. Clackamas Town Center Tax Increment Fund
« Clackamas Industrial Area Tax Increment Fund
. Government Camp Tax Increment Fund
. North Clackamas Revitalization Area Tax Increment Fund
» North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District:
« Series 2000 Debt Service Fund
» Estacada Area County Service District for Library Services Debt Service Fund
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

Clackamas County, Oregon (the County) was established in 1843. A Board of
County Commissioners (BCC) consisting of three members governs the County
under provisions of ORS 203.230. As of January 1, 2009, the BCC will expand to
five County Commissioners.

In evaluating how to define the County for financial reporting purposes, management
has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential
component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
As required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 14, the basic financial statements include its blended component units,
Clackamas County Development Agency, Clackamas County Enhanced Law
Enforcement District, North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District, Clackamas
County Service District No.1, Clackamas County Service District No. 5, Tri-City
Service District, Surface Water Management Agency of Clackamas County, Housing
Authority of Clackamas County, Oregon, and Estacada Area County Service District
for Library Services, and its discretely presented component unit Workforce
Investment Council of Clackamas County (WICCO).

A description and function of the component units are as follows: -
Clackamas County Development Agency

Clackamas County Development Agency was organized in December 1977
under the provisions of ORS Chapter 457 as the Urban Renewal Agency of the
County responsible for implementing public improvement programs in the vicinity
of the Clackamas Town Center Shopping Mall and in other industrial and
recreational areas of the County.

Clackamas County Enhanced Law Enforcement District

Clackamas County Enhanced Law Enforcement District (District) was organized
under the provisions of ORS Chapter 451 to provide enhanced law enforcement
services by contract with the Clackamas County Sheriff. The District is also
authorized to construct, maintain, and operate appropriate service facilities to
fulfill that purpose.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Reporting Entity (Continued)

North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District

North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District was organized under the
provisions of ORS Chapter 451 to acquire, construct and maintain parks and
recreation facilities.

Clackamas County Service District No. 1, Clackamas County Service
District No. 5, Tri-City Service District and Surface Water Management
Agency of Clackamas County:

These component units were organized under the provisions of ORS Chapter
451 to construct and operate sanitary sewer systems, facilities for lighting of
streets and highways, and to improve water quality of the Tualatin River in
various areas of the County.

Housing Authority of Clackamas County, Oregon (HACC)

HACC was organized under provisions of ORS Chapter 456 to provide low-cost
housing to individuals meeting criteria established by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). HUD subsidizes operations of HACC.

Estacada Area County Service District for Library Services

Estacada Area County Service District for Library Services (the District) was
organized under provisions of ORS Chapter 451 to provide financing of capital
construction and improvements for library services in that portion of the County
located within the boundaries of the Estacada School District and for payment of
debt incurred. The District entered into an intergovernmental agreement with the
City of Estacada in which the City agreed to maintain and operate the library.

Complete financial statements of the individual blended component units can be
obtained from the Clackamas County Finance Department, 2051 Kaen Road,
Oregon City, Oregon 97045.

Workforce Investment Council of Clackamas County, Inc.

Workforce Investment Council of Clackamas County, Inc. (WICCO), a 501(c)(3)
entity, serves as the administrative entity for workforce grant funds in the County.
WICCO programs include services to emerging, transitioning, and incumbent
workers to decrease barriers to employment or advancement. A copy of their
financial statements and required supplementary information may be obtained by
writing to Workforce Investment Council of Clackamas County, Inc., 365 Warner
Milne Rd., #202, Oregon City, Oregon 97045.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related Organization

Hospital Facilities Authority of Clackamas County

Hospital Facilities Authority of Clackamas County (Authority) provides financing
capability for hospital facilities in the County and other areas of the State of
Oregon and is not included in the basic financial statements.

Although the BCC appoints the governing officers of the Authority, the County is
not financially accountable for the Authority. Resources to pay principal and
interest on bonds issued by the Authority are provided by participating hospitals.
The County has no budgetary approval authority over the Authority; the Authority
has the power fo issue bonds for its lawful purposes. Moreover, the County has
no obligation to the Authority for its deficits or debts.

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display information
about the County and its component units. These statements include the financial
activities of the overall County, except fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been
made to minimize the double counting of internal activities, except for services
provided among funds (other than internal service funds). These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County and
between the County and its discretely presented component unit. Governmental
activities are typically financed through such sources as charges for services,
property taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each activity of the County's governmental programs and
business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with an activity and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to that activity. Indirect
expense allocations are included as part of program expenses in the Statement of
Activities. Program revenues include fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients
of goods or services and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
operational or capital requirements. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, primarily including property taxes and interest earnings, are presented as
general revenues.
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Government-wide Financial Statements (Continued)

Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are
either externally restricted, imposed by creditors (such as through grantors,
contributors or laws), or imposed through constitutional provisions or enabling
resolutions.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the County's funds including
its fiduciary and blended governmental-type component units. Separate statements
for each fund category — governmental, proprietary and fiduciary - are presented.
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major funds, each displayed in a
separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

e General Fund — This is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
revenues and expenditures, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

e Community Health Fund — This fund accounts for the activities of the County
which administers programs to meet the health needs of the community,
including matters of mental health services, teen pregnancy, drug and alcchol
abuse, prenatal care, and aging and low-income Medicaid patients. Federal
and State grants and subsidies fund the bulk of these programs along with
County General Fund contributions as well as fees for services making up the
balance.

e Sheriff Operations Fund — This fund accounts for the Sheriff's Department
patrol, investigation, jail operation, and civil processing services in both
incorporated and unincorporated areas of the County.

e Community Development Fund — This fund accounis for Community
Development Block Grants and other resources used to stimulate
improvements in communities' infrastructure and provides low interest home
improvement loans.
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

DTD Capital Projects Fund — This fund accounts for all project related capital
outlay within the Department of Transportation and Development, excluding
projects which are funded by component units. Projects are predominantly
infrastructure in nature and include road network upgrades and capacity
improvements.

Capital Projects Reserve Fund — The Capital Projects Reserve Fund was
established to accumulate resources for new facilities and improvements to
County buildings.

The County reports the following major primary government proprietary fund:

Stone Creek Golf Course Fund — The Stone Creek Golf Course Fund accounts
for the operation of the County-owned golf course.

In addition the County reports the following fund types:

e Special Revenue Funds — These funds account for revenues derived from

specific tax or other earmarked revenue sources, including federal and state
grant awards, which are restricted to finance particular functions or activities.

Debt Service Funds — These funds account for the payment of principal and
interest on urban renewal bonds and general obligation bonds. Revenue is
mainly derived from property taxes, charges for services and collections on
special assessments levied against property owners.

Capital Project Funds — These funds account for revenue derived primarily
from intergovernmental resources and transfers from other funds designated
for the construction of specific projects.

Proprietary:

e Internal Service Funds — These funds account for dental and short-term

disability, general liability, workers' compensation and unemployment self-
insured programs, employee assistance programs, along with printing,
communications, equipment, vehicle and facilities management programs
provided to other departments on a cost-reimbursable basis.
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

« Enterprise Funds - Housing Authority of Clackamas County, Clackamas
County Service District No. 1, Tri-City Service District, Clackamas County
Service District No. 5, and Surface Water Management Agency of Clackamas
County. These funds account for low income housing, sanitary and sewer
operations.

Fiduciary:

« Pension Trust Fund - This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to
be used for payments of postemployment benefits. Operations of the plan do
not meet the definitions of other post-employment benefits as defined by
GASB #45.

« Agency Fund - These funds account for monies held on behalf of school
districts, cities and special districts that use the County as a depository and for
property taxes collected on behalf of other governments.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements, including the discretely presented
component unit, the Workforce Investment Council of Clackamas County
(WICCQO), and the proprietary financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The
fiduciary fund financial statements are reported on the accrual basis of accounting
but do not have a measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the County
receives value without giving equal value in exchange, include property taxes,
grants, entittements and donations. On the accrual basis of accounting, revenue
from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Accrued interest and note and contract receivables are recognized as earned.
Revenue from grants, entitements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year
in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Under terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a
combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus,
when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted
net assets available to finance the program. It is the County's palicy to first apply
cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs and then general revenues.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The County
considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if they are
collected within sixty days after year-end. Property taxes and interest are
considered to be susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the
related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as
expenditures to the extent they have matured. Capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds and proceeds from long term
debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

The proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the funds' ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for sales
and services. Operating expenses include the costs of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

For purposes of proprietary fund financial statements the County follows private-
sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued on or before November
30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict the guidance of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. The County has
elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Investments

The cash balances of substantially all funds and component units are pooled and
invested by the County Treasurer for the purpose of increasing interest earnings
through investment activities. Investments with a remaining maturity of more than
one year, at the time of purchase, are stated at amortized cost, which approximates
fair value. Fair value is determined by the quoted market price, if available;
otherwise the fair value is estimated based on the amount at which the investment
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced liquidation sale. Investments in the State Treasurer's Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP) are stated at cost, which approximates fair value and its
share value. The individual funds' and component units’ portion of the pool's fair
value are presented as "Cash and Investments" in the basic financial statements.
Earnings on pooled funds are paid or credited to each fund and component unit
monthly based on the average daily balance of each participating fund or component
unit.

The LGIP is administered by the Oregon State Treasury. The LGIP is an open-
ended no-load diversified portfolio offered to any agency, political subdivision or
public corporation of the State who by law is made the custodian of, or has control
of, any fund. The LGIP is commingled with the State's short-term funds. In seeking
to best serve local governments of Oregon, the Oregon Legislature established the
Oregon Short-Term Fund Board. The purpose of the Board is to advise the Oregon
State Treasury in the management and investment of the LGIP.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include all
cash and investments held by the County Treasurer, since it has the general
characteristics of a demand deposit (i.e. deposits of additional cash may be made at
any time and cash may be withdrawn at any time without prior notice or penality).

Receivables

All accounts, property taxes, assessments, grants, notes and contracts receivable
are shown net of an allowance for uncollectable accounts.

The County levies, collects and distributes real and personal property taxes for all
taxing jurisdictions within its boundaries. These taxes become a lien against the
property as of July 1 each year and are payable in three installments, following the
lien date, on November 15, February 15 and May 15. Discounts are allowed if the
amount is paid by November 15 or February 15. Taxes unpaid and outstanding on
May 15 are considered delinquent.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital assets which include property, plant and equipment, as well as infrastructure
(bridges, roads, and drainage systems) are reported in the applicable governmental
or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated life of one year or more. Land and right of ways with an
initial cost of less than $5,000 are also included as capital assets.

Additions or improvements that significantly extend the useful life of an asset, or that
significantly increase the capacity of an asset are capitalized. Expenditures for
furniture and equipment, real property acquisitions, improvements and infrastructure
are recorded as capital outlay expenditures in the governmental funds. Donated
assets are recorded at their fair market value at the date of donation. Maintenance
and repairs of a routine nature are charged to expenses/expenditures as incurred
and are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

« Buildings and improvements 20 to 50 years
» Office equipment 4 to 15 years
« Vehicles 2 to 10 years
. Bridges 50 years
- Roads 20 years
- Drainage systems 25 years
. Street lighting poles 20 years
- Sewerage treatment plant and line system 20 to 50 years

Office equipment and vehicles of the County are estimated to have a salvage value
of 10% of the assets' original cost.

WICCO capitalizes property and equipment with a cost of $500 or more at historical
cost. Donated equipment is recorded at its fair market value at the time of donation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, which range from 3 to 10 years.

Land Held for Resale

Excess land acquired in connection with urban development projects and held for
resale, real property acquired for the purpose of sale to other governmental units
and real property held for future parks and recreation are recorded at cost.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Compensated Absences

It is the County's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation and sick pay benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick
leave. All vacation pay is accrued when eamed in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability and expenditure for these amounts
is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a
result of employee resignations and retirements. Payments of compensated
absences are made by the General Fund and various internal service funds. A
portion of the balance of compensated absences, generally utilized within one year,
is reported in the Statement of Net Assets as current. The remaining balance is
classified as long-term.

Long-term Debt

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt is reported as liabilities
in the Statement of Net Assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line
method which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums, discounts and bond
issuance costs are recognized as other financing sources (uses) as offsets to the
bond sale proceeds when incurred. The face amount of the debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

Pension Plan

Substantially all of the County's employees are participants in the Oregon Public
Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF), a statewide agent multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan. Contributions to OPERF are made on a current basis as
required by the plan and are charged to expenses/expenditures.

Other Post-Employment Benefits Obligations

The County implemented Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-
Employment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB) for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2008.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other Post-Employment Benefits Obligations (Continued)

The County's net OPEB is recognized as a liability, as determined by the County’s
actuary, in the government wide and proprietary fund financial statements, OPEB
expense is calculated and recognized based on the annual required contribution
determined by the County's actuary.

Self-lnsurance

The County is exposed to various risks of loss up to various policy deductible
amounts related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; and natural disasters for which the County carries commercial insurance.
Amounts are paid to the Internal Service Fund by all other funds and blended
component units to pay premiums, claims, claim reserves, and administrative costs
of the program.

The County is fully self-insured for unemployment benefits and short-term disability
benefits and partially self-insured for dental benefits, workers' compensation and
general liability claims. General liability claims are limited by State statute to
$500,000 per occurrence. The County carries coverage in excess of $1,000,000
with an outside insurer for workers' compensation claims. There have been no
significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and setftled claims
have not reached the level of commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years. The County provides for estimated losses to be incurred for reported and
unreported general liability claims, workers' compensation and unemployment claims
based on individual case estimates and historical data adjusted for current trends.

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted
by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. In the Statement of Net Assets,
governmental and business-type activities report restrictions of Net Assets for
amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Budget

The County is required by state law to budget substantially all funds. The resolution
authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the level by which expenditures cannot
legally exceed appropriations. Appropriations are established at the depariment
level for the General Fund, Road Fund, Planning Fund, and Sheriff Operations Fund
and at the principal object level for other funds - personal services, materials and
services, capital outlay, debt service, transfers to other funds and operating
contingency - are the levels of control established by the resolution.

The detail budget document, however, is required to contain more specific, detailed
information for the above mentioned expenditure categories. Unexpected additional
resources may be added to the budget through the use of a supplemental budget
and appropriation resolution. The Board of County Commissioners at a regular
Board meeting may adopt supplemental budgets of less than 10% of the fund's
original budget. A supplemental budget greater than 10% of the fund's original
budget requires hearings before the public, publication in newspapers and approval
by the Board. Original and supplemental budgets may be modified by the use of
appropriation transfers between the levels of control with approval by the Board.
The Board adopted two supplemental budgets during the year. Appropriations lapse
as of fiscal year-end.

The following table summarizes the County's over-expenditure of appropriations for
the year ended June 30, 2008:

General Fund

Board of Counly Commissionars & 1,739
Sheriff Operations Fund

Transfers out 8,463
Road Fund

Transfers out 193,804
Law Library Fund

Personal services 10,660
Parks Fund

Materials and services 178,602
Public Safety Local Option Levy Fund

Capital outlay 323,741
County Payments Account Project Fund

Materials and services 178,655
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Budget (Continued)

Morth Clackamas Parks and Recreation District Fund
Aquatic Park ] 188,453
Mutrition Program 1,500
Planning and Development 9,534

Clackamas County Enhanced Law Enforcement District Fund
Materials and Services 110,280

Clackamas County Development Agency - Clackamas Town Center Tax Increment Fund
Debt service 385,383

Clackamas County Development Agency - North Clackamas Revitalization Area Fund
Materials and services 56,144

Morth Clackamas Parks and Recreation District - Capital Projects Fund
Materials and services 107,911

Capital Projects Reserve Fund
Capital outlay 2,966,810

Facilities Management Fund
Personal services 48,842

Sherifi's Office Retiree Medical Fund
Materials and services 34,557

At June 30, 2008, the County had the following deficit fund balances of $9,347
(budgetary basis) in the Clackamas County Enhanced Law Enforcement District
Fund and $112,963 (GAAP basis), arising from a long-term interfund loan, in the
Clackamas County Development Agency — North Clackamas Revitalization Area
Fund.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments are comprised of the following:

Deposits with financial institlutions:

Demand deposits 5 5,688,183
Money Market 35,672,383
Certificate of Deposit 283,000
Deposits with fiscal agent 1,982,153
Investments 228,318 237
b 271,944 956

Cash and investments are reflected in the basic financial statements as follows:

Cash and investments - governmental activities $ 210,905,417
Cash and investments - business-type activities 49,921,244
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assels 11,118,285

$ 271,944,856

The County is restricted by State of Oregon statutes in the types of investments in
which it may invest. Authorized investments include general obligations of the
United States Government and its agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon
municipalities, certain corporate indebtedness, bank repurchase agreements, and
the State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool. As of June 30, 2008, and
for the year then ended, the County was in compliance with the aforementioned
State of Oregon statutes.

Cash for WICCO at June 30, 2008 consisted of demand deposits with financial
institutions in the amount of $20,926, which was covered by federal depository
insurance.

Deposits and Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counterparty, the County
will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of
an outside party.

At year end, the carrying amount of the County’'s deposits with financial institutions
was $41,643,566 and the bank balance was $45,048,406. Of the bank balance,
$683,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, $31,005,934 was covered
by collateral certificates of participation issued by depository institutions in
compliance with Oregon Revised Statutes, and the remaining bank balance of
$13,359,472 was uninsured and uncollateralized as of June 30, 2008. Oregon
Revised Statutes require depository institutions to maintain on deposit with a
collateral pool manager, securities having a value not less than 25% of the
outstanding collateral certificates of participation issued by the pool manager.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments

Investments at June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following:
U.5. Government Agency obligations,

effective yield 2.56% to 5.37% § 127,155,081
Corporate bonds 13,477,592
140,632,673

State of Oregon Local
Government Investment Pool 87,686,564

$ 228,319,237

Interest Rate Risk

As a means to limit exposure to fair value loss arising from interest rates, the
County's investment policy requires structuring the investment porifolio so that
securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, investing
operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities or short-term investment pools,
and by diversifying the portfolio by maturity dates to mitigate the impact of
reinvestment risk. Investment maturity guidelines and actual maturities for the
County's investments are as follows:

Maturity Actual at
Malturity Guidelines June 30, 2008
Less than 1 day Minimum of 25% 45.8 %
Less than 12 months MNo Limit 42.4
12 months to 18 months Maximum of 25% 7.0
18 manths ta 36 months Maximum of 20% 38

Credit Risk

Oregon Revised Statutes limit the types of investments that the County may have.
The County is in compliance with these statutes at June 30, 2008. The County is
also in compliance with its investment policy which requires the County to limit
exposure to credit risk, concentrating its investments in the safest types of
securities, diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual
securities will be minimized, actively monitoring the investment portfolio holdings for
ratings changes, changing economic or market conditions, and pre-qualifying the
financial institutions with which the County will do business.

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. Credit risk is measured by the
assignment of a rating by a nationally statistical rating organization
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Credit Risk (Continued)

The State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool is unrated. Approximately
$115 million of U.S. Government Agency obligations are rated Aaa or AAA and the
remainder are unrated. Other investments held at June 30, 2008, are categorized
by rating as follows:

Corporate Bonds Moody's Investor Service
Merrill Lyneh § 3.,512.252 AZ
General Electic Capital Corp. 4,975 648 Aaa
Fifth Third Bank 4,980,692 Al
§ 13,477 592
ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE

Assessments receivable, net of an allowance, represent uncollected amounts levied
against benefited property for the cost of local improvements and are considered to
be a lien on the property until paid. Substantially all assessments are collectible
over a period of ten to twenty years and bear interest from 6.25% to 6.5%.
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Balance Balanca
Governmental activities: June 30, 2007 Increases Dacrepses Transfers June 30, 2008
Capilal asseis nol being doprecialed.
Land and improvements § 20059686 5 8,890,894 5 |56,952) s - § 28,793,628
Land - rights of way 310,670,726 13,577,366 - - 324,256,082
Consfruction in progress B3,013.306 58,438,573 - (28,160, 730} 93,283,140
Total capital assets not belng depreciated 384,651,718 80.807,833 156,952) (28,168 739) 447,332 860
Capilal assels being depracialod:
Buikdings and improvemenls 78,848,257 2,170,598 {111,805) 28,060,068 108,567,118
Equipment 24 175,518 B858.958 {246,750) - 24585724
Vehicles 31,298,100 2,886,873 {1.401,429) - 32,893,544
Bridges 15,735,682 - - - 15,735,682
Roads 314,628,252 10,140,760 - 109,671 324,878,682
Drainage syslams 1,984,033 - = - 1.804.033
Total capital assals boing depreciated AGT 66D 842 15,865,167 {1.758.584) 20.169,73% 510,044 784
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements (28,128,435) (3.405,857) 35,420 - {31,498,872)
Equipment (14,461,583) {2.062,234) 222,075 - (16,301,752)
Vehicles (21,542.178) (1,978,500} 1,258,548 - (22,262,131)
Bridgas {2,356.508) [170,743) - - (2,527.251)
Roads {124,397 491) {13.807,005) - - {138,204 .486)
Drainage sysiems {S80.472) (80.173) s - [670.645)
Total accumulated depraciation (181 466.6TH) {21.514,512) 1.516.043 - 1211.485.147)
Tolal capital assets belng deprociated, net 276,203,164 {5,549,325) (243 841) 28,168,738 2588 578 637
Total capital assels, net 5 E70.B54.BB2 & 75,358,508 5 (300.893) § - & 745912487
Batanco Balance
June 30, 2007 Irereases Decreases Transfers June 30, 2008

Business-type activities:
Capital asseis nol being depreciated

Land and easamenls 5 16120815 5§ - & (25471} 5 - B 16,005,144
Constructionin progress 12,794,908 14,477,216 (3,731.812) {3,3349,730) 20,200,582
Total capilal assets nol being
degrecialed 208.915,583 14.477.216 [3.757.283) {3,339,730) 36.205,726
Capital assels being depreciated.
Buildings and iImprovemenis 44,140,558 588,518 (522, 314) - 44,207,162
Equipment and vehidles 9.698.718 95,950 {81,102} 245,452 9,863,058
Sireet lighling pofas 1,527 983 - - - 1927983
Flanis and ine system 222,113,617 6,268,912 - 3,084,238 231,476,767
Tolal caplial assels being depracialed 277 881,376 6,957,380 (503 416) 3,338,730 287 574,870
Less accumulated deprecialion for
Buildings and improvemanis (26,630, 558) {1.657,712) 243,084 (651.011) (2B,696,5987)
Eguipmenl and vehicles (8,778,959) {313,540) 76,345 B44,442 (8,371,712}
Sireel Bghting poles (595,232} (93.026) - - {588.258)
Flanis and line syslam {84 085 388} 16,351,827} - 6,569 {50.430,646]
Tolal accumulated depreciation (120.090,537) (8.416.105) 319.429 = (128,187.213)
Tolal capital assels beirg depreciated, ret 157,790,738 {1,458 725) {283 887 3339730 158 387,757
Tolal capital assels, nel S 186706252 S 13018481 5 (4.041.270) 5 - & 195683483
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government - 1,684,744
Public protection 516,663
Public ways and facilities 14,098,244
Heallh and sanilation 2855
Cultura and recrealion 602,286
Economic development 3311,110
Educalion 8,610

5 21,514,512

Business-type activities:

Saniary, sewer and surface waler 5 6,516,827
Housing assistance 1,734,678
Gall 71,573
Street lighting 093,027

5 8,416,105

At June 30, 2008 WICCO had property and equipment with a net value of $12,079.
Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2008 was $2,895.

5. SELF-INSURANCE CLAIMS PAYABLE

The County is self-insured for unemployment benefits and shori-term disability
benefits and partially self-insured for dental benefits, workers’ compensation and
general liability claims. The claims liability of $3,781,198 includes the effects of
specific, incremental claim adjustment expenses/expenditures, salvage, and
subrogation and other allocated or unallocated claim adjustment
expenses/expenditures, if any.

The General Fund, essentially all major and non-major funds, and all component
units participate in the self-insurance program. The participating funds and
component units make payments to the self-insurance internal service funds based
on historical cost information estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior year
and current year claims.

Changes in the total claims liability amount in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2008 are as

follows:
June 30, Liability Estimales Payments Liability
2006 3 2,110,770 5 3,652 914 5 3,597,908 b 2205776
2007 2,205,776 3,013,352 2,820,860 2,298,268
2008 2,298,268 4,795,957 3,313,027 3,781,198

This June 30, 2008 balance is included in the Statement of Met Assets in accounts
and claims payable.
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6. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Compensated absences activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Governmental Business-lype
Activilies Aclivilies
Balance July 1, 2007 ] 8,222,343 5 149,640
Additions T.287.955 132,626
Payments [7.241,088) (106,043)
Balance June 30, 2008 5 8,269,210 & 176,223
Reported on Statement of
Met Assels as follows:
Currant portion 5 7.232,000 3 132,167
Long-term portion 5 1,087,210 5 44,066

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds Payable

The County and its component units have issued refunding bonds, to refund
previously issued bonds with a higher interest rate, and full faith and credit
obligations to construct certain infrastructure improvements. The refunding bonds
will be paid from general property tax revenues and the Bancroft Improvement
Bonds from assessments paid by the affected property owners. Should the property
owners be unable to pay their assessments to retire the bonds the County and its
component units may levy general property taxes to provide for the repayment. Full
faith and credit obligations were issued to construct the Development Services
Building and the obligation will be paid from general property tax revenues.
Clackamas County Development Agency issued urban renewal bonds to fund the
County's share of construction costs for the 1-205 Light Rail line, proceeds of which
were transferred to Tri-Met to fund construction. The obligation will be paid from tax
increment revenues. North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District issued full faith
and credit obligations to fund the creation of a new County park and the obligation
will be paid from general property tax revenues.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Bonds Payable (Continued)

Bonds payable transactions for the year are as follows:

Principal
Original Oustanding OuisEnding Due Within
Governmental activitias: Amouni June 30, 2007 Increases Decreases Juna 30, 2008 Ona Year
Morh Clackamas Parks and Recrestion Diskrict Limiled
Tax Revenue Refunding Serins 2000; interest 505%-6% & 8560000 5 6725000 5 - & 385000 % 6380000 3 385,000
Full Falth and Credit Obligations 2000 |ssus;
inleresl 5.00% 8,550,000 1.600,000 = 1,600,000 = 3
Full Faith and Credit Obligations 2003 |s5us;
inlerest 3.5%-4.25% 17,820,000 17.475,000 - 160,000 17,315,000 180,000
Full Falth and Credit Limiled Tax
Assessmen| Bonds 2000 Issue; inlerest 5.10%-65% 5,143,000 1,400,000 - - 1,400,000 -
Fudl Faith and Credit Obligations 2004 |ssws;
interast 4.1%-4.75% 5,040,000 4,510,000 - 185,000 4,325,000 195,000
Full Faith and Credil Obligations 2007 |ssus,
Interast 4.0%-5.0% 49,990,000 48,980,000 . 1,215,000 48,775,000 1,750,000
Clackamas Counly Development Agency Urban Ranawal
Bonds 2007 Issug, infarest 4.55% 35,333,000 35,333,000 - 5,275,526 30,057.474 5,488,768
Morh Clackamas Parks and Recreation District Limited
Full Faith and Credit Cbligations 2008 ssue,
interast 3.0%-4.0% 8,000,000 » 8,000,000 - 8,000,000 215,000
Eslacada Area Counly Service Digidd for Library Services
Gaoneral Oblgation Bonds 20035 |ssus; Interest 3%-4.43% 1,500,000 1,835,000 - 45,000 1,790,000 50,000
118,888,000 B,000,000 8,845,526 11802474 5 B,283,788
Promsums 231,286 17,988 {11.210) 238,074
S 118080286 5§ EM7EER 5 BEI4NE 118,260,548
Cumend porion 8,263, 764
Long-lkerm portion 5 109,008,760
e
Prncipal
Onginal Cuistanding Qutstanding Due W ithin
Business-type activilies: Amaunt June 30 2007 Decraases June 30, 2008 One Year
Clackamas County Service District No. 1: Bancrol improvemani
bonds; intorest rates from §.40% o 10.05%; payabie firsl from
agses sments 1o benefited propedies and second mm goneral
propery i fEveniss 5 65564424 3 320424 5 320,424 35 - % -
Revenue bonds; Interes1 rates 2.0% o 6.5%; payable
from monthly sewer sudace waler fees collecled from
cusiomens connecled to and benafiled by tha syslem 15,666,000 0,780,000 675,000 B8.815,000 1,010,000
Less dalamed amount on refunding (G45406) (107.840) (443,556)
9,584,928 1193484 8371444
Stone Creek Gol Couwrse Fund Full Faith and
Credit Gbhligaions 2003 |ssue; Inmerast 2%-4.758%;
payabla from charges for services 6,355,000 5,645,000 245 000 5,400,000 250,000
Lass unamortized discount (1.050) {62) (098}
5,643,850 244,538 5300,012
Housing Authorily of Clackamas County
Rovanue Bonds: inlerest rates 3.75% Lo
5.80%:; payabla fmm manthly renta income 13,505,000 §.425000 255,000 8,170,000 270,000
Less unamordizod discount (182,047} {9.8500 {182,187]
9,232,953 245,150 BSET 803

5 24441831 5 1883572 § 22756.,250 § 1.530,000
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Bonds Payable (Continued)

Current and future maturities at June 30, 2008 for the business-type activities are
summarized as follows:

Current maturities - face value 5 1,530,000
Less deferred amount in refunding (95,447)
$ 1,434 553
Fulure Maturities - face value 5 21,855,000
Less deferred amount in refunding and discount {531,204)

S 21323706

Future maturities of bond principal and interest at June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Governmental activities:
Morth Clackamas Parks
and Fecredtion Disrict
Lirrited Tax Reverue Full Faith and Credi
Refunding Bords CHiigetion Barcrof Limied Full Faith and Credi Chligaion
Fiscal Senes 2000 Tax Assessmert 2000 kae 2003 l=ve
Year Prircips nterest Principal Inferesi Prircipa Inferesd
209 5 B0 § 3Bl 5 - & HOO 5§ 1000 3§ 70415
210 405,000 347 BES - 91,000 205,000 694,115
an1 430,000 a5 387 - & .00 230,000 685,940
anz 450,000 301,308 91,000 280,000 678,850
a3 475,000 275,882 - o100 280,000 663,790
214-2018 2835000 933 566 455 000 1,975,000 31 As
N80 1,280,000 125400 1,400,000 182,000 3070000 2734850
A2-2028 - = - 4 566,000 1.5983,140
B33 - - - 6,540,000 872524
5 GE¥OO0 5 26782 § 14000 5 1022000 5 7315000 & 12208089
Estacads Area Litray
Svie Osnid Cadames Courty Cevedopment Ageroy
Ful Fath and Crerdt CHigaion Ganz=al (Higedon Liten Renewd Bonds
Fiacd Series 2004 Borcds Saies 205 oaies 2007
Year Rircped infeed Hrircpd Irteresd Frircipd Irierest
aB BT 5 HWEE 3 Smo 3 wBaE 5 5478 & 157615
a0 2000 16,740 S50 813 a7xg8 11785
2011 D@0 1870 8000 7288 59610 EA774
anz2 21500 18230 e300 0,78 Sheretsssd Ei=
413 Z5000 154 257 a0 38,512 G557 5 =83
204208 128500 G551 L0000 27 - -
= e 2000 385D 000 174,054 -
P48 - - FEao 258 -
AP - - - =
45000 §  181M9% § 179000 S BATN 5 A0ST44 5 42445
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Bonds Payable (Continued)

Morh Cladkaras Paks
ard Recreation Cidrid
Full Faith and Credit Chigation Full Faith and Credil Ciligalion
Fiscal Serles 2007 Series 2008 Total
Year Principal Irterest Principd Iriemest Prindpe Inierest
e 1790000 5 20358 21500 5 HaAE 5 BHBIW S 5155859
210 1,815,000 1953581 255000 269,52 B398 4,725,652
M 1,850,000 1881 081 306000 6052 2119610 4,344,372
12 1,960,000 1805481 310000 251,37 0537 50 3,944,556
a3 2)040,000 1.7E7 08 32000 241,89 9977905 356,840
2014-2018 11515000 731905 1775000 1,048,736 19,845,000 13,855,504
2019-2023 14,140,000 452677 2,145,000 77,3509 24,8150 BTI5173
20124-2(8 13,665,000 137 258 2535000 268,204 21,215,000 611,138
2029-2033 - - = - 6,540,000 872,524
SB7E000 5 22 540 006 80000 S 401,885 1822474 S5 48812419
Fremmium 238,074
5 i | 588
Businesstype activities:
The Housing Authorily
Clackamas County Sione Cresk Golf Course Fund of Clackamas County
Senvice District Mo. 1 Full Faith and Credit Otligation General Chligation
Fisczl Revenue Bonds Series 2003 Bonds
Year Principal Inered Pringpl Inleres Principal Interest
2009 £ 1010000 S 24z 5 250000 5 223087 5 270000 S 530,085
200 1,035,000 268,700 255,000 216,137 290,000 513,845
201 1,065,000 234,906 265,000 208,006 305,000 495,590
M2 1,085,000 198,366 75,000 158 BE7 325,000 478,320
213 1,130,000 158605 285,000 188,731 340,000 459,035
2014-2018 2,780,000 323473 1,610,000 753328 2,045,000 1.962, 750
2018-2023 700,000 85033 2,010,000 348,951 2,740,000 1,265,552
2024-2027 - - 450,000 10,688 2,855,000 349,723
§ B815000 5 1572508 § 5400000 S 2147B56 : 5 8170000 35 5,055,500
Fiscal Tolal
Year Prncpal nees
2009 $ 1530000 5 1055597
210 1,580,000 994 A2
2011 1,635,000 938,502
amz 1,695,000 875573
23 1,755,000 807,371
20142018 5,435,000 3.0358,552
20182023 5,450,000 1,699,575
20242027 3,305,000 360,411
23385000 5 8776284
Deferred amaunt on
refunding (443555
Unamaorfized discount (183,185)

5 275825
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Bonds Payable (Continued)

The Housing Authority of Clackamas County revenue bonds are subject to certain
debt covenants, relating to net revenues subject to statutory limitations and debt
service reserves. The most restrictive of these covenants requires that the Authority
establish and collect rents sufficient to produce a ratio of Adjusted Net Operating
Income, as defined, to maximum annual debt service on the Series A bonds of at
least 1.45 to 1 and a ratio of Adjusted Net Operating Income to maximum annual
debt service on the Series A bonds and any additional bonds (none issued or
outstanding at year end) of 1.1 to 1. The Series A coverage ratio for fiscal year 2008
is 1.46. A failure to maintain the above ratios however, does not constitute a default.

Under the revenue bond agreements Clackamas County Service District No. 1 has
agreed fo covenants that it will charge user rates and fees in connection with the
operation of the sewer system which are adequate to cover annual debt service as
required by the bond agreements. The District was in compliance with these
covenants during the year ended June 30, 2008.

In prior years, the North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District defeased revenue
bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all
future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account
assets and the liability for the defeased bond are not included in the basic financial
statements. At June 30, 2008, $4,400,000 of bonds outstanding are considered
defeased.

In prior years, the Clackamas County Service District No. 1 defeased revenue bonds
by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future
debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and
the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the basic financial statements.
At June 30, 2008, $6,425,000 of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Loans and Contracts Payable

Loans and contracts payable transactions for the year ended June 30, 2008 are as
follows:

Governmental activities: Outslanding Outslanding
June 30, 2007 Decreases June 30, 2008
Loan payable; inlerest 3.75% § 11,568,740 5 (706,811) S 10,851,929
Conlracls payable; inleres! 4.3% - 5.6% 2,085,320 (105,320} 1,990,000
Clackamas Counly Development Agency:
Conltract payable; interast 1% 120,884 (39.997) 80,887

5 13,784,944 5 (852,128) 5§ 12,932 816

Current portion s 838,709

Long-term porion 12,094,107

5 12,932,816
[ n a e

Business-type activities:
Outstanding Outstanding
June 30, 2007 Decresses June 30, 2008

Clackamas County Service District No. 1:
Contrad pavable to City of Poriland for sewer rights; interest
al 7.5% and to the Oregon Depariment of Environmental
Quality for construdtion of sewerane faciities; interest
at 4.11% plus administrative fees 5 1472188 $ (158,909) 5 1313279
Tri-City Service District:
Loan payable to he Cregon Department of Emdronmental
Cuality fer construction of sewerage faciities; interest
2.99% to 3.568% plus adminilrative fees 420,551 (39.708) 380,853
Housing Authority of Clackamas County:
Morigane noles payable; collateralized by properties and

paid from rental income; interest 5.0% lo 11.0% 655,851 (175,822) 480,029

Loan payable to the Farmers Home Administration
and the Stata of Oregon interest 0% to 11.0% 256,134 (16,632) 239,502
911,985 (192, 454) 719,531

S 2804734 $  (3B1,071) 5 2413663

Current portion 3 241,571
Long-term portion 2171992
5 241386583
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Loans and Contracts Payable (Continued)

Future maturities for loans and contracts payable are as follows:

Governmental activities:
Caniract Payatie lo Oregon
Housing and Communily Services

Fisca Loans Payable Confracis Pavable DEEMment
Year Principal Inlerest Principa Interest Principal nierpst
2009 3 733314 & 407 322 8 65,000 5 114,370 5 40,385 5 813
2010 760,812 375,823 70,000 110,850 40,492 407
201 788,344 351,293 75,000 107,080 . =
2m2 818,944 321,692 80,000 102,805 - -
2013 B49.654 224,823 52,000 88,327 . -
2014-218 4,750,778 79,779 490,000 411,830 - -
2019-2023 2.159,083 160,974 514,000 252 822 - -
2024-2(28 - - 504,000 74,936 - -
§ 10861928 5 2825706 5 1,590.000 5  1.263.030 5 80.887 3 1.220
Tola
Principal Inlerest
2009 -1 Basyoe 5 522,505
2010 871,304 491,090
2011 854,344 458,273
2012 BB, D44 424 497
2013 941,654 313,150
2014-2018 5,240,778 1,391,600
2019-2023 2,773,083 413,796
2024-2028 504,000 74 935
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Loans and Contracts Payable (Continued)

Business-type activities:

Clackamas Counly Senvice Tn-City Senvics Housing Authority
District No. 1 District of Clackamas Counly
Confract Loan Maorgaga Nolos
Fiscal Payabilo Payabls Payable
Year P rinci pal nierasl Princi pal Intemesl Principal Inlerasl
2008 5 165507 & 52,292 41,304 5 14,751 5 29,334 3 32,026
2010 172379 45,420 42,855 13,081 20,718 20,652
2011 179,537 38263 a4 652 11,364 28,904 27,602
2012 186,992 30,808 46,488 9,567 3,158 25,242
2013 184,758 23,044 48,357 7,699 33,621 22,706
2014-2018 414,108 21,4591 157,047 11,118 205,600 55,487
2019-2023 - - - - 76,421 a5
2024-2028 - - - - 45,273 =
5 1313279 H 211,318 380,853 5 67,590 5 480,029 5 204,900
Housing Authodily
of Clackamas Counly
Loans
Fiscal Payabla Told
Year Prncipal Interast Prncipal hitemesl
2009 s 5526 8§ 203 241671 3§ 99,972
2010 5585 BaT 250,647 85,210
201 5841 791 258,774 78,020
2012 5698 T34 270,336 66,351
213 5.755 G677 282,489 54,126
2014-2018 20854 2,508 BOG, 408 101,602
2019-2023 31174 986 107,505 1,971
2024-2028 4236 12 48,508 12
Undatamined 146233 - 145,233 -
§ 209502 S 7456 ZA136863 5 401,204

Under the terms of the agreements with the State of Oregon, a certain portion of the
mortgage notes payable is forgiven yearly as long as the Housing Authority of
Clackamas County operates the dwellings as low income housing.
ceases to operate these dwellings as low-income housing, the loans become payable

when the property is sold.

52

If the Authority
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Note Payable

In 2008, the County signed a series of three short term notes with a developer to
begin construction of an extension of a sanitary sewer trunk line. The notes are
payable by July 7, 2008, at an interest rate of 5%. The total amount of the notes at
June 30, 2008, was $648,047.

Capital Leases Payable

The County has entered into various lease agreements for financing the acquisition of
equipment with an original cost of $ 186,490.

Capital lease transactions for the year are as follows:

Outstanding Culstanding
June 30, 2007 Decreases June 30, 2008
5 78,687 5  {38,528) 5 40,059

The capital lease is reported on Statement of Net Assets as a current liability. The
remaining current lease obligation is $41,165, of which $1,106 is interest.

Conduit Debt

The County has issued conduit debt for the Hospital Facility Authority of Clackamas
County. The aggregate outstanding amount is approximately $123,000,000 at June 30,
2008. The County has no obligation for repayment of this debt.

8. OPERATING LEASES

The County leases buildings and office equipment under non-cancelable operating
leases. Rent expense amounted to approximately $1,210,000 for the year ended
June 30, 2008. Future payments are due as follows:

Fiscal

Year Amount

2008 5 955,000
2010 404,000
2011 201,000
2012 160,000

s 1,720,000

WICCO leases office space from a subcontractor on a month-to-month basis. Office
rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2008 totaled $12,000. Subsequent to June
30, 2008, WICCO relocated its office and entered into an operating lease for a new
location.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

9. DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS AND INTERFUND LOANS

Interfund due to/from balances at June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following:

Due fram Due to
Other Funds Other Funds

Fund

General ] 2810472 & 112,156
Communily Heallth 2,201,184 80,590
Sherrif Cperations 1,740,105 480,762
Community Developmenl 49,826 92,422
DTD Capital Projects 2,018,367 1,483,214
Capltal Projects Reserve 33,260 14,816
Mon Major 4,962,792 10,460,072
Internal Service 754,829 628,136
Stone Creek - 207 317
Clackamas Counly Service District No. 1 - 729,659
Clackamas Counly Service District Mo, 5 - 71,291

5 14,570,935 § 14,570,835

Interfund balances consist of temporary overdrafts of commingled cash and
investments and for services received or provided.

Interfund loan balances at June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following:

Interfund Loan  Interfund Loan

Receivable Payable
General Fund 5 147198 § -
Community Development Fund 664,661 -
Mon-Major Funds 450,000 597,198
Housing Authority of Clackamas County - 664,681

$ 1261879 § 1,261,878
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

9. DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS AND INTERFUND LOANS (Continued)

Future maturities of interfund loans are as follows:

General Community Clackamas Industrial Area
Fiscal Fund Development Fund Tax Increment Fund
Year Principal Interast Principal Interast Principal Interest
2009 5 34328 & 6381 & - 8 - 8 33,700 8 22 BE0
2010 35,926 4,784 - " a7 514 21,046
2011 ar.sa7 anz - - 39,419 19,141
2012 39,347 1,363 - - 337 387 17,138
Undetermined - - 664,681 - - -
i 147198 & 15640 & 654,681 'E - ] 450,000 5 80,185
Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest
2009 3 70,028 5 29241
2010 73,440 25,830
2011 77.016 22,253
2012 376,714 18,501
Lindetermined G64,681 -
5 1261879 § 95.825

10. TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS
Transfers to/from other funds consisted of the following:

Amount Description

& 33384673  From the General Fund to other governmental funds for general operations,
41,080,917  From Lhe General Fund to the County Sheriff Operalions Fund for general operalions.
40,900 From the General Fund to the Cammunity Development Fund for general operations.
2.804 361 From the General Fund to Community Health Fund for grant matching.
1,728,605 From the General Fund to the Internal Senice Funds for general operations.
1,422,340  From lhe General Fund to the Capital Project Reserve Fund for capital assel improvements,
757,093 From the Sheriff's Fund lo olher governmental funds Tor debl senvice.
1,976,325 From the Community Development Fund to Community Health for ganeral operations.
609,227 From the DTD Capital Fund o other governmental funds for capital assel improvements.
1,267,188  From other govemmental funds o the General Fund for general operations.
1,050,656 From other govemmeantal funds lo the General Fund for opemtions al County library branches.
805,732  From the Internal Service Funds o the General Fund for general operations.
260,000 Frem other govemmental funds lo Community Health for general operations.
48,000  From other govemmantal funds to the Community Development Fund for general opermations,
6,376,017  From olher govemmantal funds lo the DTD Capltal Fund for capital assel Improvements.
102,000  From other govemmenltal funds to the Capital Project Resarve Fund for caplital assel iImprovemen s
207317 From Stonecreek Golf Course Fund 1o other governmental funds for operations and maintenancea.
20,892,024 Within ather governmental funds for capital assel improvements.
4,357 538 Within ather governmental funds for general operations.

$ 119180913 Tolal
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10. TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS (Continued)

11.

Interfund transfers are shown as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Oul
Statement of Revenues, Expendilures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds s 117,462,308 35 118,177,864
Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Mel Assels - Proprietary Funds 1,728,605 1,013,049
5 119,190,813 5 118,190,913
PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The County contributes to the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)
and to the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP). PERS is an agent
multi-employer defined benefit public employee retirement system. OPSRP is a
hybrid retirement plan with two components: the Pension Program (defined benefit;
established and maintained as a tax-qualified governmental defined benefit plan) and
the Individual Account Program (defined contribution; established and maintained as
a tax-qualified governmental defined contribution plan). A defined benefit plan is
benefit-based and uses predictable criteria such as a pension determined by salary
multiplied by length of service multiplied by a factor. A defined contribution plan has
no guarantee. OPSRP is administered by PERS. PERS acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for political subdivisions in the State of Oregon.
PERS is administered under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapter 238. ORS
Chapter 238.620 establishes the Public Employees Retirement Board as the
governing body of PERS. The authority to establish and amend the benefit
pravisions of the plan rests with the Oregon Legislature.

Benefits generally vest after five years of continuous service. Retirement is allowed
at age fifty-eight with unreduced benefits, but retirement is generally available after
age fifty-five with reduced benefits. Retirement benefits based on salary and length
of service are calculated using a formula and are payable in a lump sum or monthly
using several payment options. PERS also provides death and disability benefits.
These benefit provisions and other requirements are established by state statutes.

The State of Oregon PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained by writing to Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, P.O. Box
23700, Tigard, Oregon 97281-3700 or by calling 1-888-320-7377.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

11. PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Funding Policy

The rate of employer contributions to PERS is determined periodically by PERS
based on actuarial valuations performed at least every two years. Contributions to
PERS have historically been made based on the annual required contribution and
were charged to expense/expenditures, as funded.

The County’s annual required contribution rate for fiscal 2008 was 15.2% of
covered employees' salaries for PERS, 15.97% of general covered employees'
salaries for OPSRP, and 19.24% for OPSRP Police and Fire covered employees’
salaries. The employee contribution rate is 6%.

Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 the County's actual annual pension costs of
approximately $22,537,000, $18,124,000, and $16,724,000, respectively, were
equal to the annual required contributions. The required contribution was
determined as part of the actuarial valuation at December 31, 2007 using the entry
age actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation
included: (a) rate of return on the future investment earnings of the assets of the
System are assumed to accrue at an annual rate of 8% compounded annually;
(b) projected annual rate of wage inflation of 3.75%, compounded annually,
excluding merit or longevity increases; (c) healthcare cost inflation assumed at 8%
in 2008, then declining by .50% per year until the rate of 5% is reached in 2013;
(d) consumer price inflation of 2.75% per year, and (e)twenty year closed
amortization of the unfunded actuarial liability as a level percentage of Combined
valuation payroll.

MNo obligation for retirees is attributed to the County as PERS pools the risk related
to retired employees among all employers. PERS assumes the obligation for
benefits from the individual entity, as a whole, when benefits become payable.

PERS Funding Progress

Unfunded
Acluarial Actuarial Actuarial Aduarial UAaL
Valuation Date Value of Acorued Acoued Percant Covered as a Percentage
Deczmber 31, Assels Liability Liabllity (Assat) Funded Payrall of Covered Payroll
2007 5 601,534,000 & 591353000 & (10,181,000) 102% & 102,508,000 {10%)
2006 566,542,000 573,885,000 7,343,000  99% 100,862,000 7%
2005 500,228,000 547,033,000 48,805,000  91% 95,185,000 49%
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Annual Pension Cost (Continued)

The Housing Authority of Clackamas County reports PERS pension information in
separately issued component unit financial statements. The plan description,
funding policy, and the annual pension cost actuarial assumptions are the same as
reported above for the County. For the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and
2006, the annual pension cost for the Authority was approximately $268,000
$293,000, and $319,000, respectively, and was equal to the required and actual
contributions.

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial UaalL
Valualion Date Value of Accrued Acoued Percant Covered as a Percenlage
December 31, Assels Liabifity Liability (Assel) Funded Payroll of Covered Payrall
2007 5 11,589,000 3 10,761,000 5 (B38,000) 108% -] 1,799,000 {4795)
2006 10,820,000 10,347,000 (473.000) 105% 1,692,000 (28%:)
2005 10,381,000 10,258,000 (122.000) 101% 1,796,000 {7%)

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description

The County administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan per the
requirements of collective bargaining agreements. The plan provides the
opportunity for postretirement healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their
spouses through the County's group health insurance plans, which cover both
active and retired participants. The County implemented GASB Statement No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Funding Policy

The County has not established a trust fund to supplement the costs for the net
OPEB obligation. The County does not pay any portion of the health insurance
premium for PERS Tier 1/Tier 2 or OPSRP General Service retirees; however, the
retired employee receives an implicit benefit of a tiered healthcare premium at the
same rate provided to current employees. Retirees may not convert the benefit into
an in-lieu payment to secure coverage under independent plans. At June 30, 2008
there were 360 Tier 1/Tier 2 and OPSRP General Service retirees that were
receiving the post-employment healthcare benefit.
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12. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Funding Policy (Continued)

The County provides post-employment healthcare benefits to retiring Peace Officer
Association (POA) and Command Officers (CO) who retire with a minimum of ten
years of service with the County. The County contributes 100% of the monthly
medical premium, which is paid as incurred. The County funds premium costs by
contributing 3% for covered employees, whether they are union or non-union.
During fiscal 2008, benefit payments of $487,437 were made to participants. At
year-end, net assets available for future premium costs in the Pension Trust Fund
amounted to $642,021. At June 30, 2008 there were 86 POA and CO retirees that
were receiving the post-employment healthcare benefits.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB obligation

The County's annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the guidelines of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs
each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The following table shows the County's annual OPEB cost for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Required Annual Required Percentage of
Contribution Conlribution (ARC) ARC Contributed
General County Only 5 3,466,076 0%
Sheriff's Dept. Only 3,221,570 0%
All county Total 3 6,687,646 0%

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of the most recent actuarial report, July 1, 2006, the actuarial accrued liability of
benefits was $53,692,000, and the actuarial value of assets was 30, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $53,692,000. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $104,272,000 for
fiscal year 2008 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 51%.

59



CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

12. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the
healthcare cost trend. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the most recently conducted actuarial evaluation (as of July 1, 2008), the unit
credit method actuarial cost method was used. This method attempts to track the
actual economic pattern of benefit accrual over an employee's working lifetime.
The discount rate is selected based on historical and expected returns on the
County's short-term investment portfolio. A discount rate of 4.0% was used in the
most recent actuarial valuation for the closed period. The actuarial valuation
assumes that healthcare costs are trending down from 10.0% in 2007 to 5.0% in
2012 for the major medical component, which is representative for the overall plan.
The County's UAAL is being amortized using the level-dollar method with a closed
group rolling 30 year amortization methodology. The remaining amortization period
at June 30, 2008 is 30 years.

Retirement Health Insurance Account

As a member of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), the
Authority contributes to the Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each
of its eligible employees. RHIA is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
other post-employment benefit plan administered by OPERS. RHIA pays a monthly
contribution toward the cost of Medicare companion health insurance premiums of
eligible retirees. Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 238.420 established this trust
fund. Authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of RHIA resides with
the Oregon Legislature. The plan is closed to new entrants after January 1, 2004.
OPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained
by writing to Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, P.O. Box 23700,
Tigard, Oregon 97281-3700.
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OTHER _POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
(Continued)

Retirement Health Insurance Account (Continued)

Because RHIA was created by enabling legislation (ORS 238.420), contribution
requirements of the plan members and the participating employers were
established and may be amended only by the Oregon Legislature. ORS require
that an amount equal to $60 or the total monthly cost of Medicare companion health
insurance premiums coverage, whichever is less, shall be paid from the Retirement
Health Insurance Account established by the employer, and any monthly cost in
excess of $60 shall be paid by the eligible retired member in the manner provided in
ORS 238.410. To be eligible to receive this monthly payment toward the premium
cost the member must: (1) have eight years or more of qualifying service in PERS
at the time of retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the member had eight
years or more of creditable service in PERS, (2) receive both Medicare Parts A and
B coverage, and (3) enroll in a PERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or
dependent of a deceased PERS retiree who was eligible to receive the subsidy is
eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is receiving a retirement benefit or
allowance from PERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and the
member retired before May 1, 1991.

Participating employers are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate
assessed each year by OPERS, currently 0.37% of annual covered OPERF payroll
and 0.26% of OPSRP payroll. The OPERS Board of Trustees sets the employer
contribution rate based on the annual required contribution of the employers (ARC),
an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The County’s contributions to RHIA for the years ended June
30, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were $222,000, $195,000 and $200,000, respectively,
which equaled the required contributions each year. These rates and contributions
are included in the PERS rates as listed in Note 11.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

WICCO entered into grant agreements with organizations whose management
includes members of the WICCO Board of Directors. Payables to these
organizations totaled approximately $754,000 at June 30, 2008, and expenses of
approximately $2,786,000 were incurred under grant agreements with these
organizations during the year ended June 30, 2008.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The County has commitments under contractual agreements for various
construction contracts amounting to approximately $14,830,000 at June 30, 2008.

The Clackamas County Development Agency has commitments under various
contracts for the construction of improvements totaling approximately $340,000 at
June 30, 2008.

Tri-City Service District has commitments under contractual agreements for various
construction contracts totaling approximately $288,000.

Clackamas County Service District No. 1 is committed under contractual
agreements for various construction contracts amounting to approximately
$10,058,000.

Housing Authority of Clackamas County has commitments under various contracts
for the construction of improvements totaling approximately $318,000 at June 30,
2008.

North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District has commitments under various
construction contracts amounting to approximately $1,600,000 at June 30, 2008.

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal and State of Oregon
governments. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, could
become a liability of the General Fund or other funds. Management believes
amounts disallowed, if any, would not be material to the County.

The County is a defendant in various lawsuits. The likely outcome of these lawsuits
is not determinable at this time; however, County management intends to defend
these lawsuits vigorously and believes the likely outcome will not have a material
adverse effect on the County’s basic financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to year-end, the credit and liquidity crisis in the United States and
throughout the global financial system has resulted in substantial volatility in
financial markets and the banking system.
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MEASURE 37

Measure 37 (the Measure), effective December 2, 2004, implemented certain land
use policies and regulations affecting property owners within a governmental
jurisdiction. Under the Measure, the County is required to compensate property
owners for the reduction in the fair market value of their property that results from
County land use rules or regulations or release the property owner from said rules
and regulations. To avail themselves of these remedies, property owners must
establish landownership of the subject property prior to the land use rules and
regulations being placed on the property. A number of issues relating to the proper
interpretations of Measure 37 are currently in litigation around the State.

The County has received many claims under this Measure which must be
processed within 180 days of being filed. County policy is to waive regulations
when a claim is valid rather than paying compensation. At the present time, the
County has not determined the financial impact of these claims, if any, on its
financial position.

Effective December 6, 2007, Measure 37 was modified by Measure 49, which gives
eligible landowners, including many of those who filed Measure 37 claims, the right
to build a limited number of homes as compensation for land use regulations
imposed after they acquired their properties. At the present time, the County has
not determined the financial or land use impact of Measure 49.

RESTATEMENT

It has been determined that monies held by the Treasurer, in trust for the Sheriff's
Department, do not meet the definition of fiduciary accounts where they had been
reported in the previous year. These monies, held in the Pearson Forfeiture
Account and the Child Abuse Summit Account, amounted to $1,084,278 at July 1,
2007. The entry to correct this misstatement increased cash and beginning fund
balance in the Sheriff's Fund by this amount as of July 1, 2007.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Property taxes:
Current
Delinquent

Total property taxes
Other taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties

Intergovernmental:
Federal
State
Local

Total intergovernmental

Charges for services
Charges to others
Charges to other County funds

Total charges for services

Miscellaneous:
Reimbursements
Interest
Other

Total miscellaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
General government:
County Administration
County Assessor

Board of County Commissioners

County Clerk

County Counsel

County Courier
Development Agency payrall

Department of Employee Services

Department of Finance
Mail operations
Veterans' services

CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

GENERAL FUND

Variance

Budget with Final

Original Final Actual Budget
$ 76,999,835 § 76,999,835 § 79,243,854 $ 2,244,019
1,600,000 1,600,000 1,817,638 217,638
78,599,835 78,599,835 81,061,492 2,461,657
1,852,000 1,852,000 1,889,248 37,248
1,200,000 1,200,000 1,226,473 26,473
724,000 724,000 675,589 (48,411)
7,259,804 7,645,118 6,181,151 (1.463,967)
3,968,030 3,974,070 4,068,898 94,828
25,000 25,000 58,940 33,940
11,252,834 11,644,188 10,308,989 (1,335,199)
4,824,360 4,824,360 3,628,439 (1,195,921)
8,707,843 8,722,843 9,579,291 856,448
13,532,203 13,547,203 13,207,730 (339,473)
15,093,785 15,093,785 12,837,049 (2,256,736)
587,817 587,817 1,038,490 450,673
1,599,937 1,604,937 1,489,521 (115,416)
17,281,539 17,286,539 15,365,060 (1,921,479)
124,442,411 124,853,765 123,734,581 (1,119,184)
1,444,856 1,444,856 1,331,407 113,449
5,822,738 5,822,738 5,585,688 237,050
827,047 827,047 828,786 (1,739)
3,076,625 3,076,625 2,381,481 695,144
1,833,555 1,833,555 1,779,263 54,292
92,541 92,541 75,078 17,463
884,079 884,079 629,125 254,954
2,526,921 2,679,340 2,384,509 194,831
3,707,616 3,707,616 3,078,124 629,492
656,571 656,571 591,851 64,720
310,443 310,443 254,045 56,398
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GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
EXPENDITURES (continued):
General government (continued):
Non-departmental $ 16,051,186 % 16,590,731 5,281,625 § 11,309,106
Parks District payroll 2,956,715 2,956,715 2,610,301 346,414
Public and government affairs 1,577,109 1,577,109 1,353,321 223,788
Purchasing 722,947 742,947 710,670 32,277
Risk/benefits administration 1,618,235 1,618,235 1,536,877 81,358
Water Environmental Services payroll 10,395,461 10,395,461 9,382,337 1,013,124
Workforce Investment Act 39,259 39,259 - 39,259
Emergency management 2,746,692 3,147,006 1,360,073 1,786,933
County Surveyor 1,091,280 1,091,280 957,297 133,983
County Treasurer 599,246 509,246 577,820 21,426
Total general government 58,981,122 58,993,400 42,689,678 17,303,722
Culture and recreation:
Arts and cultural afairs 331,716 341,716 331,308 10,408
County library 2,082,974 2,094,014 1,625,126 468,888
Total culture and recreation 2,414,690 2,435,730 1,956,434 479,296
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 61,395,812 62,429,130 44,646,112 17,783,018
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 63,046,599 62,424,635 79,088,469 16,663,834
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 3,631,811 4,480,151 3,827,339 {652,812)
Transfers out {80,225,420) (80,451,796) (80,451,7986) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) {76,593,609) (75,971,645) (76,624,457) {652,812)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (13,547,010) (13,547,010) 2,464,012 16,011,022
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 13,547,010 13,547,010 14,739,523 1,192,513
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 b - 5 - 17,203,535 _§ 17,203,535
ADJUSTMENT TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA (US GAAP BASIS):
Interfund loan recognized as a receivable on
the US GAAP basis 147,198
Property taxes susceptible to accrual,
recognized as revenue on the US GAAP basis 631,458
FUND BALANCE - US GAAP BASIS, June 30, 2008 $ 17,982,191

65



CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

COMMUNITY HEALTH FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental:
Federal
State
Local

Total intergovernmental
Charges for services
Licenses and permits
Miscellaneous:

Reimbursements

Interest

Contributions

Other

Total miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Health and Sanitation:
Personal services
Materials and services
Reserve for future expenditures
Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Criginal Final Actual Budget

$ 4,132,261 § 3590458 $ 4446511 § 856,053
42,023,623 25,659,847 21,791,467 {3,868,380)
91,340 663,455 147,349 (516,106)
46,247,224 29,913,760 26,385,327 (3,528,433)
8,518,563 8,272,404 7,735,943 (536,461)

635,386 695,844 724,800 28,956
430,486 463,665 250,777 (212,888)

- 40,000 136,065 96,065

22,750 - 1,863 1,863

- - 110,627 110,627
453,236 503,665 499,332 {4,333)
55,854,409 39,385,673 35,345,402 (4,040,271)

24,024,984 24,521,700 21,583,026 2,938,674

33,953,274 18,043,920 16,515,986 1,527,934

1,064,010 4 z -

521,881 315,825 - 315,825

59,564,149 42,881,445 38,099,012 4,782,433

(3,709,740) (3,495,772) (2,753,610) 742,162
2,804,361 3,064,361 5,040,686 1,976,325

(905,379) (431,411) 2,287,076 2,718,487

905,379 431,411 1,500,092 1,068,681

- - % 3787168 $ 3,787,168
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

SHERIFF OPERATIONS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Qriginal Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 50 § 50 § 89 § 39
Intergovernmental:
Federal 642,320 1,196,120 658,486 (537,634)
State 202,650 229,650 310,918 81,268
Local 4,877,306 4,934,293 5,501,655 567,362
Total intergovernmental 5,722,276 6,360,063 6,471,059 110,996
Licenses and permits 121,750 121,750 162,055 40,305
Charges for services 914,700 1,047,563 1,383,565 336,002
Fines and forfeitures 30,800 300,800 80,483 (220,317)
Miscellaneous:
Interest 68,107 138,107 18,177 (119,930)
Reimbursements 4,036,791 4,409,391 4,387,782 (21,600)
Contributions 16,600 46,600 15,388 (31,212)
Other 51,700 84,450 206,125 121,675
Total miscellaneous 4,173,198 4,678,548 4,627,472 (51,078)
TOTAL REVENUES 10,962,774 12,508,774 12,724,723 215,910
EXPENDITURES:
Public protection:
Administration 3,009,326 3,031,923 2,883,525 148,398
Civil 3,060,182 3,085,980 2,976,574 109,416
Data processing 1,157,174 1,150,236 1,097,440 52,796
Investigation 4,907,774 5,320,499 4,885,582 443,917
Jail 16,143,937 16,010,110 15,210,508 799,602
Law Enforcement District 3,891,791 4,252 391 4,129,531 122,860
Marine board 510,294 480,834 362,821 118,013
Operations 18,824,130 19,029,954 18,031,562 008,392
Public Safety Training Center 829,363 939,542 781,155 158,387
Emergency management 270,623 270,623 234,918 35,705
Records 2,259,987 2,236,932 2,107,163 129,769
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 54,864,581 55,818,034 52,700,779 3,117,255
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (43,801,807) (43,309,260)  (39,876,056) (2,901,345)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 41,090,917 41,080,917 41,090,917 -
Transfers out (374,115) {748,630) (757,093) (8,463)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 40,716,802 40,342,287 40,333,824 (8,463)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (3,185,005) (2,966,973) 357,768 3,324,741
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007, as previously reported 3,185,005 2,966,973 1,635,520 (1,331,453)
RESTATEMENT * - - 1,084,278 1,084,278
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007 as restated - - 2,719,798 -
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008 § - % - & 3077566 $ 3,077,566

* Certain accounts have been restated from the County Agency Fund.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental:
Federal
Local

Total intergovernmental

Charges for services
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Economic development:
Personal services
Materials and services
Capital outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in
Transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2008

Variance
Budget with Final
Qriginal Final Actual Budget
6,913,857 § 6,913,857 § 3,474469 § (3,439,388)
1,260,000 3,236,326 2,563,886 (672,440)
8,173,857 10,150,183 6,038,355 (4,111,828)
25,000 25,000 52,512 27,512
8,198,857 10,175,183 6,090,867 (4,084,316)
740,751 740,751 718,884 21,867
6,699,006 6,747,006 3,484,558 3,262,448
800,000 800,000 - 800,000
8,239,757 8,287,757 4,203,442 4,084,315
(40,900) 1,887,426 1,887,425 (1)
40,900 88,900 88,900 -
- (1,976,326) (1,976,325) 1
40,900 (1,887.426) (1,887,425) 1
- 8 - S - 3 -
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS




ASSETS

Cash and investments
Property taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Assessments receivable
Grants receivable

Notes and contracts receivable

Due from other funds
Land held for resale
Other assets

Interfund loan receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Book overdraft
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll

Due to other funds
Deposits

Deferred revenue
Retainage payable
Interfund loans payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Fund balances:

Reserved for land held for resale

Reserved for loan receivable
Undesignated

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2008

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects
Funds Funds Funds Total
$ 79,450,792 § 36,948,686 $ 27,234,255 §143,633,733
749,025 505,299 - 1,254,324
1,039,567 121,067 221,358 1,381,992
1,928 900,000 33,379 935,307
4,394,411 - 125,283 4,519,704
460,983 - 35,100 496,083
4,952,127 - 10,665 4,962,792
- - 12,713,844 12,713,844
789,563 - - 799,563
- 450,000 - 450,000
$ 91,848,386 § 38,925052 § 40,373,894 $171,147,342
$ 2024122 % 121,066 $ - % 2,145,188
4,681,627 - 582,648 5,264,275
3,005,644 - - 3,005,644
9,976,159 = 483,913 10,460,072
926,735 - 8,943 935,678
7,894,653 1,334,950 68,479 9,298,082
- - 134,730 134,730
147,198 - 450,000 597,198
28,656,138 1,456,016 1,728,713 31,840,867
- - 12,713,844 12,713,844
- 450,000 - 450,000
63,192,258 37,019,036 25,931,337 126,142,631
63,192,258 37,469,036 38,645,181 139,306,475
$ 91,848,396 § 38,925,052 § 40,373,894 $171,147,342
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects
Funds Funds Funds Total
REVENUES:
Property taxes $ 16,815,002 $ 9,808,240 - § 26,623,242
Other taxes 3,061,869 - - 3,061,869
Licenses and permits 12,170,809 - - 12,170,809
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties 966,780 - - 966,780
Special assessment collections - 150,910 4,329 155,239
Interest 2,882,171 2,569,458 886,723 6,338,352
Intergovernmental 66,046,973 - 4,900,320 70,947,293
Charges for services 18,642,195 2,227,367 31,884 20,901,446
Contributions 297,383 - - 297,383
Miscellaneous 1,853,431 21,909 233,643 2,108,983
TOTAL REVENUES 122,736,613 14,777,884 6,056,899 143,571,396
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 8,627,170 - - 8,627,170
Public protection 37,210,825 - - 37,210,825
Public ways and facilities 28,498,846 - 1,950,298 30,449,144
Health and sanitation 35,409,326 - - 35,409,326
Economic development 11,217,365 - - 11,217,365
Culture and recreation 11,723,103 - 158,532 11,881,635
Education 7,613,070 - - 7,613,070
Debt service:
Principal 771,808 8,845,526 40,000 9,657,334
Interest and fiscal charges 551,708 5,629,259 1,208 6,182,175
Capital outlay 2,779,513 - 16,704,312 19,483,825
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 144,402,734 14,474,785 18,854,350 177,731,869
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES {21,666,121) 303,099 (12,797 ,451) (34,160,473)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond issuance - - 8,000,000 8,000,000
Bond premium - - 17,998 17,998
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2,013,892 - 230,023 2,243,915
Transfers in 34,190,178 5,312,907 20,011,024 59,514,109
Transfers out (9,514,764) (18,469,692) (6,398,967) (34,383,423)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 26,689,306 (13,156,785) 21,860,078 35,392,599
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 5,023,185 (12,853,686) 9,062,627 1,232,126
FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2007 58,169,073 50,322,722 29,582,554 138,074,349
FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2008 $ 63,192,258 § 37,469,036 § 38,645,181 $139,306,475
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds account for revenues derived from specific tax or other
earmarked revenue sources, including federal and state grant awards, which are
restricted to finance particular functions or activities. Funds included in this fund category
are;

Road Fund — The Road Fund accounts for revenue and expenditures related to road
construction, road maintenance, engineering, and bridge maintenance.

OFC Children and Families Fund — The OFC Children and Families Fund administers
funding and programs targeted at young people throughout Clackamas County.
Resources are primarily from State legislation enacted to carry out children’s programs
throughout Oregon.

Clackamas County Fair Fund — The County Fair Fund accounts for activities related to
the annual Clackamas County Fair. Funding is derived from admission fees, exhibitor
fees, and proceeds from the County transient room tax.

Community Corrections Fund — The Community Corrections Fund accounts for the
activities of the parole and probations officers, the Residential Work Release Center, and
the Electronic Surveillance Program, all components of the Community Corrections
Division. This program, established by the Community Corrections Act of 1977, and
funded by the County General Fund and State dollars, is intended to provide alternatives
to imprisonment for nonviolent and other offenders.

County School Fund — The County School Fund is the pass-through repository for the
contributions to school districts in the County, as well as from a portion of the Mt. Hood
Forest Reserves and Forest Products Severance Tax receipts. Monies collected in this
fund are distributed to the school districts by the County Treasurer.

Development Services Fund — The Development Services Fund was created to record
receipts and expenditures related to building activity within the County. The Fund is
entirely fee supported and is the third largest building permit issuing body in the State of
Oregon.

Dog Control Fund — The Dog Control Fund provides for recording revenues and
expenditures to carry out the enforcement of all County and State laws relating to the
control of dogs within the County. Resources are the result of fees assessed for dog
licenses, kenneling and disposal services, and adoption of dogs from the shelter.



NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Community Solutions Fund — Community Solutions is the Division that provides a range
of training services to persons wishing to re-enter the workforce, and those suffering job
displacement. The Division also provides services to business operators who hire
Community Solutions trainees to provide work experience. The primary funding source is
federal dollars passed through the State of Oregon. Also accounted for in this Fund is the
weatherization program which provides low-income homeowners and renters with home
energy conservation assistance.

Family Court Service Fund — The Family Court Service Fund accounts for activities
needed to provide counseling and mediation for couples and families through all phases
of divorce proceedings. Funding is derived mainly from a portion of the County marriage
license fee, as well as divorce filing fees.

Human Services Administration Fund — The human services functions of Clackamas
County are recorded in their respective funds to more closely track the revenues and
expenditures associated with each program. Only the administrative costs of the Human
Services Director and his staff who oversee and coordinate the various programs are
recorded in this Fund.

Law Library Fund — The Law Library Fund exists to provide legal reference materials to
Clackamas County citizens by way of a library located in the courthouse. Funding for the
material purchases and staffing is received from a portion of legal fees assessed through
court filings.

Library Network Fund — The Library Network Fund receives receipts from property taxes
received by the General fund and transferred to the Law Library Network Fund. Proceeds
from the levy are distributed to eleven cities in the County as well as to the County Library
and its branches to help fund operations of the branches, as well as maintenance of the
County-wide library computer data network.

Parks Fund — The Parks Fund was established to account for costs related to the
operation and maintenance of seven county parks and four boat ramps available for
public use. In addition, the Parks Fund maintains an inventory of tax-foreclosed property
within the County. Revenues for the Fund are derived primarily from user fees, state
grants for specific improvement projects, and reimbursements from the State for
recreational vehicle fees and marine fuel taxes.

Planning Fund — The Planning Fund accounts for fees and expenditures to carry out
long and short term planning activities throughout Clackamas County.



NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Clackamas Mental Health Organization Fund — This fund accounts for revenues and
expenditures related to the contract the County Community Health Division has with the
Oregon Department of Human Services, Addictions and Mental Health Division to provide
services as a Mental Health Organization (MHO). The MHO manages mental health
benefits for Oregon Health Plan enrollees in a five county service region (Clackamas,
Gilliam, Hood River, Sherman, and Wasco Counties). This is the first year that the MHO
has been accounted for as a separate fund.

Public Land Corner Preservation Fund — The Public Land Corner Preservation Fund
was created to account for fees assessed on property transactions in the County. Fees
collected are used for monument restoration, the GIS system and engineering functions.

Social Services Fund — Programs funded by federal and state governments aimed at
elderly, low income and indigent residents of the County are provided through this Fund.
Included are fuel and emergency energy assistance programs, rent assistance, migrant
assistance programs for casual agricultural laborers, the Area Agency on Aging (AAA)
and many other emergency and nonemergency assistance functions using County staff
and a huge force of volunteers. The funding for these efforts is a mix of federal, state and
County General Fund dollars.

Community Environment Fund — The Community Environment Fund administers refuse
collection franchises, recycling programs, plumbing and building code enforcement, and
waste management ordinances in Clackamas County. Revenue is primarily from
franchise fees and other enforcement fees, as well as joint grant funded special projects
with METRO.

Sunnyside Village Park Acquisition Fund — The Sunnyside Village Park Acquisition
Fund was established to account for development fees to be used to acquire parkland
within Sunnyside Village.

Sunnyside Village Park Road Frontage Construction Fund — The Sunnyside Village
Park Road Frontage Construction Fund was created to account for fees assessed to build
roads adjacent to parks developed within Sunnyside Village.

Juvenile Fund — The Juvenile Fund provides counseling, detention, investigation and
administrative support services to children whose conduct or circumstances bring them
within the jurisdiction of the Juvenile Court.

Transient Room Tax Fund — The Transient Room Tax Fund was established to account
for receipts from Countywide hotel and motel tax. The proceeds are then distributed to
the County Fair Fund and the Associated Chambers of Commerce, to be used for the
promotion of tourism and recreation in Clackamas County.



NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Transportation System Development Charge Fund — This fund was created to account
for proceeds of the County's systems development charges. These charges fund
transportation infrastructure capacity improvements. The charge is levied on all new
building permit applicants, using a rating system designed to estimate the impact of the
proposed structure's use of County roadway systems. This impact translates to a charge,
the proceeds of which are held to help offset the costs of future roadway improvement
projects which increase roadway capacity. Also funded are the costs of the
Transportation System Development Fund’s administration.

District Attorney Fund — The District Attorney Fund provides staffing to represent the
State of Oregon in all misdemeanor and felony criminal prosecution, administering the
collection of child support and providing victim assistance services.

Public Safety Local Option Levy Fund — This Fund accounts for revenues and
expenditures generated by the public safety local option levy passed by voters in 2006.
The revenue generated by this levy is dedicated to public safety and is used to pay for
staff to reopen jail beds, add patrol positions and expand enforcement efforts to combat
methamphetamine abuse and other crimes.

Property Management Fund — The Property Management Fund was created to account
for revenues and expenditures associated with the use of County-owned facilities.

Employer Contribution Reserve Fund — The Employer Contribution Reserve Fund
accounts for funds set aside for the future provision of PERS obligations.

County Payments Account Project Fund — The County Payments Account Project
Fund accounts for the revenues and expenditures related to the “Secure Rural Schools
and Community Self-Determination Act of 2000".

Joint Transportation SDC Fund — The Joint Transportation SDC Fund accounts for the
collection of transportation system development fees for the purpose of constructing extra
capacity improvements arising from new developments.

Tax Title Land Fund — The Tax Title Land Fund accounts for the proceeds from the sale
of tax foreclosed property and to reimburse the Property Management Fund for costs
incurred by the County prior to sale.

Parks Trust Fund — The Parks Trust Fund accounts for the sale of County owned timber
and timberland.



CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
TAX COLLECTOR

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND TURNOVERS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Cash on hand, June 30, 2007
Receipts:*
Froperty tax applied to property tax rolls
Interest received on taxes
Total receipts and cash on hand

Turnovers to County Treasurer

Cash on hand, June 30, 2008

800

502,348,352
1,615,845

503,964 997

(503,964,197)

800

*Departmental cash receipts include agency fund collections which are not recognized as revenue of

County operating funds.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY. OREGON
TREASURER

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Cash on hand, June 30, 2007
Cash (book overdraft) 5 {(716,058)
Investmeants 336,255,125
Total cash and investments 335,539,067
Receipts:
Taxes collected* 502,348,352
Other collections ** 4,300,437,907
Total receipts 4,802,786,258
Disbursements:
Taxes distributed to taxing districts 503,502,158
Other distributions* 4,371,650,870
Total disbursements 4 875,153,028

Cash and investments, June 30, 2008

Cash 4,992,141
Investments 258,180,157
3 263,172,298

* Includes collections for timber, yield and other taxes which are not part of the tax roll,

“*Includes primarily receipts and disbursements of non-County agency funds.
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CLACKAMAS COU OREGON

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS
AND OUTSTANDING BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Fiscal Receivable

Year June 30, 2007 Lewy Discounts Interest Adjusiments Collections June 30, 2008
2007-08 -] - 5522305802 5{12,546455) S5 240249 § (B30,163) S$(491.203,549) §17.,974.884
2008-07 12,904,787 - 1,048 568,330 (144,686) (B,983,399) 4 346,089
2005-06 3,538,600 - 348 200,428 (247,131) (1,792,748) 1,780,497
2004-05 1,603,346 < 128 300,030 {33,009) (1,257,481) 612,114
2003-04 549,800 = 111 141,815 [24,B47) (542,833) 224 046
2002-03 271,049 = 79 25433 {11,915) (79,669) 204,977
and prior 412,447 2 - 40,551 (7.717) (104,519) 340,762

19,380,029 1,714 1,366,508 {470,205) (12.760,649) 7,517 485
§19,360,020 §522,305802 §(12,544741) $1,615.845 $(1,300,368) 5(503,964,198) 325492 369

Taxes receivable classified by fund:

General Fund 5 4,140,980
Special Revenue Funds:
Public Safety Local Oplion Lewy 278,016
Clackamas County Enhanced Law Enforcement District Fund 239,178
Marth Clackamas Parks and Recrealion District Fund 230,831

Debt Service Funds:
Clackamas Counly Development Agency

Clackamas Town Center Debt Service Fund 417,850
Government Camp Debt Service Fund 60,885
Morth Clackamas Revitalization Area Fund 20,851
Estacada Area County Service District for Library Services 5,703
Agency Fund 20,087,065
525.492,360
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STATISTICAL INFORMATION SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

This part of Clackamas County's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presenis detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the County's overall financial
health. This seclion contains the following tables and information:

= Financial Trends — These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the County's financial performance and well-being have changed over
time.

= Revenue Capacity — These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
County's most significant local revenue source.

= Debt Capacity — These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the County's current levels of outstanding debt and the County’s ability to
issue additional debt in the future.

« Economic and Demographic Information — These schedules offer economic and
demographic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the
County's financial activities take place.

* Operating Information — These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help
the reader understand how the information in the County's financial report relates to the
services the County provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the relevant year.
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OREGO

MNET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005
Governmental activities:
Invested in capital assels, nel of related debt 5 424,428,985 § 434,203,055 5 471,468,673 503,352,274
Restricted:
Debt servica 22,631,901 2,413,376 2,438,575 1,367,671
Acquisition and development - 826,011 704,838 1,418,606
Tolal restricted 22,631,901 3,230 387 3,143,814 2,786.277
Unrestricted 114,859 515 153,346,130 150,270,248 170,917,721
Total governmental aclivities net assels 561,960,401 590,788,572 624,882,735 677,056,272
Business-type activities:
Invested in capital assels, net of related debt 123,928,865 135,163,235 139,880,451 144,275,649
Resiricled for debl service 1,711,342 1,711,342 1,125,308 1,227,736
Unrestricted 41,367 612 34,739 271 38,220 569 43,449 860
Tolal business-lype activities net assels 167,007,819 171,613,848 180,226,328 188,953,245
Primary government:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 548,357,850 569,366,290 611,349,124 647,627,923
Reslricted:
Deblt service 24,343,243 4124718 3,564 283 2,585.407
Acquisition and development . 826,011 704,839 1,418,606
Tolal restricted 24,343,243 4,950,729 4,269,122 4,014,013
Unrestricted 156,267 127 188,085,401 188,490,817 214,367 .581
Total primary government nel assals 5 728,968,220 § TE2,402420 S 805,109,063 Bﬁﬁzuuﬂsﬁﬂ

Source: Clackamas County Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Motes:

{1} As these slalislics are based off GASE 34 enlity-wide statements there is no information available prior 1o 2003 as

GASE 34 was implemented by the County in fiscal year 2003,

(2) Met asset balances are shown for 2002 because the County recast ending fund balance lo establish a prior year nel

assel balance for the Statement of Activities.
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Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008
547,021,582 611.805327 S 608,482,281
45,382 426,882 276,177
24,392,787 24,646,482 24,194,094
24,438,169 25,073,364 24,470,271
164,334,672 112,373,836 156,786,010
735,794,423 749,252,527 789,738,562
146,118,932 159,128,951 170,268,221
1,151,569 5,753,170 4,872,482
49,408,469 44,923,808 43,599,401
196,678.970 209,806,929 218,740,104
693,140,514 770,935,278 778,750,502
1,186,951 6,180,052 5,148,659
24,392,787 24,646,482 24,194,004
25,589,738 30,826,534 28,342,753
213,743,141 157,297,644 200,385.411
932,473,393 950.050.456 5 1.008.478.666
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005
Expenses:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 48381405 5 54053867 5 55,171,589
Public protection 56,330,982 57,141,585 58,904,924
Public ways and facilities 30,105,695 30,832,826 27,933,991
Health and sanitalion 70,886,010 64,216,382 68,064,573
Culture and recrealion 18,249,115 15,234,625 14,611,717
Education 1,561,744 1,583,123 1,584,834
Economic development 9,596,207 9,313,178 10,150,409
Interast and fiscal charges 1,367,224 1,958,119 2,466,489
Total governmental activities expenses 236,478,382 234,343 805 238,858,636
Business-type activities:
Sanitary sawer and surface waler 18,115,843 20,703 664 20,965,008
Housing assistance 18,172,108 17,603,724 17,973,717
Golf - 1,816,556 1,799,130
Lighting 1,146,425 1,198,256 1,326,085
Tolal business-type aclivities expenses 37,434,377 41,422,200 42,063,050
Total primary governmen! expenses 273,812,759 275,766,005 280,962,566
Program Revenues:
Governmental aclivilies:
Fees, fines and charges for services:
General government 21,154,928 21,611,991 17,554 963
Public prolsction 6,077,736 5,173,960 4,515,305
Public ways and facililies 13,142,411 15,355,976 17,358,323
Health and sanitation 5,730,271 4442701 1,867,135
Culture and recrealion 4,811,802 3,129,533 3,165,325
Education 2,036,819 230 B
Economic development 188 1,285,660 784
Operating granis and contributions 86,327,109 91,179,886 959,983,285
Capital granis and contribulions 21,075,360 28,451,957 41,597,009
Tolal governmenial activilies program revenues 170.356.625 170,641,896 186,042,120
Business-lype aclivities:
Fees, fines and charges for services:
Sanitary sewer and surface watar 16,238,401 17,935,059 18,300,436
Housing assistance 3,329,346 3,197,303 3,208,314
Golf - 1,507,560 2,688,585
Lighting 849,055 1,269,911 1,206,236
Operating grants and contributions 13,764,697 12,799,743 13,378,521
Capital granis and conlribulions 6,219,170 11,586,626 11,583,066
Total business-lypa aclivilies program revenues 40,400,710 48,696,202 50,456,158
Total primary govermment program revenues 210,757,335 219,338,088 236,498,287
Met (Expense)/Revenue;
Governmenial activities (66,121,757} (63,701,909) (52,856,507)
Business-type aclivities 2,966,333 7,274,002 8,392,208
Total primary government nel expensea (63,155,424) (56,427 907) (44 464.259)

Sourge: Clackamas Counly Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Mole:

As these slatistics are based off GASB 34 enlily-wide slatemenis thera is no infarmation availabla prior to 2003 as
GASB 34 was implemented by the County in fiscal year 2003.
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Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008
38,075303 § 38,680,291 40,152,015
71,664,119 80,570,742 BB,172,022
30,122,608 73,100,383 40,228,623
73,581,911 79,053,114 62,921,860
11,078,611 11,934,872 11,174,891

B,048,454 9,363,440 7,606,669
11,764,126 13,800,062 15,494,522

773,286 1,340,350 6,198,736
246,008,419 307,943,254 271,049,338
21,086,158 22,381,344 24,773,913
18,080,512 17,568,579 18,504,232

2,038,131 2,354,071 2,321,301

1,459,985 1,551,296 1,676,281
42,664,786 43,855,200 47,275,727

288,673,205 351,798,544 319,225,065
11,386,546 11,053,069 11,845 557

4,821,133 5,343,663 4,171,464
18,557,929 19,755,386 6,894,044

2,719,679 3,516,311 8,167,104

3,288,571 5,208,118 5,202,642

530 601 350,353

31,608 36,800 618,525
101,493,004 108,281,842 112,138,677
50,853,114 49,343,155 31,966,004
193,152,115 202,538,845 181,454,370
18,913,320 18,805,710 20,495,448

4,378,854 3,789,050 14,489,360

2,668,640 3,081,996 2,801,556

1,466,608 1,588,399 1,722,537
12,743,836 12,781,069 3,006,230

9,161,143 13,290,978 9,827,894
49,332,501 54,338,102 52,343,034

242,484,616 256.877.047 233,797,404
(52,856,304) (105,404,309) {90,494,968)

6,667,715 10,482,812 5,067,307
{46,188,5689) (94,921,497) {85,427,661)
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BY PONENT (Continued

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005
General Revenues and Other Changes in Nel Assels:
Governmental activilies:
Properly taxes leviad for:
General purposes 5 63693058 5 66094935 5 68,944,051
Public protection 4,047,623 3,833,926 3,857 674
Cullure and recreation 3,051,410 3,175,276 3,203,561
Redevelopment districis 12,333,137 12,617,228 12,861,222
Library debt service - - -
Oiher taxes nol restricled lo specific programs 3,470,099 3,550,383 3,808,461
Gain on disposal of assels - - -
Earnings on investmenis 2,874,516 2,494 578 3,780,855
Miscellaneous 5,480,085 6,254,844 7,541,432
Transfars - {225,098) 742,688
Total governmental activiies 94,845 528 87,796,072 105,030,044
Business-lype aclivilies:
Earnings on investments 025 549 B33,442 1,166,121
Miscellaneous 714,147 279,938 (B8B,723)
Transfars - 225,098 (742,688)
Total business-type aclivities 1,638 696 1,338,478 334,710
Total primary government 86,589,624 88,134,550 105,364,754
Change In Met Assets:
Governmental activities 28,828,171 34,094,163 52,173,537
Business-type activities 4,606,029 8612480 B,726,918
Total primary governmeni g 33434200 5 42706643 § 60,900,455

Source: Clackamas Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
MNote:

As fhese slatistics are based off GASB 34 entily-wide statements there is no information available prior to 2003 as
GASE 34 was implemenied by the County in fiscal year 2003.
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Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008

$§ 72281361 % T7.524523 0§ 81,960,806

4,070,522 4,475,172 12,507,284
3,467,569 4,331,038 4,645,560
13,888,120 8,640,220 8,801,576
118,371 118,840 114,841
4,189,740 4,687,280 4,951,117
- 1.255,320 1,887,760
7,883,974 10,603,701 10,043,884
4,894,356 5,895,715 3,776,380
590,442 330,593 207.317
111,594,455 118,862,413 120,896,725
1,709,673 2,537,852 2,524,996
38,779 437,888 1,548,189
(690, 442) {330.5083) {207.317)
1,058,010 2,645,147 3,865,868

112,652 465 121,507,560 133,762,593

58,738,151 13,458,104 309,401,757
7.725,725 13,127.959 B8.933.175
% 0bAb3,B/6 5 96,080,063 § 48,334932




[#]e] OR

FUND BALANCES, GOVE

T TE CAL YEARS

[a[7]

L FLIN

(Modifien Accrral Basis of Accounting)

legl e
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 204 2005
General Fund
Resarved for iderfund loans 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 140,000 100,532 19734 5 -
WUnresered 8,458,375 8888 158 7024, 326 7,483,558 10,844,068 16,267,357 13.258 685
T 0458375 5 6605158 % 7004320
Tolal General Fund 9,458,375 EE 158 7024320 3 T.623,558 11,044,600 16,287,101 13.25&;985
All Cther Governmental Funds
Raservad for intedund koans 5 BD4823 8 1137877 § 450,058 2§ 432,705 432 706 - 5 -
Reservad for land held lor resals - - - - 2,458,200 2,458,290 2416979
Reserved for inventory 77,384 - . - - -
Unmsarvad, rapasied
Spaclal ravenua funds 32,325,800 27,804,265 34,235,550 32,780,659 33,762,439 38,491,808 52,077,301
Copilal projecis funds BB.7A7 084 78,520,428 65,387,788 54,052 808 52,383,774 28,163,582 32,743,402
Diebt service funds 17,601,830 10,801,888 7,023,234 23,816,380 37,130,328 50,194,284 59.873.917
Tolal all ather govemmental funds 5 139,506,881 = 118,864,337 107056830 5 111,082 531 125,147 538 110,307,864 & 147,211,589

Source: Clachamas Counly Comprehensive Annual Financial Repon
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Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008

5 - 8B 180000 S 147,188
17,602,586 15,388,001 17.534,893
g 17,602,566 3 15588001 % 17,982,191
=L

5 - 3 5114681 S 1,114,681
8,172,226 838,87 12,576,841
62,088,572 E0,5640,004 68,392,311
42,293,175 56,225,004 37,019,036
£0,036.843 49,872,722 27,907,257

5 163570816 3 179.201,258 = 148,410,226




LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
i ___ Fiscil Yoar _
1664 2000 2001 2002 ___mmn 2004
Rovonuos
Propoy laxes 5 70,120,132 5 74564205 5 TOSETTE 5 B2.014,538 5 H3.760,556 5 86,144,852
Diiser lanns - - - 3,320,205 470,009 1,550,751
Licenses and pomis 8,638,325 10,524,653 0,300,134 B.276,285 DUGDO,B4T 10266811
Finps, lorlaiures, and ponalles w7442 L1B4E17 1,008,040 1,136,320 1.375,701 1421624
Spocial assessmont collpclions 167,854 458,140 008,027 1073073 1318009 T3.047
IntorgoverTemental 01,004,163 85,013,600 112,088,476 116,113,240 116,737 524 115,668,048
Intornst 4 370,626 2,601,502 2,285,086
Chodgas lor sericos 25002.564 25,126,645 20,530,778 35,142,605 A0 116,122 33,753,750
Lond sale procoods - 27,033 . - - -
ROimgues s - . 10,540,530 - - =
biscofanoous 24,614,182 18,827 552 17,246,504 &, 704, 807 18,851,012 10,8 10,667
Tetal revorues 221,156,082 22 360,544 260,273,665 301,260,355 377602353 275,522,431
Expondiiuros
Gonoral gosemimom 005214 Z0.240, 0060 44,116.068 37271004 56,748,030 57,204,084
Public protoclion 4B,770,045 53,007,848 506,507,004 58,375,195 58,623,420 59,656,115
Pubkc ways and laciinies 23,555,502 21,214,572 23,572,270 23,400,378 22,433,024 211220950
Hiallh aruf sanitalicn 03,515,418 12,454,354 80,081,108 82,310,520 o1,617.087 75,247,300
Culure and recroalion 16,333,022 15,038,757 16,468,567 17257123 15,597 260 14377513
Edlucalion 1,538,641 1,560,161 1271 ETT 1,502,104 1,567,744 1,583,173
Ezanaric davelopmant - - . - - -
Dol seracn:
Prncipal T.A65,084 6,500,000 31,450,308 2625,553 2,337,067 1,045,202
Intprost and Escal chingoes 31,530,365 2,037,032 1.7E7 822 1,630,055 1,367,215 1.8ET.662
Capital ouliay 22 A08 000 32,082,154 33,560, 001 24030324 33.416.300 46.130.120
Totad oxpenditungs® 232 077,248 232,004,047 FB0 700,605 FEEAT1 20 FTAALZ 05 791174888
Excoss (dafelancy) of revenues ovar axpendiiuies 11,530,567 {8,635,003) {20,487 3204 A4 048 084 360 267 (E.251,485)
Qiher Financing Saurces (Usos]
Procends from refundng bonds, nal - 17715714
Payment to redunting bond paying agent - 131,784,864) . -
Intankurd faan repayinam 55,000 . 41,252 -
Loan procogds - - 586,332 -
Procoods irom sole of capdal assals - 2512430 25,061 - . -
Issuanco of bondod dbt 4,408,384 * 31, 507.051 - 17,574,642 6328727
Issunnco of condract payabin - - - 02,486 - 168,460
Loas an kand bold for resaso - - - - [3046,705) .
Transless ba othaf geommonis - - - = = =
Transloes in 55,570,441 67,128,360 04,000,760 04,454,103 72832170 TI517 Bad
Transiers out 157 DAS.063) 67,533, X26) [OT 280.817) (B4 527 313} {75,043 238} {70,378 BTG}
Total ceher Bnancing Sourcos fuses) 2057, 762 (11.841,686) __ 20.85057% [FOG23) 15,006,781 3,664 382
Mol chango In fund balancos g 1.-1:'!!.195 5 (MsT0080) 5 1,363288 5  &7TRATL E 1, 400 040 5 ’151}?_!}?‘31
Dol serace a5 a percentago al
On-CAMEA| CoponisRines 55% 49% 130% 1.8% 1.6% 1.6%

Sourcn: Clackamas County Comprohansive Annual Fngnciol Ropan

Holes

[¥] 2005 was i Bt year i which program expondilunes or Economic Development wano ropodtad in tho County CAFR
Econaimss devologmand capantiluns coounmod in ofer yoors nd wore nol naparked sopasioly,

Does nod nclidn donmed capiol 355088 vl e repand on M Siatomant of Rot Assets
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Fiscal Yaar

2005 508 FET
5 BE7200183 5  B4.0E2OTT 5 66,882,022 5 107807803
3,800,501 4,180,480 A6ET 200 4,651,117
13,478,901 18,662,607 22 182,735 15,332 827
1.853,118 1,621,100 1. 726,557 1.722.852
1435875 180,875 167 804 155,230
13297, 205 135,970,002 40 A5 402 6310838
3,405,847 TA40,163 866,115 133,182,832
37,478,328 7,104,108 51,108,371 51,054 009
410,787 - 5,074,040 314,634
20,208 258 16815707 22,070,751 21,565,688
SO4.6TE. 100 318,448 BOS 64 BT0AE0 Mﬂﬁ?.ﬁﬂ
03,208,285 48,546,345 53,300,301 51,170,370
03,142,007 T, 150,042 84,638,046 BO,BE4. 340
1B TaD 838 21,588,250 T2 103,661 37,102,583
72800282 T, 370502 B0.772,601 T3,E08.330
15,764 544 8854777 10,638,628 15,420,807
bS04 534 B,691.248 0,268,107 13, E30,0C0
10,168,139 131312 16,180,136 7813070
4,910,706 4107072 2,021,453 BBST.33d
2438701 2304 400 2352310 8,162,175
33,611.001 37,241,638 05 776,310 B0.725.011

287,380,440 302 288, 336 424,044 212 385062, 122
17,594,745 16,160,620 (69,673.746) (36,234,303

; H 2270821
1,630,472 . B5, 405 576 B017 808
5,300,000 7,127,800 i .
= {1,837 566} . .
08,052,553 116,608,001 96,320,827 117,462,308
97,802 251 (117446756} (101,355,780} 118,177 B84}
7,280,774 4,542,160 B3.350.623 8,573,203

5 22075510 5 Mororyed S 13785 877 5 Eﬂm.lzﬂt

20% 5% 16% 82%
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal

Year Less:
Ended Real Personal Mobile Public Litility Tax-Exempl

June 30, Properly Property Homes Property Property

1008 18,510,880,670 616,301,370 § 272,068,000 § 602165680 N

2000 19,701,253,370 660,821,740 278,157,150 684,147,160 MiA

2001 21,031,289,551 694,425,804 286,015,171 730,846,366 A

2002 22,171,983,788 717,108,831 283,708,811 826,814,281 MNFA

2003 23,385,420,466 714,745,665 238,103,897 817,180,464 (IEY

2004 24,596,451,802 718,446,579 220,200,803 B41,655,964 M,

2005 25,791,723,246 726,739,679 202,816,302 895,188,608 MiA

2006 29,956,429 544 801,657,096 223,850,660 964,730,855 2,892,471,273
2007 31,926,055,480 768,823,257 205,335,047 823,821,160 3,072,401,495
2008 33,947 928,598 780,241,341 201,283,980 873,990,260 3,247,473 499

Source: Clackamas County Department of Assessment and Taxation

Moles:

{1) A property tax limitation measure became effective in fiscal 1998, The measure limiled taxes on each properly
by reducing the 1997-98 assessed value of each property lo 904% of its 1995-96 value. The measure also limits
future growth of taxable value to 3% per year wilh certain exceplions as well as establishing permanent lax rates for
Oregon's local taxing districts, which replaces the former tax base amounts of the district.

(2) The iotal direct tax rate reported is for Clackamas County, Component unit tax rates are reported in the schedule of
direct and overlapping rates on page 172. A range of rates is reporied for each year, with urban rates at the low
end and rural rates al the high end, Services to rural areas have been delermined lo be more costly.

(3) Tax-exempt property for 1999-2005 is not available at this time. Total taxable assessed valued for all years
is reporied net of lax-exempt properdy.

M8 Mol available
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Assessed

Total Taxable Estimated Value as a

Assessed Tofal Direct Actual Cash Percentage of

Value Tax Rale Value Aclual Value
20,001,415720 §  2.4042-209661 § 26,109,138,580 T6.61
21,333,379,420 2.4042 - 2.9648 28,101,488,020 75.92
22,756,576 082 24042 - 2.9724 20,608 986,004 76.85
23,999.616,711 24042 - 2.9707 30,953,135,346 77.54
25,153,450 492 2.3402 - 2.8262 32,639,906,764 77.06
26,376,755,248 2.3387 - 2.8214 34,220,258,939 77.08
27,617,467 835 2.3270 - 2.8235 36,857,601,161 74.93
29,054,205,911 2.0386 - 2.8129 41,228,796 488 70.47
30,751,633,489 1.4900 - 2.8683 48,637 676,395 63.23
32 655,970,680 1.3256 - 2.8615 57,192,685,090 57.10
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DIRECT

Clackamas Counly:
Rural
Cily
Public Salety Local Oplion 2006

Component units;

CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
D OVE PPING PROP T

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
(Rale per 51,000 of Assessed Value)

Clackamas County Enhanced Law Enforcement District

Morth Clackamas Parks and Recrealion Dislrict

Clackamas County Developmeant Agency

Estacada Area County Service Dislrict for Library Services

City rales:
Barlow
Canby
Canby local option
Damascus
Eslacada
Estacada exempt bond
Gladstone
Gladslone local oplion
Happy Vallay
Happy Valley local oplion
Lake Oswego (oulside and inside school district)
Lake Oswego exempl bond
Mitwaukie
Mikwaukie exempt bond
Malala
Molalla exempt bond
Cregon City
Cregon City exempt bond
Pariland
Portiand local oplion 2002
Poriland fire/police pensian
Portland exempt band
Sandy
Tualatin
Tualatin exempt bond
Tualatin exemplt bond 2005
Wesl Linn
Wesl Linn exempl bond
Wilsonville
Wilsonville exempt bond

Gchoaol districts rates, inclusive of local oplion levies

Community collegefeducational service district rates, including local optian levies

Educational exempl bonds rales
Fire districls, Inclusive of local oplion levies

Urban renewal, olher than Clackamas County Development Agency

Other special district rates

Source: Clackamas County Department of Assessment and Taxation

Motes:

(1) Overlapping rales are those of local governments thal apply lo properly owners within Counly geographical

boundaries. Mol all overlapping rates apply o all County property owners.

(2) Property tax levies may only be approved by a majorily vole In eleelions in which a majorily of volers

RATES

cast a ballol. In November elections of even numbered years a majorily vote in favor of a tax levy
is sufficient to enact a levy, regardiess of voler lumoul.

(3) Rates naled as exempl bond rales are excluded from property Lax Bmitations noted in (1) above,

172

1,3256 - 2.8615
1.9425 - 2.4042
02245 - 0.2480

06725
0.5111
0.3859 - 0.6ET3
01222

0.5894
3.2440
0.3906
3.3000
26749
0.5241
4.4838
0.89300
0.6710
1.3800
4.5884 - 4.8035
05264
4.0512
0.3996
5.3058
01222
4.8283
0.1684
42117
0.7352
2.1584
0.1730
7315
1.9537
0.1280
0.1805
21200
Q2117
2.0873
D.1594

3.9684 - 6.5281
0.1315 - 0.5476
0.0831 - 3.8638
0.7833 - 24552
0.1482 - 3.1427
0.0054 - 1.4774






CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS

JUNE 30, 2008 AND NINE YEARS AGO

2008
Percentage
of Total District
Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value
Porlland General Electric 5 457,385,000 1 140 %
Fred Meyer Stores Inc. 175,938,129 2 .54
MNaorthwest Natural Gas Company 171,088,700 3 52
General Growth Properiies Inc. 136,749,352 4 42
PCC Structurals Inc. 83,838,807 a .26
Sharenstein Properties LLC 72,368,247 6 22
Xerox Corporation 69,033,458 7 21
Qwest Corporation/U.S. West in 1993 68,453,400 8 21
Varizon Morthwest Inc. 60,390,600 9 .18
Safeway Slores Inc. 50,761,633 10 6
Clackamas Assoc LTD Partnership
Speiker Properties LP
Tektronix Inc.
Wilmington Trust Co.
Precision Caslparts Corporation
Mentor Graphics Corporation
GTE NW Incorporated
Total ] 1,346,007,326 412 %

Source: Clackamas County Department of Assessment and Taxation
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1999

Percentage
of Total Disfrict
Taxahle Taxable
Assessed Assessed
Value Rank Value

5 261,352 400 1 131 %
80,904,800 ] A0
81,832,800 L L1
98,968,820 2 448
85,793,970 3 Ad
67,246,370 & .34
64,741,390 7 32
58,061,500 a8 .28
55,213,620 9 .28
41,793,900 10 21

§ B95,909.570 448 %
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY. OREGON

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Collected within the
Year Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Caollections 1o Date
Ended for the Perceniage in Subsequent Percaniage
June 30, Fiscal Year Amounl of Lavy Years Amount of Lavy
1999 5 51845774 & 50,002,541 863 % § 1,141,823 5 51,144.464 98.5
2000 55,006,249 51,458,416 836 2,084 359 53,542,765 97.3
2001 5847360 54,515,118 832 2,098,388 56,613,506 96.8
2002 61,526,413 57 457 564 93.4 2,122,144 59,579,708 95.8
2003 65,152,983 61,115,287 3.8 1,913,507 53,028,804 96.7
2004 67,766,126 53,837,062 94.2 1,634,843 65,471,905 96.6
2005 71,044,659 67,156,042 84.5 1,428,364 GE,585,406 96.5
2008 74,286,644 70.568,735 95.0 1,965,786 72,535,521 976
2007 79,339,667 75,124,257 94.7 1,409,340 76,533,597 96.5
2008 81,803,807 86,387,265 94.0 - 86,387,265 94.0

Source: Clackamas County Depariment of Azsessment and Taxation
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Governmenlal Activilies

Horih Clackamas Harih Clackamas

Clackamas County Parks Parks

General Davelogment Agency Limiled Full Failh Limnited Tax Linied Loans and Capital
Fiscal Oibligatian Redeveiopmeni Tax Assassmani and Credil Ravenua Full Failh & Credit Conbracts Loases
Year Bonds Bonds Bends. Chuligalion Refunding Bonds Obsgtion Paysils Payable
1888 5 0271616 5 43451530 g 585000 g - 5 - § ER 1 9,640,000 5 -
2000 8,560,000 24,457 302 515,000 . 8,580,000 - 8,370,000 3,108,154
2001 17,040,000 - 5,550,000 1,070,000 8,560,000 - 2.575,000 2.28B,549
2002 7,555,000 = 5,080,000 1,245,000 8,250,000 - 2,789,209 1,233,365
2003 6,205,000 - 5,030,000 19,182,416 6,005,000 - 2617225 849,757
2004 4,743,088 - 4,900,000 24,207 416 7710000 - 2401270 Te1L310
2005 5,128,558 - 2,680,000 24,080,502 7,400,000 - 1.510,347 536,452
2006 3,487,531 . £.400,000 23,668,588 T.070,000 = 14,486,387 281,801
2007 1,852 036 35,333,000 1,400,004 73,789,250 B.725,000 - 13,784 944 78,697
2008 1,807,288 IOLOST,AT4 1,400,000 TOE1T.B74 B, 360,000 B,017,712 12,832 618 40,059

Saurce; Clackarmas County Finance Departmen

Moles:
[ 1) Datails negarding the County's culstanding debl can be found in the Basic Financial Sialements o Nola 7.

[2} Per copita and perceniape of personal intoms (s based on he population of Ine entire County os réponed on page 181.
[3) Waler Enseonment Sernces debl meludes Clackamas Counly Service Distict No. 1 and Te-City Sarvice Disinel dabd.

Nrf: Mot avodabio
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Busingss-Type Actmias

Sanitary Sewar ‘Wader Environment
Housing Aulnondy  Housing Authonly  Siona Creek Gall & Surace Waler Saervice Serdce Detnct Na, 1 Services
General Loans pnd Full Faith Loans and Destnici M. 1 Bancrofl Ganaral Percentage
Ciligabon Canlracts and Credt Conlracts Reverue Impeavement Otlgaiion al Personal Per
Bands Payable Bonds Payable Bands Bands Bonds Total Incomie Comta
5 14313239 5 2863216 5§ - 5 3349411 5 11435000 5 1,600.424 5 BOTS,000 & 105805435 DoT = 327
12,782,085 1,313,177 - 3,118,615 10,535,000 1415424 £,005,000 &0,210,937 0.5 218
12,149,682 1,250,260 - 2,928,681 10,535,000 1045424 3,505,000 68,858,596 0.57 04
13,433,165 1,200,563 * 2,773,844 12,748,000 B90,424 1,770,000 58,848,574 049 171
11,122,553 1065648 - 2,611,578 13,188,000 350424 - 10,258,596 0.57 200
699,116 145,040 5,355,000 2442810 12,415,000 335424 - TTATS. 280 0.59 ral:]
9,688,253 1,000,784 6,120,000 2,208,887 11,585,000 220,424 - 78,277,008 0.55 220
9.468,103 957 842 5,685,000 2083 487 10,085,444 320,424 - TRA14,727 0.5z 216
5,232,853 911,985 5,642,550 1,882,749 8,244,504 320,424 - 160,208,482 WA 430
8,987,803 TIRS3 5388012 1,684,133 B,271,444 = - 15&,405,348 HA 415
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Fiscal
Year

1949

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

Mote: Details regarding the County’s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements

CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

General Full Faith Total General
Obligation and Credit Bonded Debt
Bonds Obligations Outstanding

10,271,616 - L 10,271,616
8,560,000 - 8,560,000
17,040,000 1,070,000 18,110,000
7,585,000 1,245,000 8,840,000
6,205,000 19,182,416 25,387 416
4,743,086 24 287 416 28,030,502
5,128,558 24,090,502 20,219,060
3,487,531 23,868,588 27,356,118
1,852,036 73,789,250 75,641,286
1,807,388 70,617,974 72,425,362

Less: Amounis
Availabla in
Debt Service Fund

57,037
89,585
63,014
42,828
11,151
(93,861)

38,015

1) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property on page 171 for actual taxable value of property

2) Population Data can be found in the Schedule of Demographic Stalistics on page 181
Source: Clackamas County Finance Depariment
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Percentage of
Aclual Taxable

Value of Pear
Total Property Capila

] 10,271,616 0.05% 32
8,560,000 0.04% 526
18,110,000 0.08% 554
8,782,963 0.04% 325
25,287 831 0.10% 572
28,967 488 0.11% §82
29,176,232 0.11% 82
27,344 968 0.09% 375
75,735,147 0.25% 8202
72,387,347 0.22% 3192

176a



CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

JUNE 30, 2008

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unil QOuistanding Applicable Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes
Oak Lodge Water District #4 5 1,290,000 100 % & 1,280,000
Colton Water District #11 101,967 100 101,967
Clackamas Counly Rural Fire Protection District #1 5,695,000 100 5,689,108
Monitor Rural Fire Protection District 58 55,000 0 49,553
Collen Rural Fire Protection District #70 145,000 100 145,000
Clackamas County School Disfrict 3J (West Linn-Wilsonville) 114,852,238 o8 113,003,231
Clackamas County School District 7J (Lake Oswego) 77,078,922 a9 76,165,692
Clackamas County School Districl #12 (Norih Clackamas) 302 476,142 100 302,476,142
Clackamas County School District #52 (Oregon City) 58,115,000 100 58,115,000
Clackamas Counly School District #108 (Estacada) 22,640,000 100 22,640,000
Clackamas County School District #115 (Gladstona) 48,741,673 100 46,741,673
Clackamas County School District #86 (Canby) 65,075,000 100 65,075,000
Clackamas County School District #35 (Molalla River) 1,960,000 100 1,960,000
Clackamas Community Callage 40,205,000 100 40,205,000
City of Happy Valley 5,000,000 100 5,000,000
City of Lake Oswego 25,665,000 85 24,301,804
City of Milwaukie 1,280,000 a9 1,273,125
City of Molzlia G04,642 100 G4, 642
City of Oregon City 2,860,000 100 2,860,000
Cily of West Linn 8,635,000 100 8,635,000
Silverton Rural Fire Protection District 2,105,000 5 102,518
Marion County School District 4. (Silver Falls) 54,470,000 10 5,233,750
Metra 205,626,671 20 41,890,060
Tri-Metropolitan Transportation District 44,395,000 20 B,727.879
Multnomah County School Disirict 28J (Centennial) 36,424,685 a 2,755,127
Mullnomah County School District 51J (Riverdale) 9,955,053 5 524,114
Multnomah County School District 10J (Gresham-Barlow) 55,165,000 8 4,411,380
Mt Hood Community College 5,645,000 - 18 1,000,585
Portland Communily College 44,405,000 & 2,780,597
Willamette Educational Service District 2,150,000 1 14,545
Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue District 1,475,000 17 248,201
Washinglon County School Districl 23J (Tigard-Tualkatin} 138,870,000 k| 3,864,197
Washinglon County School District 88J (Sherwood) 130,811,600 f 0,825,783
City of Tualalin 14,075,000 12 1,726,116
Yambhill County School District 28J (Newbearg) 55,000,000 2 1,319,780
Sunrise Water Authority GES5,000 100 665,000
Estacada Library District 1,750,000 100 1,790,000
Clackamas County School District #4 (Dickie Prairie) 200,000 100 200,000
Clackamas County School District #4 (UH4 Bond) 1,880,000 100 1,880,000
Other Debt
Morth Clackamas Parks and Recreation Districl 14,360,000 100 14,360,000
Clackamas Counly Rural Fire Frotection District #1 20,320,000 100 20,298,958
Clackamas County School District 3J (West Linn-Wilsonville) 42 180,000 a8 41,500,944
Clackamas County School District 7J (Lake Oswega) 44,637,074 a9 44 108,794
Clackamas County School District #12 (Merth Clackamas) 106,902,612 100 106,802,612
Clackamas County School District #52 (Oregon City) 45,815,000 100 45,815,000
Clackamas County School District #108 (Estacada) 12,680,000 100 12,680,000
Clackamas County School Districl #115 (Gladstone) 15,437 267 100 15437267
Clackamas County School District #86 (Canby) 33,778,005 100 33,778,005
Clackamas Counly School District #35 (Molalla River) 21,773,285 100 21,773,285
Clackamas Community College 53.520,000 100 53,520,000
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT (Continuad)

JUNE 30, 2008

Eslimated
Eslimated Share of
Debt Fercentage Overlapping
Governmenltal Unit Cutslanding Applicable Debt
Other Debt (Continued)
Cily of Estacada 5 1,237,100 100 % § 1,237,100
City of Gladstone 2,485,000 100 2,465,000
City of Milwaukia 4,280,000 a9 4,257,012
City of Oregon City 16,785,000 100 16,785,000
City of West Linn 3,235,000 100 3,235,000
City of Wilsonville 14,725,000 a0 13,186,782
Morthwest Regional Educatlonal Service District 7.825,000 1 61,575
Marion County School District 4.1 (Silver Falls) 15,443,114 10 1,483,852
Port of Portland 73,096,046 25 18,299,741
Metro 74,480,000 20 15,172,991
Multnomah County School Districl 1J (Portland) 475,332,502 0 404,033
Multnomah County School District 28. {Centennial) 601,667 8 45,509
Multnomah County School District 51J (Riverdale) 1,500,000 5 78,472
Multnomah County School District 10J (Gresham-Barlow) 57,819,501 8 4,623,652
Mullnomah Educational Service Disirict 37,225,000 2 657,915
Mt Hood Community College 54 388,742 18 9,640,296
Portland Community Caollege 195,830,000 6 12,262,679
City of Portland 616,947,224 0 1,085,827
Willamelle Educational Service District 21,962,665 1 148,577
Tualalin Valley Fire & Rescue District 19,000,000 17 3,197,168
Washinglon County School District 23J (Tigard-Tualatin} 6,047 BTG . 168,268
Washington County School District 88J (Sherwood) 13,143 446 B 9B7.257
Yamhill County School District 29 (Newberg) 32,291,810 2 774,874
Clackamas County Educational Service District 27,350,000 100 27,216,094
Clackamas County Schoal District #46 (Qregon Trail)] 665,000 100 665,000
Subtotal overlapping debt 1,413,607,615
County direct debt 134,667,322
Total direct and overlapping debt 1.548.274 937

Source: Municipal Debt Advisory Commission, Stale of Oregon, Office of the CountyTreasurer

Mote:

{1) Overiapping governments are those that coincide, al lzast in parl, with the geographic boundaries of the Counly. This schedule estimales
the portion of the oulstanding debt of those overapping governmenis that is bome by the residents and businesses of tha County,

The State of Oregon provides overlapping debl data based on real market valuation of properties for each |urisdiction.
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

1999 2000 2001 2002
Deit limit 5 522182772 5 562,029,720 $ 582199.722 S 619,082,707
Tofal net debt applicable to limit V6,113,385 51,814,367 33,004,682 22,798,168
Legal debt margin 5 446,069,387 5 510,215,353 $ 559,105,040 S 596,264,538
Total net debl applicable to the limit
as a perceniage of debl limit 14.58% 89.22% 5.59% 3.68%

Source: Clackamas County Finance Department

Motes:
{1) Through 2006 ORS 287.054 provided ", . . the aggregale amount of general obligation bonded indebtedness of counties shall not at any
lime excaed two parcent of the true cash value of all taxable property in the Counly."

{2) In 2007 287.054 was repealed by HB 3265 and replaced with 287A.100 (2) ", . .a county may not issue or have oulslanding
at the time of issuance general obligation bonds in a principal 2amount that exceeds two percent of the real market value of the taxable
property in the counly, . .~

{3} Debt reported as applicable lo limit includes only general obligation bonded debl.
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2003 2004 2003 2006 2007 2008
5 G47.399935 5 G84405179 5 TATA52,023 5 B24,5758930 5 972,753,528 5 1,143,853,501
17,328,553 14,642,202 14,816,811 12,955,634 46,417,889 40,852 665
§ 630,0/M,382 5 GE9,762977 § 722335212 5 811620296 2§ D2G6335538 5 1,103,001,235
2.68% 2.14% 2.01% 1.57% 4.77% 3.57%
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Fiscal
Year

1806
2000
2001
2002

2003

2005
2006
2007

2008

2007

2008

1968

2000

2003
2004
2005
2009
2007

2008 (2)

K COUNTY G

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmenial Activities Limited Tax Asscssmenl Bonds

Less: Met
Assassment Oyparating Avallable Debt Sendce
Revenuas Expenses Ravenue Principal Inlerest Coverage

s 103,388 -3 - 5 103,368 5 125,000 3 31,810 0.66
80,034 - 60,034 70,000 24,870 0.95
674,666 - B74.686 108,000 261,920 2,38
1,077,295 - 1,077,205 110,000 336,908 2.41
1,335,080 - 1,335,080 135,000 331,706 2.86
737150 - 737,150 110,080 325,098 1.68
1,409,025 - 1,400,025 2,380,000 248 6544 0,53
200,288 - 200,286 1,375,000 176,188 0,13
186,112 - 188,112 - 81,000 205
186,578 - 158,578 - 91,000 1.72

General County Loan Payable lo Oregon Department of Transportation !

Stalae and County Less: MNed
Transpodation Cperaling Avallable Debt Service
Ravenues Expenses Revanue Principal Iniarest Coverage
§ 25,320,155 $ 20513248 5§ 4815907 § - 8 254,414 16.93
23,851,232 21,530,508 1,811,728 681,260 459,374 1.88
21,330,519 21,655,244 (324,725) 706,808 433,828 {0.28)
Clackamas County Services District No. 1 Bancroft Improvement Special Assessment Bonds
Assassmant Ggr::l:m Av:r;hle Debt Service
Revenua Expanzas Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
5 61,289 5 - 5 61,389 3 385,000 -3 138,137 on
24,804 - 24.8%4 385,000 113,122 0.05
14,782 - 14,762 aro,onun 87,631 0.03
438412 ¥ 458,412 335,000 62,845 1.0
875,776 - 875,776 340,000 148,039 1.78
735,777 * 85,777 113,000 135,096 3.05
20,840 - 20,940 15,000 25,106 0.5z
20,222 - 20,222 = 24,352 0.83
18,744 - 19,744 - 24,352 0.
5180 - 5,169 320,424 12177 0.02

Soiwce: Clackamas Coundy Finance Deparmentl

Molas

{1) Loan payabie by Genaral County 1o Cregon Department of Transportalion is payable from highway laxes and syslem development charges,
Operating expenses nelied againsl revenue above Inchude roads deparimant maintenance cosls and oparating expenses of the Joinl
Transporiation SDC Fund and the Transporlation Syslem Developmean! Charge Fund,

{2) &ll Bancroft bonded debt lor Clackamas Counly Service Disirict #1 was pald as of 06/30/08.
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Year
1899
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008

Sources:

Motes:

CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Portland
Personal Metropolitan
Income Per Capila Area
(thousands Personal Unemployment
Fopulation of dollars) Income (1) Rate (2)
323,600 b 10,885,288 5 33,669 45 %
326,850 11,948,655 36,557 4.0
338,391 12,052,811 35,618 5.9
345,150 12,179,653 35,288 7.8
350,850 12,473,770 35,5563 7.8
353,450 13,110,874 37,084 6.8
356,250 14,153,456 39,729 6.0
367,040 15,187,381 41,378 5.0
372,270 N/A, NIA, 5.0
376,660 N/A NIA, 5.4

Center for Population Research and Census, School of Urban and Public Affairs,
Portland State University
Department of Human Resources, State of Oregon, Employment Division

(1) Data is for calendar years.

{2} Includes Clackamas, Multnomah, Washington and Yamhill Counties in Oregon.

NiA: Not available
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CLACHAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

JUNE 30, 2008 AND NINE YEARS AGO

2008 1859

Percentage Percentage
Employar Employees Rank of Total Employoos Rank of Tatal
Intal Corp. 16,000 1 02 % 10,300 1 01 %
Fred Mayar Slores 13.000 2 .01 9,065 2 1} ]
Oregon Health & Sciences University 12,100 3 .01 3,803 9 0o
Providence Health Syslem 12,000 4 .0 5,220 5 o
Kaiser Foundation Health Plan of the Morthwast 8,789 5 01 7.025 3 .M
City of Portland B.613 ] .0
Legacy Heallh Syslem B,196 7 ki 4402 7 .00
Wells Fargo Bank 5,306 8 Kid
Beaverion School District 5,000 L] 00
Mike Inc, 5,000 10 00
Tekironix Inc. 5,000 & 01
Fraightlinar Corp. 4,000 a 00
5. Bancorp 5322 4 01
Safeway, Inc., Portland Division 3,668 ¥} 00
Total 94,004 0.09 % 57,885 0.06 %
Sources:
Motes:

1) Statislics ara the latest available data published in the Portland Business Journal Book of LisPo0s,

and Book of Lists 1959

2) Total Portland Metropciitan Area employment used 1o calculate percenlages is from the Oregon Employment Depariment.
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c

FULL.-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/IFROGRAM

5 COUN

o]

[#]

_LLET FIVE FISCAL YEARS
Function/Program 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
General government
Counly commassioners & admimstration 11.8 11.8 11.3 13.8 138
Assassor 57.5 57.5 57.5 57.5 51.5
Information services 48.3 48.3 5.3 52.3 52.8
Building services and survayor 46.5 50.0 54.0 558.5 57.5
Financa 348.6 39.3 39.8 351 361
Facililies managemenl 14.0 14.0 14.0 16.0 16.0
Caounly clerk 28.0 28.0 28.0 28.0 28.0
Employee services 8.4 30.6 0.8 Iza a6
Other 35.3 3r.5 38.7 38.4 43.6
Tolal General governmant 3084 B0 3254 3344 KRN
Public prolection
Homaland security and dispaich 48.0 45.0 47.0 50.0 50.0
Juvenile court services 45.0 470 47.5 475 48.5
Sheril 524 o 362.5 g2 4343
Communily corrections 788 85.3 a8r.3 B7.3 105.5
District aftorney 1.0 81.0 #3.0 B0 80.2
Total Public protection 805.2 635.3 627.3 652.9 T728.4
Pubic ways and facililies
Roads 12589 1249 118.9 119.9 106.9
Engineering 40.1 38.3 40.1 40.8 47.8
Tolal Pubbc ways and ladilities 166.0 164.2 158.0 160.7 154.7
Hegllh and sanilation
Communily kealth 284.6 284.6 300.2 A09.6 00.5
Social services 122.8 1277 124.9 114.2 117.4
Communily enviranmen! 12.3 12.3 124 124 13.8
Dog servicas 10.8 12,0 12.0 13.0 13.0
Milwaukie Cenler a7 9.2 9.2 9.7 9.7
Cihar 12.0 12.0 13.0 13.0 12.5
Tolal health and sanitalion 432.2 457.8 471.7 471.8 466.9
Cullure and recraalion
Public land comar 11.5 1.5 12.5 12.5 12.5
Parks and forester 35.3 339 32.0 35 34.6
Caounlty [air and tourism 10.0 11.0 11.3 11.0 10,0
Tolal cullure and recrealion 56.8 5B.4 55.8 550 &7.1
Education
Library 15.5 16.3 13.3 11.0 11.0
Libeary nelwaork 5.6 5.6 6.6 6.8 6.8
Total education 21.1 219 19.9 17.8 17.8
Economic devalopmeant
Flanning 321 3.6 331 331 331
Communily developmant 20 9.0 80 129 13.0
Communily solulions 48.5 38.9 42.8 47.8 59.1
Development Agancy 8.0 66.0 6.0 8.0 9.0
Other 5.5 4.0 4.0 5.0 5.3
Todal econamic development 1011 149.5 94,9 107.8 119.4
Solid waste 100.0 104.0 105.0 105.0 110.0
Housing assksiance 44,5 42.5 39.0 43.0 38.0
Lighting 1.0 1.0 1.0 - 0.0
Tatal 1,636.3 1,950.5 1.889.0 19484 2035.2

Source: Clackamas Counly Financa Deparimant

Maolas:

{1} Reported full-time equivatent employeas are budgeted employees par final budgets at each year-end.
Budpeled employees approximata aclual.

(2) The local opthon law enforcament levy passed by the volars in 2006 provided funding for addilional shorriff staff
{3) Information was nol kept in this format priar o 2004 therefore i was nol available 1o disclose.
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LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS

FuncilonProgram 2003 2004 2005
Gonoral govemmant:
Building sarvices:
Residantial plans raviewad within 15 busineas days Q8% 95% i
Treasurar.
Tolal return on invesimanis 212% 2.05% 27T8%
Emergency communications:
Law enforcernem calls dispaichod 217,025 234ma 247 Bov
Emargoncy madical calls dispalchad MR 17,817 18,204
B-1-1 calls answered within 10 seconds oT% e8% B6%
Public profection:
Sherill:
Arrests booked Into fail 9.662 10,726 10,247
Domestic violence repas 1.012 20 BBE
Driving under Influance amasts 674 531 556
Traflic chations 20,148 18,109 20,827
District aftormey:
Famiy support paymants collecied {millions) 5 16.9 5 1.7 5 7.8
Juvenia:
Youlh withaut new crims within ona yaar of case desing 1.05% 75.5% T2 0%
Communily corrections:
Wark craw communily serice hours 48,352 44,040 38,704
Work rebease clianls ree from ares! within one year of program comgéetion 64% 75% T5%
Public ways and facilitios:
Transportation Imprevamant:
Projects in planning, design or conslnuclion 28 38 55
Health and sanitation:
Social services:
Households receiving Blespan rospiie sorvices 402 283 315
Households recalving energy assistance 5,738 5,725 5,788
Community heallh

Fublic health appoinimants, uninswed and undednsured NiA, 32,142 34,146
Communily emviranmert:

Regional solid wasto recovery rate (DEQ measured) 54.0% 57.0% 56.0%
Dog senvices:

Animals licensed 23,322 25,200 15,384
Miwaukie Cernlar

Socipl service units provided 16,845 15451 13,777

Meais gn Wheeds and on-sie meals served BB 831 85,178 65,405

Culture and recreation:
Forest Managemant;

Fomasl acres reforasted or improved 18 220 125
Tourism:

Visilor spending In Clackamas County (millions) 5 nz 5 3220 5 36648
County lai allendance 140,275 140,124 140,550
North Clackamas Parks and Recraation District:

Swim lasson participants 2,744 3,000 3,843
Cpen swim palrons 151,887 142,000 140,360
Education:
Libwary:
lNams in Bwarny collection 168,632 171878 170,000
Hems cheched out 1.041.082 1,061,812 1,044,328
Economic development
Business and economic developmanl:
Localion proposals o oulside companies 55 B2 20
Acres of shoval mady indusinal land added 1o Inventory A 235 100
Sanitary sewer and surface water
Trl-Clly Service District
Sandlary sower Nows {milkon gallonsiday) B.99 B.73 B.3Z
Sanitary sewer roatmant capacity (million gaBons/day) 11.00 11.00 11.00
Clackamas County Service District No. 1
Sanitary sawer flows (millian gasanaiday) 5.70 6.48 .31
Sanitary sewer ireatmant capacily {million gallonsiday) 10,13 10.13 10,13
Housing assistance
Rental assisiance monthly vouchers previded 10,782 17675 16,228
Galr
Rounds of goll played a1 Stone Creek Goll Course (18 holes) HiA 55,100 56,000

Source. Clachkamas County Finance Depariment

Noles:
{1) NiA*: Numbers were not avadabe. These operating ndicalors are no kenger part of performance meausramants.

(2) 2008 numbers are actuals or based on budget document estimales,
(2} Infarmation was nol kepl in this formal prior to 2003 therefore @ was not avalable to disclose.



2006 2007 2008
a8% s BrAs
3BT 5.05% &§.45%
237,330 244,000 250,500
18,845 19,500 20,180
BE6% 85% 96%
10,109 10,752 8,836
BES 738 73z
82 T3 aay
19,942 17681 19,023
3 18.1 5 180 107
T8.2% TEA% T8.4%
44,785 48, 204 53,777
B6% Ti% 68%
41 44 48
483 560 630
B,127 8,518 6,445
36,791 30088 A"
50.0% 55.2% 56.0%
17,751 18,000 15,357
17,859 18,277 13,783
64,983 Ta. 717 75,821
55 100 =
-3 3838 5 4118 4407
140,750 144,136 112450
3612 2,800 3,900
155,054 150,000 150,000
165,207 160,414 185,519
801,384 837,690 1.048,304
30 25 20
38 - 25
10,07 a.01 8.83
11.00 11.00 11.00
872 B.&7 A8.73
10013 10.13 1013
17,743 18,187 18,548
57,000 57,000 58,300
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CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS

Function/Program 2003 2004 2005
General government
Facilities management:
Building space maintained in sguare fesal 778,086 849,179 865,133
Emergency communications :
Dispatching stations 13 13 13
Public protection
Sheriff:
Slations 2 2 2
Jail beds available 350 3s0 350
Active patrol vehicles 118 118 118
Community corrections:
Work release beds BO 80 80
Juvenile;
Shelter beds 14 14 14
Delention beds 14 14 14
Public ways and facilities
Roads:
Miles of road trealed with asphall, overlay, base and crack trealmeni 253 244 175
Road miles maintained 1,423 1,420 1,422
Health and sanitation
Community health:
County owned clinics 3 3 3
Loased clinics 3 3 3
Interview rooms 24 24 24
Exam rooms H 3 K
Social services:
Client interview rooms 7 7 7
Culture and recreation
Parks:
Parks maintained 49 50 53
Boat ramps T T 7
Baseball fields T T )
Soccer fields 3 3 3
Education
Library network:
Library computer workstations supporied throughout Counly area 425 438 443
Sanitary sewer and surface water
Tri-City Service District
Sanilary sewer pump stations 5 5 5
Sanitary sewer miles of pipe 14.79 14.79 14.79
Clackamas Counly Service District No. 1
Sanitary sewer pump stations 11 11 12
Sanitary sewer miles of pipe 254.9 261.9 2759
Housing assistance
Rental unit months leased (o low income lenants 10,350 10,361 10,399
Lighting
Service District No. 5§ owned strestlighls 441 438 443

Source: Clackamas County Finance Department

Mote:
(1) Miles of pipe for TriCity Service District revised in 2007-2008

(2} Information was not kept in this format prior 1o 2003 therefore it was not available o disclose.



2006 2007 2008
876,005 963,849 1,144,614
13 14 14

2 2 3

as0 350 434
118 118 128
80 80 114

14 14 11

14 14 14

153 134 89
1,413 1,408 1,408
3 3 3

3 3 2

24 24 19

31 31 29

7 7 7

53 53 73

7 7 7

7 9 g

3 3 3

450 460 460

5 5 5

14,79 14.79 14.79
12 12 12
281.9 301 308
10,473 10,185 10,438
450 460 477
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AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS




AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS

Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-050 through 162-10-320 incorporated in the Minimum
Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the Secretary of State
in cooperation with the Oregon State Board of Accountancy, enumerate the financial
statements, schedules, and comments and disclosures required in audit reports. The required
statements and schedules are set forth in the preceding sections of this report. Required
comments and disclosures related to the audit of such statements and schedules are set forth

in the following pages.






AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS (Continued)
Page 2

INVESTMENTS

Qur review of deposit and investment balances indicated that, during the year ended June 30,
2008, the County was in compliance with ORS Chapter 294 as it pertains to investment of
public funds.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO DEBT

We noted the indebtedness of the County was in compliance with ORS 287.004 during the
year ended June 30, 2008. We noted no defaults in principal, interest, sinking fund, or
redemption provisions with respect to any of the County's bonded debt, and no breach of the
bond agreements at June 30, 2008.

BUDGET COMPLIANCE

The County appears to be in compliance with Local Budget Law (ORS 294.305 to 294.520) in
the preparation, adoption and execution of its budget and tax levy for the year ended June 30,
2008, and the preparation and adoption of its budget for the year ending June 30, 2009, with
the following exceptions:

Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following funds:

GENERAL FUND:
Board of County Commissioners 5 1,739
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:
Sheriff Operations Fund — Transfers Out 8,463
Road Fund — Transfers Out 193,904
Law Library Fund — Personal Services 10,660
Parks Fund — Material and Services 178,602
Fublic Safety Local Option Levy Fund — Capital Outlay 323,741
County Payments Account Local Project Fund — Material and Services 178,655
Morth Clackamas Parks and Recreation District — Aquatic Park 188,453
Morth Clackamas Parks and Recreation District — Nutrition Program 1,500
MNorth Clackamas Parks and Recreation District — Planning and Development 9,534

Clackamas County Enhanced Law Enforcement District — Material and Services 110,280

DEBT SERVICE FUND:
Clackamas Counly Development Agency — Clackamas Town Center Tax
Increment Fund — Debt Service 395,383
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS:
Clackamas County Development Agency - North Clackamas Revitalization
Area Fund - Materials and Services 56,144
North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District — Capital Project Fund -
Materials and Services 107,911
Capital Projects Reserve Fund — Capital Outlay 2,966,810
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND:
Facilities Management Fund — Personal Services 48,942
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AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS (Continued)
Page 3

BUDGET COMPLIANCE (Continued)

AGENCY FUND:
Sheriff's Office Retiree Medical Fund — Materials and Services § 34557

The following funds had a deficit fund balances as of June 30, 2008:
Clackamas County Development Agency - North Clackamas Revitalization
Area Fund (arising from a long-term interfund transfer) (GAAP) 112,963
Clackamas County Enhanced Law Enforcement Fund (budgetary) 9,347

A description of the budgeting process is included in the notes to the basic financial
statements.

INSURANCE POLICIES AND FIDELITY BONDS

We have reviewed the County's insurance and fidelity bond coverage at June 30, 2008. We
ascertained that such policies appeared to be in force and in compliance with legal
requirements relating to insurance and fidelity bond coverage. We are not competent by
training to comment on the adequacy of the insurance policies covering the County-owned
property at June 30, 2008.

PUBLIC CONTRACTS

The County's procedures for awarding public contracts were reviewed and found to be in
accordance with ORS Chapter 279.

PROGRAMS FUNDED FROM OUTSIDE SOURCES

Our reports on compliance and internal control over financial reporting based on an audit of
financial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and internal control over
compliance and other matters in accordance with OMB A-133 and the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards are contained in a separate report dated April 15, 2009.

FINANCIAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

We have reviewed financial reports and other data relating to programs funded wholly or
partially by other governmental agencies. This data, filed with other governmental
agencies, is in agreement with and supported by the accounting records.

HIGHWAY FUNDS

The County's procedures for utilizing gas tax funds were reviewed and found to be in
accordance with ORS Chapter 294.
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